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Archant 15 one of the UK s largest
independenthowned regional media
businesses It 1s o community media
company active 1n the fiekds of regional
newspapers, mogazines ond websites
specialist and customer publishing
€onmac pnhing, evenl monagement,
digrtal publishing and related actvties
All 15 publications serve cleady defined
communities  based around locanons
or waiterast groups
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Chairman’s statement

Your Company has had a challenging year, but has
remained profitable and cash generative, whilst
making real progress in strengthening 1ts traditional
products and n gencrating increased revenues from
digital media. These show through in a satisfactory

start to the current year.

RICHARD JEWSON, CHAIRMAN

REGRE IMABLY, | OLLOWING A recent tax
case involving another company, 1t appears
that the Company may be exposed to a
large bill for corporation tax and interest,
datng back almost 10 years This could
lead to a requtrement o make payments to
HMRC 1n respect of corporanion tax and
interest of up o £13m tor which provision
has been made in the 2012 accounts
There 15 ikely to be further iugauon
before the position becomes clear

If the Company 15 ulumately required
to mcet these liabihiues, we are confident
we can actommodate them within our
exsting banking arrangements This
would increase our total debt levels and
sttbstantially reduce our bank covenant
cover

The Board has therefore decided not to
recommend a final dividend payment for
2012, and to suspend further dividend
payments uncil there 15 more clanty about
the necessity of making anv exceprtional
tax payments The Board fullv appreciates
how unwelcome this news will be but its
prnimary responsibibizy is to ensure the
stability of the Group We intend to
resume dividend pavments as soon
48 15 prudent, taking 1nto account the
underly ing financial position of the
Group at that ume

Strategy and economy

In mv Intenm statement I looked forward
to when the economy would eventually
recover, enzbling the Group o leserage
benefit from the iImvestments being made
in our sales force, improvements in
product content, and the deli ery, capture
and use of data Regrettably, as ver, we
see no signs of that recovery but we
contnue our programme of self-help

Results

For the full vear, Group operaung profic
before amorusation and exceptional costs
e £63m (2011 £10 4m) was down 39 5%
on full verr turnover down 2 7% at

£131 4m

Operatng profit in the second half at
£4 4m (2011 £7 8m) grew from £1 9min
the first half (2011 £2 6m), on turnover of
£64 9m, down 4 2% compared to the same
period in 2611 of £67 8m

Operating costs before amortisation and
exceptional wems, at £125 1m {2011
£124 6m)} were up 0 4% after absorbing
increased costs of contrace printing of
newspapers, investment in business
development, an increase in the sive of
the sales force and specific programmes of
sales force training

Adjusted earnings per share, asa
measure of undertving pertormance fell
54 1% o 19 8p (2011 43 Lp)

Despite the pressures on trading results,
the business remained cash genentve
with cash flow from operating acusites of
£7 6m (2011 £13 1m) Net debt acthe end
of the vear was further reduced to £15 7m
(2011 £17 4m) Bank interest paid,
including amortisation of bank loan 1ssue
costs, reduced to £1 5m (2011 £1 6m),
being covered 4 2 umes bv operaung
profit before amortisation and exceprional
items After compleung our refinancing n
June 2012, we maintain more than enough
cover against our bank covenants

This vear's provisions for both tax and
interest pavable include tax of £3 7m and
interest on the outstanding tax balances of
&4 1m The rotal tax at risk, part provision
having been made in prior vears and
carned on the balance sheet, 15 &9 0m, and
interest of £4 1m

The underlving post-tax loss, aiter
adjusting for one-off costs and the impact
of an impairment charge of £4 8m, relating
principally to the wrte down of the
carpving value of certamn acquired
newspaper ntles, stands at a loss
of £2 2m (2011 loss £1 5m)

Shareholders and dividends

In hight of the tax developments and the
conunuing difficule trading emvironment,
vour Board must cahe steps to protect the
Group and it has therefore regretably

concluded it would be imprudent to
propose 4 final dividend to the 2013
AGA in respect of 2012 Accordinglv
the total dwvidend tor 2012 wll stand
at 6 4p (2011 20 1p) being the mrenm
dividend paid in October 2012

The programme of meetings with
shareholders contunued 1n 2012 These
mectngs are now well established Ve
welcome the opportunuty to set ouc the
strategies we are developing to meet
the changing environment and are
greatly encouraged by the conunued
suppott for the steps being taken

The AGM will again be held in the
Conterence Cenue at the John Innes
Centre in Norwich on Tuesday, 23 Aprid
2013 at midday, ac which only routine
business 1s being proposed The Board
looks forward to welcoming as manvy
sharcholders as are able o attend
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Highlights and industry
The landscape of the regional press
industry s seeing change, partrcularly with
the establishment of Local World, 2
company established to combine elements
of the local press industrs The extent to
which this development will tngger a long
anucipated consohdation in the sector
remains to be seen

Ve monitor closely the Group's
performance bs adverusing cacegory
relative to our peers The himued
compatative data confirms that the steps
being taken and the strategies being
pursued are resulting in the Group
performing well compared to the industry
in generai

New digital teams have been
established in each business unie, tasked
with working wich the traditional
publishing businesses to grow online

v avarchant co ok

audience, audience engagement and
onhne and mobile revenues Revenues
from online actnvities increased to 56 4m
in the vear and were up 15% 1n the second
haif agamnst 2011

The Group made significant investment
in sales development in 2012 to meer the
changing media needs of our adveresers
Actvines included new programmes for
sales torce recrmirment and changes o
commercid] leadership to ensure that
the skills required to operate 1n the
mulumedia ensironment are in place
Addittonallv, specific training was
developed within the Archant Academy to
equip the sales forces with the skalls, rools
and informacvion needed to sell across
difterent media plattorms so chat new and
existing customers can meet therr
objectives and optimise the benefic of
their adverusing expenditure

Underpinning these miatives is the
need to use the informacion we hoid about
clients, customers and their respectine
Iifestyles more effectively During the vear
a mulu-phased project was imitiated to
review the ways we capture and hold
information and to decermine how this may
be structured to maximum commercial
benefi

In September, Archant was awarded the
licence to operarte the local TV channel for
Norwich Mustard TV 15 scheduled o go
on-atr i late 2013 and a limiced oniine
service was launched in Junuary 2013

Staff and Board
Manv of the initiacis es described above,
taken individually, may be considered to be
normal business practices To applv them
across 4 changing mulumedia landscape,
whilst other commercual challenges and
demands abound, requires commitment
and courage The Board 1s fullv supportive
of the efforts of management to transtorm
the business and acknowledges the great
enchusiasm and mvenon eness with which
the workforce, across all disciphines and
all business units, 1s embracing this
changing environment

Trading conditions have meant that no
share awards have vested under the
shareholder approved Long-Term
Incentve Plan for six years Consequently,
and given the new appointments made
dunngthis pertod, a significant number
of senior managers have not been able
to become shareholders The Board has
therefore decided to offer to nominared
senior managers the opportunity 1o convert
all, or part, of any bonus thev mav have
earned into Archant shares This can be
achieved by their buving existing shares
held within the established emplovee
benefit trusts at the prevailing market
price Requining no new shares to be
1ssued, the proposal 15 not ddutive to other
shareholders, and 15 within the powers
contained in the Articles of Association
This step has the dual benefit of recaining
cash within the business and aligning the
interests of managers more closely with the
business

Qutlook
The UK economy remains fragile and
uncercan Improvements 1n the business
will only come from our own activities and
mitiaanes and we dre taking active steps to
ensure that the business 1s well posioned
to take advantage of the upturn when it
arrives

At the ume of this statement, and with
two months’ trading behind us in 2013, the
Company 15 on track to meet 105 2013
targets, giving the Board confidence to
conunue pursuIng Its strategies to develop
the business whilst rematning alert to new
opportunities




Chiet Executive's report

ADRIAN JEARINGS, CHIFY EXFCUTNF

2012 was & difficule vear for Archant
We made sigmficant progress in the
transformation of the Group, bur the
economy and a4 significant increase in
competition against our magasines had
an adverse impact on revenue and profit

We started the vear without any hope
of significant economic grow th but also
without anv expectation of further decline
In the event the economy, or at least the part
that 15 relevant to consumer medig,
detenorated The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee
and the London Olvmpics were expected to
have Iittle impact on our medsa, with the
possibility of some upside The actual
impact was adverse despite the addinonal
revenue from the special uicles we published
to commemorate the events, due o a
general reductton in advertsig spend m our
local markets

There has been a significant increase 1n
the compeuntion faced by our magasine
businesses duning the year in London alone
there have been more than 16 new launches
against us There have always been manv
competttors for our lifestyle magazines but
the quanuty and quahiey of these launches s
new We have taken, and conunue to take,
vigorous action to fight these recent
competitors but they had a sigmificant
Impact on our mdgasine revenue i 2012

We continued to invest in the
transformation of the business duning the
year with particular emphasis on digital
media and our sales force in general The
additional cost of this investment has
reduced the visibility of cost savings on the
headline expenditure repornted for the year
The benefits of these investments started
10 become more apparent in the second
hatf of the year and witl continue to build
o 2013

Turnover for the year at £131 4m (2611
£135 1m) was down 2 7% compared to
2011 Newspaper print advertising was
2 7% lower than in 2011 wich 3 2% growth
in local displav adverusing (4 3% in the
second half) which 1s now our largest
category at 37% of total newspaper print
adverusing National display advertusing
was partcularly disappointing with an
18% decline Based on trading updates
pubhshed dunng the vear we beheve that
our newspaper adverusing performance 1s
substantially better than our regional press
peer group Magazine print ads erusing
res enue was 6% lower than in 2011
Digical revenues grew by 7% o er the
vear acceleraning 1in the second half o 15%
growth Circulation revenue tn aggregate
tor both newspapers and magasines was
3 3% lower than in 2011

Operanng costs before amorttsation and
excepuonal wems tor the vear at £125 1m
(2011 124 6m) were slighthy higher than last
vear Investmentin digical and other new

products and capabiliues, increased
expenditure on sales torce development and
an inerease in costs drnven by a sigificant
increase in relauvely low margin prnting
contraces have all served o mask underlving
savings

Operating profic before amorusaton and
exceptional tems at &6 3m (2011 £10 4m)
was &4 1m lower thanin 2011 Resuuctunng
costs of &1 3m (2011 £3 tm) were
significantly lower than in 2011 reflecang
the major orgarusational changes made in
that year Gnen the poor economic outlook
and recent trading 10 certan parts of the
business we beheve that 1t (s approprate o
reduce the holding value of the relevant
intangible assets which has led to an
impatrment charge of £4 8m n the year
(2011 ml} These factors, together with an
increase n finance expenses related to the
defined benefit pension scheme (£0 7m)
and interest charges associated with
disputed unpaid tax (84 Im) led toa
reduction in profic before tax from £1 0m
in 2011 toa loss of £10 7m in 2012

Late in 2012 HNRC won, ac rribunal,
a case against a dfferent companv which
exposes us to some nsk on a tax matter
danng back to 2003 We has e concluded
that unu the final outcome of this macter
becomes clear it 15 appropriate to make
full proviston for this potential habilicy
Previousty, having taken advice, this had
not been constdered necessary

Whilst we are not recommending a final
dividend pavment in respect of 2012, we
are confident that any cash cutflows that
may anse from this tax issue can be
accommodated within the banking facilinies
that were successfully renewed dunng cthe
yedar We intend to stare to pav dividends
as s00n as 1t 1s reasonable to do so and the
Board will consider progress towards that
goal later in the vear

Audience
Qur plans to grow paid circulation of
newspapers siffered a significant setback
dunng the vear when it emerged that o
key emplovee in Archant Angha, which
publishes most of our pard newspaper utles,
had been falsifving records The falsification
had been gong on for less than 12 months
\We have subsequently appointed a
completeh new circulation management
team in Anglia, internal controls have been
enhanced to prevent a recurrence and a
new external circulaoon auditor has been
appointed

Magazine paid erculations performed
better than the industry as a whole and ABC
has agreed a change to their rules enabling
our free London magasines to be properly
reported on ABC cernficates in future

Our online audience connnued o
grow with an increase of 28% in monthh
untgue visitors oser the vear to nearly
+4 8m a monch

Strategy implementation
Significant effort was applied to
transforming our sales force duning 2012
The successful tnal of the Archant Sales
Academv in Norfolk was followed by a
rollout across most of the Group during
2012 This will be completed 1n 2013
with the county magazines in the north
of England There 1s clear evidence that
where the techniues from the Sales
Academy are applied, sales performance
15 better than where they are not We have
now created an in-house sales desvelopment
team that will enable us to continue thas
work at 4 much lower cost

New advertsing chient development was
a150 4 major area of focus during the vear
We have worked with a number of third
party consultants to sefl our media o new
and lapsed customers At the same nme
we are driving a move to longer sencs
bookings This ensures a better response
for our chents, improves sales force
productivity and gives us greater visibiliey
of future sales faciliwating becrer product
and financal planning New consultatve
sales techniques are being incroduced,
supported by new sales collateral and
markeung insight for both face-to-face
and telesdles activities

There has been stgnificant imvestment
in our digital media capabilities with the
creation of teams of speciabists embedded
i each division, a central operations team
and a digital business development ream
Revenue growth has accelerated as these
teams have been built over the vear

The digical teams embedded n each ot
our trading divisions have made sigmificant
progress in dnving digital audiences and
revenue The team it Angha has focussed
on high value digical display ads erusing
campaigns, ncreasingly as pare of an
integrated campagn across different media
The creauve elements ot the campaigns are
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produced in-house and the technology we
are using provides chents with data-nch
feedback on how the audience interacts
with che advertsing content The Anglia
team has aiso developed a digital media
masterclass which will be used to train all
Archant sales people 1n 2013 and later, after
some adaptation, all seaff The team in
Londoen has proneered the use of contextual
content delnerv and dverasing and has
generated signsficant grow th in 1ts audience
London24 1s now the second largest news
site for London (after the Ecening Standard)
and Archane London has the largest
auchence of any Archant division The
Lifestyle team has focussed on mobile
apps for phones and tablet devices and
has developed 4 number of different
standardised content deliv ery apps thar will
eventually be used across the whole of the
Group An increasing number of Archant
Lifestvle magasine titles are now growing
readership through their Apple and Android
apps, for example, in Janoarv 2013 the
At Gunner app was accessed over three
thousand ttimes with an average of 48 pages
being read on each occasion — about 7,400
printed copies of Auwr Gunner were sold in
the same pertod

The year has seen significant changes in
the group buving marker There has been
& SIgﬂlﬁCJnt Incredse 1 investment in starc-
up companies, particularly tn the area ot
discount travel, and the more established
mternationdl players such as Groupon have
not made the progress tow ards profitability
that had been expected We believe that
group buying and deep discount vouchers
will continue to form a kev pare of local
firms’ marketung mix and have therefore re-
positioned our own group buving offerings
to accommodate the changed environment
The 7iedles minonty shareholder has been
bought out, 4 new software platform 1s
being implemented and the sales and
customer support acuviey has been
embedded in Archant Anglia’s aperations
We have stopped developing #8 Winds as a
separate product and mtegrated the travel
deals into the Tikles business This has
already significantly reduced operating costs
and sheuld resule in a much improved
pertormance m 2013

A new service offering online wedding
planning tools was launched durning the
vear Weddingsire co uk offers market leading
tools to help couples plan and manage their
weddings The service was launched 1n
May and now has over 31,000 registered
brides Revenue will be generated from
adverusing, sponsorship, premium
membership fees and, eventually,
commission en sales of goods and senvices

Prine oictes have not been neglected with
tittes launched and relaunched in many
parts of the Group The launch of pew
quarcertold newspapers i London s
particularhy worthy of note The new

wr w archant co Lk

products have been greeted with
enthustasm bv readers and adverusers
ahke and have arrested a long-term
dedline in revenue

There has been much talk of the use
of data to improve turnover in media
businesses either directly through beter
rargeting or indirecely through the use of
data o pros ide better service and marketung
nsight We have completed the first two
phases of 4 three-stage project to ensure
that customer dara 15 properhy captured,
managed and used across the Group The
project has confirmed that many of the
building blocks that we need are i place so
that the investment requured to drive new
revenue 1s relatn ely modest The third,
implementacion, stage 1s expected to be
completed 1n 2013

There has also been an increase 1n focus
on employee engagement as part of our
strategic objective to embed a performance
culeure across the Group Kev elements of
this have included the retny igoration of the
review and development process for all
staff, an employee sun ey, improved
internal commumicauons including an
mcrease i the number of internal
conferences and seminars, and an increased
focus on hinking dav-to-dav activittes to
strategic objectives These have all helped
to maintain morale n an environment ot
difficule trading and no pav increases

Mustard TV

Archant entered a new era when it won
a hcence o broadease local television
programmes to homes in Norwich over
Freeview Anembryvonic version of the
service was launched in Januarv 2013 oser
the internec and has so far exceeded all
expectations Ve do not behieve that this
will become 1 major business in i1s own
night but it 1s alreads facilitating the
transformacion of our print business

into new media

industry
Lord Justice Leveson's enquiry into the
culture, pracuce and ethics of the press
made a number of recommendations
around the creatton of a new mdependent
regulator Many of the recommendations
are broadly acceptable to che indusery with
the exception of the wdea that there should
be some form of statutory underpinning
The industry has been working with the
government to put 1n place a new svstem
of regulation that 15 acceprable o both,
however there are some ven loud vowces
arguing for much nghter regulacion and
there 15 no guatantee that the government
will be able o presatl The kev concerns
are press freedom and the increased cost
ot &anyv new regulatory system

A new regwonal medu company, Local
World, was created at the end of the vear
through the merging of Northehiffe and

Ihffe News and Media into 4 new company
DMGT and Yattendon, the tormer owners
of liffe, have remained as shareholders in
the new group with addimonal 1mvestment
from Trimts Mirror, Odev Asset
Management and Artefact Group The
Chairman of the new company will be
David Montgomery, formerly Chief
Execunve ot both Mecom and Mirror
Group, and the Chief Executive 15 Steve
Auckland who previousty ran Northchffe
The stated aim of the new business s the
optimisanion of local content and commerce
across dl plattorms This 1s the first
significant consolidarion in che regional
press for some ume and it has attracted the
attention of the competition authorities

[t 15 tao eacly to tell whether this will lead
to further consolidation in the industry or
if 1t will usher in a new wav of looking at
regional newspaper mergers

Productivity and
organisation changes
There were no major orgamisational changes
in 2012 The consohdation of our pre-press
ActivIties into two centres with a single
management structure in the second half of
2011 has continued to delner benefits wich
unprovements to adverusing quality and
productiviey The workflow sofeware that
was developed to facilitate the creation of
the new shared service has been updated
and repurposed for use in other business
processes outside advertusing prodiction
A recent benchmarking exercise has indscated
that our pre-press Losts are very competitive
compared to outsourced service providers
Newsfax, the provider of outsourced
printing sers iees for many of our weekly
papers, went mto adminstration during the
vear The company had two press facihiies,
one of which has been taken over by the
Fnanaal Times with whom we continue to
work The prinung that was outsourced to
the other plant has been repatriated to our
own press i Tharpe.

People

1 would like to express mv thanks to the
people who work for Archant Thev
demonstrate their enchustasm, creativity
ind perseserance every dav, regardless of
the challenges that are thrown at them, and
I thank chem for all chac they do They torm
the bedrock of Archant’s future success

Outlook

There 1s much talk of an improvement in
economic conditions but litke evidence of
change and 1f there s anv improvement 1t 15
unlikely to be matenal We expect to reap
the benefit of our iInvestments over the last
tw o vears and, absent anv furcher
derenoration in the econonn, improve our
financial performance duning 2013 Trading
for the first two months of the vear 1s 1in hine
with expectation




Financial review

This was a vear of much progress in developing new
products and of continued investment: 1n sales skills,
resources and people, all of which helped improve
adverusing revenue performances, particularly

in newspapers which had results ahead of other

newspaper groups.

Brian McCarTHy, FivaNnct DIRECIOR

2012 2012 012 2011 Chonge
As reported One-off Underlying

£m £m £m
Group revenue 1314 - 1314 1351 i3 7
Operating costs
Labour 562 - 562 559 03
Other costs 68 G - 689 68 8 01
Totel operating costs' 1251 - 1251 1247 [0 4)
Operating profit’ 63 - &3 104 a4
Amerhsaton and mparment @ 4) 48 {4 6} 4 &) oo
Net excepional fems [1 3] - 113} {3 1 18
Cperating prohl/[ioss] (4 4) 48 04 27 2 3]
Interest payoble 55 41 {1 4) (1 6&) 02
Ciher hinonce expense 0 8) - 10 8 01} 07}
{Loss)/proht before tax {10 7) 3¢ {1 8) 10 12 8)
Toxation 41 37 {0 4} (2 5 21
{toss)/prefit after tox 114 8] 126 12 2} {15 10 7]
et debt 157 - 157 17 4 | 7

IExcluding exceptionnl wems, amart sa 1on ond Imparment

NEW COMPE TTTORS IN magazines meant
that core advertising revenues came
under pressure in some markets, and also
in certatn cases affected their circulation
performance As a consequence
underlying operating profirs excluding
exceptional items, amortisation and
impairment fell by &4 Im Qur newspaper
businesses, however, grew their profits
vear on vear by 47 7% and we continued
to nvest in new product areas to provide
wider solutions to our advertising
CUSTOMETS

With a small number of large one-off
‘helow the line' items this vear, visihilicy
of the overall resulrs for the year are not
as clear as in other vears, the table above
sets out the new, non-recurring 1items 1n
the finanaial scatements

The largest of these relates to making a
provision for tax and interest related to a
tax mateer dating back as far as 2003, which
tollows the result ot a test case taken by
another company to a Tax Tribunal whose
deusion was published late 1n the vear
Despite Archane s tacts being substantially

different, this decision places uncertainey
on the strength of Archant’s case and the
Board has therefore concluded that it 1s
now appropriate to make full accounting
provision tor these amounts This does not,
however, mean that our posinion has been
conceded and untl there has been further
hiigation the matter will remain unclear
In the event of a negatve outcome, the
cash tlow effects will be substantial, with
net outflows of some £9 Om plus interest
of 84 Im These can be managed from
within our extsting banking facilites, bue
will inevitably increase the Company's
debt and reduce headroom The total
addictonal provision booked in the year 1s
£3 7m of tax and &4 Im of interest The
Company s working with 1ts advisors on
the way forward 1in this matter

A non-cash imparrment charge of £4 8m
has been recorded as an exceptional wem,
reflecting a reduction in the carrving value
ot certain utles which are unable to
sustain thewr current valuanion under
Archant’s accouncing policies Tlus 15
the first impairment charge since 2010

A seudement was reached with the
hquidator of Dubdin Darly News (DDNY, at
an amount of £0 3m mcluding substantial
legal costs, against which a provision of
£0 5m had been held in the balance sheet
since 2008 This case mnvolved hugacion
dacing back to a fuled investmene in 2003
which was due to be heard at the Dublin
High Court in November 2012 The costs
settled were at a level on a par with the
costs of the heaning, even if we had won
the case Despite the strength of Archant’s
case, the settlement was reached as a
*least bad’ opton, without admission
of habilicy

Revenue at £131 4m (2011 £135 1m)
was £3 7m (2 7%) lower than 2011
Operanng profit before amorusacion
and impairment of intangible assers and
excepuonal items tell by £4 1m (39 5%)
0 £6 3m (2011 £10 4m)

Total operating costs n the business
grew by £0 4m or 0 3%, indluding
increased cosis from contract prinung of
£0 9m, after winning two large printing
contrdces X0 7momvested 10 a new traning
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and development programme for all sales
staff and imvestment of £1 2m 10 new
cigital products launched in the vear
Strpping out these costs the hike-for-hke
cost base fell by 1 6% There was some
regulansation of newsprint pnces in 2012
with a fall of 4% s ear-on-year in cost per
wnne There was again no pav award in
2012, there was, however, continued
investment 1n people to develop new
business streams, providing a springboard
for growth in the future Overall
headcount fell by 5 3%, with total
employment costs marginally higher vear-
on-year as the mix of people changed
Operaung profic before amerusation
and exceptional costs 1 the second half
of the vear was more than double the
first half at £4 4m, and also represented
4 H4% reducuon in second halt profit
vear-on-sear The rate of revenue decline
was 4 2% in the second half of the vear,
compared to 1 3% dechine 1n the first half
Excepoonal costs grew trom £3 1m 1o
£6 1m, including the non-cash &4 8m
impairment charge on sntangible fixed

vevy grchant co Lk

assets The remaining exceptional
costs represent £1 Om of operational
restructuring, £0 4m of exceptional
tax lingacion costs and £0 1m relating
to pensiens auto enrelment, offset by
£0 2Zm saving against the prosision for
DDA lhitigation

Interest payable on loans of £1 Om
was £0 3m lower than 2011 as a result
of reduced levels of debt and marginally
lower interest rates Loan 1ssue cost
amorusation was £0 Im higher ac £0 Sm,
following accelerated wrte off of the
costs of the previous facility on 1s early
replacement Excepuonal interest relating
to the potenual tax hability dating back to
2003 has been accrued at a total amount of
&4 Im This amount has been caleulated
4y the maximum interest payable in the
event ot assessed losses being held to
be pavable and 15 shown in che interest
pavable line

A R0 8m charge (2011 £0 lm) s shown
a5 other finance expense i the profit and
loss account This anses trom the
eapected return on pension scheme assets

relanive 10 the interest charge on scheme
ltabthues under the RS 17 accounung
scandard

The tax charge on profits for the vear
was &4 Im (2011 &2 Sm) of which the
greatest part 1s an accrual of £3 7m, in
respect of corporation taa in relanion
prior vears

Adjusted earmings per share, which
reflect the underly ing performance of the
business. were down 23 3p (54%) ac 19 8p,
whilscbasic earnings per share fell to a loss
per share of 106 4p from 10 6p loss per
share 1n 2011

Net debt at the end of the vearwas
reduced by just under 10% to £13 7m
{2011 £17 4m) This result was achieved
after capital expenditure of £1 3m and
i idends of £2 8m The Group matntains
sufficient debt headroom for development
opporwnities and is operating well within
its banking covenants

Summary of operating results

As noted in the 2011 Annual report,

the dsunction between our traditional
newspeper and magazine businesses

huas becume increasingly blurred, with
substantial overlap berween the revenucs,
Losts, management, facithities and activities
carried out across the business As a resule,
the newspaper and magasine distinction

t5 no longer reported

Key performance indicators {KPls)
The key financial and non-financial
pertormnce ndwcators for the Group
include res enue, operating profit,
operatung margin, advernsing volumes,
circulation including the proportion of
magasnes sold through subscripions web
traffic, digital revenue and net debr The
Group seehs to target performance in line
wich or ahead of competitors

Most categories of adverusing revenue
suftered declines in 2012 Whilst
rec.ruttment conunued 1ts downward trend
of the past few vears. display pertormance
was much better than mdustry aserages
and showed groweh in the vear

Neuwspaper circulation performance was
dealt a blow with ABC resules amended
downwards following a fraud commutted
by one ot our senior Lirculation managers,
discovered at the end of the summer
Activel purchased, pawd-tor circulations
were down in each o our tour daihy utles,
albeirat levels generally becter than the
mdusiy sverages Vveehlies generally
performed better than industny meerages —»




Financial review
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—Magazine circulation revenues were
shightly behind i a challenging
marketplace, and although subsenipuon
sales fell by 2 6% they now represent 54%
of our paid-for circulation volume, wich
AVErage Tevenue per copy also increasing
Copy sales through the newstrade
continue to be difficulr

We continue to develop our digital
offerings inctuding the launch of
WeddngSee in March 2012 and further
development of LondonZ, our group
buving site Trcdles and PlanuwingFinder We
have also taken a small stake in a hyper-
local website Seeetlife, and after winning
the bid for local television provision in
Norwich, launched Musrard TV on the
internet 1n January 2013, with a Freeview
launch planned for later in the vear

Digital activity

Revenue from online activities increased
by 7% to £6 4m, mainlv dniven by revenue
from displav, drreed4, mobile sites and
apps Our classified verucal sites grew in
line with the rest of digital despite a
reduction in job-related advertising
Monthly untque visicors to our websites
increased by 28%, and page impressions
bv 12% Almost 4 8 milhion people on
average visit Archant websites everv
month

') — —_— —_— — —

2008 2000 2000 2001 2002

before amaririation impairment and sxceptional irems

Impairment of intangible assets
The Group is required to review the
carrving value of all 1es mangible assecs
annually, ta determine whether cither
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrving value mav not
be recoverable The carrying value 1s
assessed using forecast cash flows,
discounted 10 line with the Group's cost of
capital A total charge of £4 8m has been
recorded against a number of income
generaung umcs where the value in use
was lower chan their carrsing value No
impatrmert charge was required in 2014

Subsidiary and associated
companies

The Company acquired the remuning
share capital of L.ocal Vouchers Limiced,
which trades as Trekles, for £0 Imn June
2012 The resules of this business have
been consohdated 1nto the financial
statements The results for the penod
when this was an associace, and those

of PlanningFimder Limited in which the
Company holds a two-thirds stake, are
reporred as a minority interest atter loss
from ordinary acuivittes after tanauon

Exceptional items

Excepuonal costs were £1 3m excluding
impairment (2011 £3 1m) in respect of the
costs of restructuring within the business,
principally redundancy costs, together
wich £0 4m of professionat fees relating

o tax htigavion, offset by savings of £0 Zm
relating to the setdlement of the DDN
hiugation

Group operafing margin* %
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* before omartisciion smpawment ond exceptional fems

Taxation

The financial stacements include 4 tax
charge of £4 Im (2011 £25m) The
effecure rate of taxation for the year was
137 8% (2011 249 7%), and the etfectuve
standard rate of tax was 24 3% (2011

26 5%) The main factor affecting the
2012 tax charge 1s the incressed provision
relatng to the potenoal tax cost of
resolving matters disputed by HMRC in
connection with Archant’s tax
computations dating back to 2003 An
addhtional provision of £3 7m has been
made 1n connection with this macter The
overall tax charge has been reduced bva
number of items including over provisions
for other matters relating to prior sears

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share fell by 95 8p from
last year's loss per share of 10 6p 10 a loss
per share of 106 4p Adjusted earnings per
share fell by 23 3p (54%) to 19 8p
Adjusted earnings per share are
considered to be a better indicator of the
underlving performance of the business
and the difterence berween basic and
adjusted earnings per share 1s explined in
more detail in Note 10 to the finanaal
staements

Dividends and dividend cover

It 15 proposed that no final dividend for
2012 will be paid this vear (2011 final
dividend 13 7p per share) The total
dividend for the year1s 6 4p (2011 20 1p)
At this level the dividend would be
covered 3 T umes (2011 2 1 ames) by
adjusted earnings per share

~sa a chanrco vk
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Adjusted earning per share*

Dividend declared per share

Share price range £
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Detore amersaton impairment ond excephionc! vems

Net debt and cash flow

The Group conunues to be cash
generattve and operating cash tlow ac
E76m (201t £13 Im) was £5 5m lower
than in 2011 mainly due to the reduction
of £4 1m in operating profit before
amortisatton and excepoonal costs There
was an adverse varance of £3 lm on
working capual tollowing settlement of
the DD clatm and other provisions, and
with 2011 favourable vanance being
largely one-off 10 nature, offset by lower
restructuring cests £1 8m Conm ersion of
operaung profit into cash was 273% (2011
434%) Net debr at the end of the year
was reduced by almost 109% to £15 7m
(2011 £17 4m) Movements in net debt
are summansed below

2012 2011
£m £m
Ope aling casn fow 74 131
et irterest pe a (v} {14
Tox paig 03
C .genrds poid [2 8} [2 8}
Cosn low re'c e ocqus.cs
and cap 'c! experos u @ iz 4]
Coprol expend ure 13 (18
QIS ONS 103 o1
Cre 0 4) 08
Eatranse i ~ar gen i7 5%

A refinencing was completed with our
eustng banking svndicate 1n June 2012,
extencing cur facihues to March 2016
This facility comprises a revolving debe
facility of £30m, together with overdrafi
facihinies totalling &4m This was achieved
against 2 bachground of a difficult lending
environment in the banking seceor k¢
provides sufficient finance for the Group s
needs, on saustactons terms The one-off
scr-up costs of £0 6m are being amortsed
over the length of the agreement in line
with the 'RS 4 accounting standard

= archan’ co uk

2008 2009+ 2010* 201 2012

*+ 2009 inchides and 2010 sxchudes tha 15 Interim for 2010 For
comparntive purposes

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure during the vear was

&1 3m (2011 &1 8m) which again related

matnly to investment in [T hardware and
software development costs

Pension scheme

The 1 January 2011 triennial actuarial
valuanon indicated that habilitres of che
Group's pension scheme of £160 4m were
under-funded by £13 3m The Group
made tash contnbunions wialling £1 8m
towards the reduction of this deficit in
2012 (2011 &£1 45m) The deficie shown in
the balince sheer was determined using
the FRS 17 accounung standard Under
chis standard, the defined benefit scheme
service cost in the profit and loss account
grew by £0 2m to £1 5m and the deficit
show n on the balance sheet grew by

50 2m to £22 9m, though this represented
4 reduction in gross deficie of £0 6m,
which was offset by a smaller deferred rax
credie caused by lower tax rates The
liabtlines of the pension scheme are
expected to tall due over a penod of more
than 50 vears, these Lubihines are
caleulated based on government bond
vields which are histonically low — therebv
increasing the deficit — and wiil inevitably
nse at some point tn the future The
deficit is around 3 6 umes current
operaung profits before amorusaton

Treasury management, associated
risks and uncertainties

The Group currently derves its funding
from share capital, retained profits and
bank borrowing Cash 1s managed centrally,
and the Group’s treasury ohjective 1s to
minimise borrow g and borrow ing costs,
whilse at the same ume ensuning tha there
15 sufticient tacdiny and headroom in place
to tund the Group's needs for not less chan

2008 2009 2000 2001 2012

one year from the date of approval of the
financial statements

The main nisks that the Group faces
from 1ts treasury activiaies are hguidity
risk and interest rate risk The Group’s
actvities are pnimarily in the UK and
there 15 minumal foreign currency nisk

The Group’s iquidity nisk arises from
uming differences berween cash inflows
and outflows These nsks are managed
through commatted short-term and long-
term ciedit facihties The Group™s pohiy
15 to ensure conemuity of funding and
flexibiliey, and to maintain sufficient cash
balances and commutted facilities to meet
anucipated funding requirements The
Group s resources and the expected future
cash flows are regarded as more than
sufficient to meet the anucipated funding
recquirements of the Group tor at least the
next 12 months

The Group has 1 £30 Om rex olving
advances facility through RBS and Bank
of Ireland which expires in March 2016
and 2 £3 Om overdraft facthin from RBS
on which compenuve rates of incerest are
pavable The maximum amount of the
revolving credit fachey wall be reduced
by equal annual reductions ot £2m n
June 2013, 2014 and 2015 In 2012 the
Emplovee Benefic Trust was granted
an o erdrafe facibioy of £1 Om, which s
guaranteed by the Companvy, the balunce
of which 1s included in the Group’s debt

Net assets

Netassets on | Januany 2012 were £40 2m
The loss for the vear was £14 6m, which
was transterred o resenves Ocher
movements intluded a reduction of 50 6m
arising trom an increase i the pension
defiar wnd dividend pavments of £2 8m
Ner wsvets at the end of the vear were

£22 Zm

n
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Directors and officers

RW JEWSON Chormen MNonexecutve N R P

Richard Jewson, 68, jomed the boord of Eastern Counties
MNew spapers Group Urited (ECNG} in 1982 os a Non
execulive Director ond become Chouman in 1996

Alier wnning Jewson, the kmber and budding
merchant, for 12 years, he hefd the posimon of Managing
Director and then Chowman of iis holding company,
Mevyer Inernaticnal Fle unil he reired from that role
1953 Subsequently he was Charman of Savils Pic for
10 years and Depuorr Chaiman of awg plc He s
currently a drreclor of Temple Bor Investment Trust Flc
Grafton Group ple, Raven Russio Limited and a number of
other unquoted companies

He 15 also HM Lord Lisutenant of Norfolk, a Trusiee of
Trensorming Edueanion in Norfolk and charrs he Council
for the University of East Angha

Richard chaurs the remunesation and nommations
comnutiees

5 COPEMAN MNon-axecutive A

Simon Copeman 46 jomed the board of ECNG
Ceicher 2001 os o Nomexecutve Director, hoving
peviously been o member of the ECING Newspepers
bocrd

Since 1990 he hos held o vanety of general
management, Six Sigma cnd sales and marketing
posiions with 3M UK ple and 15 curcently there
Manoger of 3M Troffic Sofety Systems Dimviston
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AD JEAKINGS Chief Execuive N P

Adnian Jeokings, 54, joined the Board as Finonce
Direclor in Oclober 2002 and became Chiel Executive
1n November 2008

Adran s a Fellow of the Chartered Instiute of
Management Accouniants and was Group finonce
Drector of The Statonery Olfice before joiming Archont
He 15 a graduate of Irpenal College, London and
worked briefly os an engineer oefore raiming as on
occountant af BICC plc Alter qualifying, he joined the
mstrumeniotion drasion of Schlumberger where he was
Finance Director of a number of business unils based in
France Befere joming The Siationery Clfice he was
Dsrector = Finance Europe for Dun & Bradstreat inc

Adren 15 o Director of the PA Graup Limiled and 15
president of the Newspaper Society He 15 olso 0
governor of Norwich School

Adnan chaies the pension committee

JAE HUSTLER Director

Johnny Husler 57 Managing Diractor of Archont
Anglic joined the 2oard i Januory 2008 hawng
served os ¢ direcior of a number of other Achant
companies duning 24 years of servce with he Group
After groduating from Leeds Unwersity, he went to
Urilever ond started his media career with Anglio
Television in 1983 then |oining the East Anglion Bally
Times n 1987 In 1995 he moved to Eostern Counties
Newspopers Limited as Marketing Director, dller which
he served in a numbes of senior commerciol icles
before lounching Archont Ufe in 2001 and managing
its development through lo 2011 1n Apnt 2011
he became Managing Direcior of Acchant Anglia
Johnny 15 the UK Director of the Intermnational News
Media Associoton and sits on 1ts Evropean board
He 15 also o govermer of Nonwich School

BG McCARTHY finance Director P

Bran McCarthy 50 joned the Board as Finonce
Director n Noverber 2008

Bron 15 a Fellow of Chertered Accountants Ireland
having qualified wath Arhur Andersen in Dublin ond
Cambndge He |cined Archant in Jonuary 2004 as
Finance Director of Archant Regional Limited  Praviously
he worked os Finance Direcior of an environmen-al
compony and prior 1o hat he teld o semes of semor
finance roles in the Englsh Lenguage Drvision of
Pearsan Education

He 1s also o Director of the Newspaper Licensing
Agency ond a Truslee of Transtorming Educohon in
Norfolk

REJ WYATY MNon-execyive R A

Achard Walt, 53, wos appointed o Nomrexecutive
Director of Aschant in Apnl 2005

Richard 15 Chasrman of loudw cter Invesiment
Partners Lmred He 15 o Managing Director of N M
Rothschild ard formerly Managing Director of Schroder
Securihes

Richard, who 15 a low greduate, is olso a trustee of
Aldebuigh Music

#~ w archani co ok
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M WALSH Nonexecutive N R

ke Walsh, 63, wos oppointed a Nonexecutve

Oireclor of Archant in February 2010

Mike 15 o director of Ogilvy & Mather South Afnca
ond of Ogivy & Mather Alnca Inc ond @ Non
exacuive of The Brand Unien Formerly a man board
Director of Ogilvy & Mather Worldwide for 16 years
he was olso,i)r 12 years, Chief Executive of its
Europe, Middle East ond Alncan operahons He 15
also Semor Adwiser for Vel Pl Afte. graduaiing from
Durtham n 1971 Mike joined Young & Rubicam and
was appointed 1o the Board n 1981 before joining
Ogilvy & Mather Plc in 1983

Mike waos for six years Chawrman of the UK
Disasters Emergency Commitee which 15 an umbrella
orgamisarion for 13 leading UK chaorites including
The Red Cross Oxfom and Sove the Children

PIIRQUGHTON ViceCharrman Norexecutive
NRA

Peter Troughton &4 joined the board of ECNG as a
MNomrexecutive Director in 1991 having served on the
boeros of East Anghion Dally Times Compeny Limited
ond Cemmunity Media limiled since 1984

Petar graduoted from Tnny College Cambridge
ond served n HM Diplomatic Service belore joming
WHSmith Group plc where he become Manoging
Director News Dwiston ond loter o5 o Director of the
man beord, Managing Direcier Retolling He left in
1995 to become Depuly Choirman of Retschid Asset
Menogement yntl 1999 e 1s o dieclor of o number
of privale companies He 1s o Charrman of Llowland
T.estment Company plc and o dector of JOHIM
Global Investment Funds ple, and Woverton Funds plc

A former trustee of the National Gallery he was
aopointed a Trustee of the Reyal Collection in 2007
Fe 15 Chauzman of the Councll of the University of Both
and o Trustee or Tha Royal Coera House Endowment
Fund

Petar charrs the audi committes

~ erchant ¢o uk

5 ALLEYME ORE MNon executve

Sonita Allgyne, 46, was appointed o Non executive
Directer of Archant n February 2012

After studying philosophy ot Cambndge University
Somia founded the cross plafform medio preduction
compony Scmethin’ Else in 1991 She was the CEQ of

the business for 18 years and o Nonexecutve Direclor for
a furher two years She 15 a board member of he Batish

Boord of Film Clossification ond the London legacy
Cevelopment Corporation o fustee for the BBC Trust, a

member of the Court of Govemors of the Unrversity of the

Adts and chair of the Islington Arts and Media School Trust
She wos a Men-execulive Drector o the Department for

Cllure, Medio and Sport and a previcus member of the

Nahonal Employment Panel and London Skills and
Employment Board  Sonita won the Cadion Aulticuliural

Achievement Awo.d for TV and Rodio 1 2002 and 15
fellow of the Royal Society of Arls and the Radio Academy
She was awarded an OBE for services to broadcastng n

November 2003

F0 BLLISONMN Compony Secrelory P

John Elhison, &1 vsas opponted Company Secretary of
ECNG in February 1996

N Member of the Nominatens
Commities

R Nember of the Remunerction
Commilige

A Member of the Audit Committee

P Member of the Pensions Commutes
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When we're asked what Archant is ‘all about’ the answer
i$ a simple one.

Customers are our top priority. Putting our customers first
is central to what we do. We aim to deliver products and
services that help them achieve their objectives, whatever
the format.

We are a community media business that brings together
buyers and sellers to do business with each other. We inspire
communities and they inspire us.

We believe in innovation. Without innovation we run the risk
of disappointing our customers and communities. We are
continuously developing our products and services to deliver
improved value.

"The capture and use of detailed and accurate data helps us
to achieve this. It allows us to develop products and features
as well as provide insight to the benefit of our advertisers.

And finally people. Investing in the right people and
developing their skills and expertise will produce a more
effective, satisfied and engaged workforce. This performance
culture is core to our future.

The following pages explore how all of these work towards

2

fulfilling Archant’s vision for the future - inspiring communities.




LR Jason
Vince, Andrew
Denny and
Matt Smith

Inspiring a

performance culture

Bullding a performance culture 1s at the heart of Archant's strategy, and
embedding a new culiure in the Company's sales force has seen results

CREATING A PFRIORMANCE
culture involves employing
the right people and investing
to develop knowledge,
confidence and capabilities
“We wane all our employees to
enjov and believe in what they
do,” savs chief execunive
Adran Jeakings “We also want
them to teel valued by the
Companv and our customers ”
Archant launched s Sales
Academy 1n Norfolk in 2011,
rolling out across the business
during 2012 Andrew Denny,
general classified sales
manager, Archant Norfolk, 1s
convinced 1t has given his team

a competitive advantage

“The Academy has helped seatf
develop their ability to deliver
excellent service to our
adverusers ”

The Academy aims to improve
Archant’s sales performance by
establishing a robust sales
process and desveloping skilis
forindhividuals “It teaches sales
psvchology and the importance
of the call structure,” says
Andrew “As well as giving sales
staff a better understanding of
the Group's product range, the
traiming helps them understand
clients” business needs and
values

Through engaging in
structured conversations with
customers we ger to know
their needs and prionities We
can then put together a
creative package which we
discuss This helps build trust
and opens cross-selling and up-
selling opportunities As a
result, we have seen an
improvement in productivicy "

Andrew points to a year-on-
vedr increase in revenues from
classified print ads 1n Norfolk
The average value of orders in
Norfolk tor onhne business
direceory LocalSearch24 has
also 1ncreased

Frontline expernence
Archant's sales teams have
embraced the

Sales Academy tramning,
with some nolable results
Matt Smith ond Jason Vince
are part of the general
classifieds sales team
covenng Archani’s
localSearch24 online
business directory “The
training 1s @ greor
mesiment,” says Mat,
who also covers print
clossified It hos heloed

me develop my product
knowledge and strengthen
relationships with my
clents Now, I can put
together better proposals
that reafly meet their needs
~ thus adds value 1o our
service

“As a resull, many of my
key clients increcsed their
spend in 2012 parhcvlory
with repect orders This has
helped me exceed my
largets, increase my
revenue every month ard

double it over the year and
achieve a consistent level
of performance s also
greal lo know that chents
apprecicte and trust our
advice *

Jason agrees "The
trairming 15 wformative,
engaging and well
structured  Our clienis
value it oo - as evident 1n
their Increcsed renswal
rates The team is clso
seeing increased revenyg,
which 15 great for morale *

Coaching is vital
“Continuous coaching 1s cntical
for ongoing development,”
adds Andrew “Regular
sessions help our sales seaff
apply the knowledge gained
in traiming "

Andrew has created what he
calls a “high chaitenge, high
support culture” for his team
“Evervone makes three
‘commitments to change’
These become the focus of
monthly discussions At the
same time, we work on
creating a posienve mood for
selling and giving our staff the
confidence to make the calls *

s archant co uk




Targetng affluent
communihes under
The Resident banner

Since joimng Archant London
as managing director in Januarv
2012, Will Hattam has builta
strong leadershup team for the
London magarsines business
This included recruiting five
ralented individuals with the
necessary expertence and
vision to drve the business
forward

“The market we operate
in has become increasingly
compeunve This requires
anew ngour in how we
operate,” savs Will “Quute
simply we need the best
people, products and plans

Magazine

in order to achieve our
objectives

“We are retreshing our
products across the capital and
taking them to market with
compelling plans We are
deseloping our digital
proposition, with mobile apps
to accompany our improsed
products We are also launching
new products targecing affluent
commumnities under The Restdenr
banner

“We are looking at other
aspects of our London media
portfolio too,” he says “For
nstance, we have converted

LR David Allen, Helen Richmend, Tony Litife, Vicky Mayer and Eddie Pearce

+ archonl co uk

management feam

four of our newspapers into
quarter-told publications with
greacly increased discnbution,
which has worked very well
(see page 21 tor full story) In
digital, our London avdience
increased significantly during
2012 with growth for Landon2d
and our individual newspaper
websites

“Our um,” concludes Will,
“15 to deliver compelling content
for our communitics Content
that inspires audhence
engagement and creates new
opportunities for our business
customers

VICKY MAYER

EDITOR IN CHIEF,
ARCHANT MAGAZINES,
LONDOMN

What attracted

you to join Archant?

| wanted lo work with a respected
Company who produce and
pubhsh fist class ‘freemivm’

tiles in London

What skills and
experience do you bring?
I come from @ background of
women's Consumer Mmagozines
As well as ediing vanous tiles

! have also crected, developed
and launched new magazines

What excites you about
your new role?

[ove the buzz of London and how
it has become cne of the world's
lop cihies 1o lve ond work

| want to bung this excitement fo
cur pertiolio of magazines and use
my position constantly 1o improve
our tiffes menth by month and
lounch new ttles in 2013 too

%@ Our aim

is to deliver
compelling
content for our

communities®9




Customers at the core

Archant aims o provide captivating and relevant content for the communities
it serves by engaging with local audiences and selecting the most
appropriate channels It also works with clients to create compelling
communications that help them achieve their commercial goals

INVES HING IN | HE creative,
editorial and technological
shalls of its emplovees enables
Archant to develop new wayvs
1w inspire the Lommumiies
1L senes

Archant Speciahist, through
its publication The English
Garden, put these skills into
pracuce in 2012 with the
creanion of a direct sales app
for Thompson & Morgan, the
UK's lurgest online plant and
seed store “We have loval
readers who are passionate
thout gardening  sasvs editor

18

Tamsin Westhorpe, “so1t1sa
perfect march ”

Archant Speciahist’s digial
team has developed a number
of mobile apps tor ws chents,
so offering one o Thompson
& Morgan was a logical step

“Traditionatly, Thompson
& Morgan issues a series of
printed brochures, changing its
plant selection with each
season Thev had never vsed
apps before — and neicher had
The English Garden — so this
was a new idea for both of us
Above all we were determined

to create something interesting
thar would encourage people
to bus cthe planes ”

The result was *100 Great
Plang Ofters’ with 10 sections
detnling differenc plane rvpes,
each featunng 10 greae
discounted offers — nearly all
exclusive to the app

Murturing team spirit
Archanr Lifestvle’s digital
development manager, James
Parfict, worked closels with
Tamsin on developing the
concept and led che technical

team “Chris Scarle, our digital
magasines mandger, set up the
app so it would run on Apple
and Android mobile devices
Account manager Kim Lews
worked closelv with Dennis
Rogers, our production
manager whose team designed
each app page so the layout
was customer friendly We
used Thompson & Morgan's
photos but selected new fonts
and created clear plant symbols
and *buy-now’ buttons making
it intuttve to use We also
ensured people could order
plants direct ustng the ‘in-app’
browser”

Archant Speciahst launched
the app in early July “Google
Analytics shows us chat it has
received a steady level of
interese ”

Prometion has been through
The English Garden’s own app,
where the ‘100 Great Plant
Offers’ has featured as a free-
access supplement since
August “The English Garden
app has had 33,000 downloads.”
savs Chnis, “which tndicaces
an actively engaged audience
This has helped generate more
than 63,000 page views of the
Thempson & Morgan offer
since mid-August

“The app also has longevity,”
he explains, “because we can
simply update the offers as
the seasons change wichout
the need for additional
downloads We can send
alerts to our users telling
them about the new content
and specific offers ”

Orther Archant magazines.
such as The Englnh Home, have
also promoted the app Tamsin
dds “Thompson & Alorgan
ts naturally excited by its app,
and so are we It s not onls
groundbreaking for a seed
compans but also, as one of
the first ‘reader offers’ apps
tn our market, 1t 1s helping
change the percepuon of
Archant from being purels
4 print meda partner’
www theenghishgarden co.uk

ey archant €o vk




RICHARD AVERY
DIGITAL DIRECTOR
ARCHANT ANGLA

What attracted you

to join Archant?

Archan has on incredible
cennection with the communities 1t
serves and o history of great story-
teling Being gven the chance lo
use thase wo unique assets fo
create the best digital products in
the UX 1s an exciting challenge
and opporunity

What skills and
experience do you bring?
| started my career in sales and
marketing in 1990, going on to
become MD of Linguophone
where | introduced DRTV, online
language leaming and ecommerce
In 20051 relounched the Darly
Express, Sunday Express, Doy
Star and Daily Sicr Sunday
newspaper websites as well as
launching swes for OKI Mogozine
(m the UK and LS}, New and Star
magozine In 2008 | wos asked to
heod up Digilal and Development
for Themson Directones, helping
fransiion the business to a ¢cross
media appraach, farming
parterships with Google and Bing
ond infraducing rew products and
processes Prior to josning Aschant
| consulted across the regional
press, working closely with major
groups including Johnston Press,
Northcliffe, [hffe and Newsquest
on ther dgial advertsing srategies

What excites you about
your new role?

The chance to be involved in the
iransitan of strong newspoper and
magaare brands io frue communiy
orands which are chvays
availoble wherever, however and
whenever cur aud ence wanis fo
discover, communucaie, transact
and share

~w archant co uk

Creativity for clients

Following i1s successful launch in
2011, Archont Production Services
[APS} develoged a new promotienat
tool tor chents in 2012 called
301dpr At the heait of the service
15 a comprehensive guide to
designing powerlul and effectve
cdverts thot also work with and
enhance Archont’s editoral content

APS produces chent adverising
tor around 70 Archant glossy
magazines each manth, in additon
lo 1ls newspapers and associated
websites It 1s olso responsible for
planning the layout of these
putlications to optimise the
presentation of stortes, pictures
and client services

“The APS team knows that
readers respond posiively to
engaging adveris,” says Kevin
Shelcot, director of publishing
services, "and that's why we aim lo
give business chents something very

Kevin Shelcott

different premum ads that stand out
in print and digital formais

"Our oublications prnt their
imoges at 300dp, so we colled
our new design service 301dps
to ndicaie cur desire to push the
creat /¢ boundanes The aim 1s fo
produce poweriyl vel costefiective
campaigns thal rewerd chents with
new customers while generating
higher revenues fo. Archont *

Breaking the rules
“The 301dpi tleam challenges the
convention of tradiancl advert
design and placement

“The 1dea 15 simple — the skill liesin
the execuion It involves combining
the 1deas cf an engaged dlient with
our tolented creative teams persuasve
sales copy and powerlul images
Qur am 15 10 generate the greatest
impoct by designing the adverhsing
page for moximum effect

APS hes shared the 301dp
guide acress the Group “We
wanted io show colleagues the
possibiliies for creating compelling
clent commumcations for alf our
medio channes,” says Kevin As o
resull, the designers now work more
closely with the regional soles teams
and their chents

They get to understand ecch
chent’s commercial and markehng
needs, from branding end messaging,
to calls 1o action and desired cos!s
of response This supports the work
of the sales leams who are keen to
demonstrote therr commitment to
clients by toking new 1deos 1o them

The results are caphivaing, ond
wfermative “Mecnwhile,” adds
Kevin, "our oudiences and clients
con see examples of the 301dm
teams amazing work across our
poriolio of magozines, rewspopers
and websiles every week ”




The “You, Me and
Archant’ propoution
provides advertsers
with a free, bespoke
marketing review

Thinking ditterently

ARCHAN Lit & HAS developed
1 new way of working with
advertisers to ensure they get
the best response for their
advertsing expenditure Paul
Stannard, Archant Lifestyle’s
operations director, explains
“We have alwavs been in the
business of helping our
advertising customers generate
the greatest rerurns from their
advertising 10 our products
“We have been working on
our sales processes wo find a
structured way ot caprunng the
client’s business needs in order
to Wdenufy the best marketng
mix From this we have
de:eloped our *You, Me and
Archant’ (1MA) proposition,
making the sales process about
*You' the customer, ‘\Ne’ vour
Archant contact, and ‘Archant’
as the porefolio of ntles and
products that can deliver the
best return to the customer ”
YMA provides customers
with a free, bespohe marketing
review “We ask prospecnive
adverosers questions abouc the
nature of their business, their
marketing needs, and their
customers Ve then prepare 4
comprehensi ¢ review, with
suggesnions for how Archane

Watch this space

“Prowviding businesses with volue for money advemsing that
generates a grect response 1s vital for our continued success
says Tim Thursion, managng director, Archant Westle

Regional

Lowse Pearson, cn cccoun: manager on Berkshire life
and Buckinghamshire Life set an excellent exomple of thts in
2012 Working wih otional soles director Guy Hanson
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can help them achteve their
objectives

“Bv understanding their
unique selling ponts and what
their customers are looking tor,
we can develop relevant
adverusing propositions  Better
targeting helps drive increased
response rates

®@OWe have
created a
real point of
difference in

the market99

YMA inctudes a fult eraining
programme for the sales team,
with an accrediation scheme
for individuals who quakhfy to
conduct the marketing review

The customer response has
been very posionve and earlv tests
show average YMA orders to be
worth significantly more than
the average of non-YMA sale

Archant Life 1s also running
a programme of seminars for
companies across the UK * We
ask similar questions about
therr markeung approach and

she created @ year long campmgn for Christopher Word,
an Englsh monufaciurer of cffordoble luxwry waiches
“Chnstopher Word nihally bought six months of lulbpage
adverhsing fo bulld brand ewareness In reum for o futther six
months at compeiiive rotes, they will poy Archant o share of
the revenie generated from the sale of specific oroducis
We are very excited by this ground brecking approcch and
look forword 10 seeng the resulis 1t generates

discuss the benefits of longer-
term campaigns with repeat
advertising Finally, we follow
up with a compelhng reason
to use Archant

“The seminars enable us to
cover a large number of
customers very quichly
The goal 1s to encourage
advertsers to sign up for a
long term campaign rather than
taking a piccemeal approach
[f they like what thev see
and hear, they are more Likely
to mmvest some ot therr
advertsing budget in our
products Evidence suggests
that muluple nsertions of
adhvertisements 1mpros cs
response for customers ”

Paul’s team has now tested
IMIA nsiregions “Customers
tell us our approach has helped
theiwr business Meanwhile, our
emplovees sav 1t has empowered
them o deliver a better service

“We have created a real point
of difference in the market,”
concludes Paul “Atthe same
ume, increased forward
bookings are making production
plannuing easier Bv adopting a
customer-centric approach we
are strengthening both our and
our customers businesses ™

DARRON Mc LOUGHLIN
AUDIENCE DEVELOPMENT
DIRECTOR,

ARCHANT ANGILIA

What attracted

you to join Archant?
Aschans has en excellent reputation
within the indusiry making the
decision to join an easy ore | was
impressed with the outlock of the
senior team which demonstiated

a redl focus on customers ond
community involvement

What skills end
experience do you bring?
| have aver 23 years’ experence
in regional press of Nerthchife
and lotterly Johnsion Press Two

of these years were in @ generct
management role with the res, n
the circulation sales function 1n
group and local roles, expenence
that allews me to see opportuniies
ot both levels In my previous
posiiion | developed subscriptions
Inewspaper digital and bunci'es)
and a cohesive central flocai
stucture both of which developed
skills in change management,
subscriptions ond dalcbase
marketing all of which are relevant
In My current pOsLIon

What excites you about
your new role?

The potential, opportuniies and
challengss chead of us We
have great products, fantashc
people, strong custemer focus
and a real enthusiasm lo engoge
with local communities which

t believe should be ot the heart
of everything we do

www archant ¢o ux




Content and delivery

Archant 1s committed to creating new and innovative products for local
and speciatinterest communities in a format that 1s right for the audience

IN RESPONSE 1O

the chalienges

of a compettne

€M Ironment,
Archant London has
been refreshing us
exisung porttolio
and launching new
products that stand
our in the market

Reshaping
our future
Archant re-launched
four of 1ts weekly
newspapers for parts
of Kent and Essex, in a new
quarcer-fold formar and
giving chem a new features-
led editorial treatment Tony
Lattle, Archant London’s
commercial director, led the
project with support from
Chris Career, acting editor in
Kent, and Richard Griffich,
sales director for Kent

Chnis explained the new
editonal strategy for the
pubhications ‘As well as giving
OUF CUSLOMETS MOTe ENgAgINg
and relevant content, we
dectded to present 1t to them
in a new compact shape, so 1t
looks and feels distinctly
different from the competition
The news now (omes 1n bite-
sized chunks, making it easter
tor our busy readers to keep up
with local events

“These smaller, punchier
publications are fearture-led,
focusing on positive stories
about real people and local
firms 1n the community ”

Tony Lattle adds that the
new tormac publications are
not standalone “Qur reporters
make full use of a range ot
media channels to senve their
communities They biild hnks
between on and oftline media
by using social media tools
such as Tewter, Facedook and
Streetlefe, not just to promote
news stories bue also to
wdentity them ™

“Srreetlife 15 proving useful
for our new hyper-local citles,”
agrees Chris Our news teams
use 1t to hold discussions with
local communities which ches

then feed into our print editons
This user-generated content
muakes people feel more engaged
with the news — which in turn
Lreates a great environment for
local advertisers ™

Live Local goes live
Archant London also launched
nine A5-formart hyper-local
publications into selected areas
ot Essex, Kent, and London
under the Live Local brand
These community publications
give local businesses a cost-
effective way to reach cheir
core audiences

Edutor,
Peter Le Riche,
explams “The
magasimes
provide towns
and disteicts with
street-by-street
coverage thar
celebrates
hfe 1n thewr
communiries

“Some of
these places are
new territories for
Archant, so 165 4
great wav 1o expand
our coverage The
hs per-local focus
also grves our
feporters more
opportunitics to spend
ume with local acaviey

groups, clubs, schools
and businesses,
understand the 1ssues
they face 1 more
decal ™
Peter has receved
good feedback trom
readers and
community leaders
and Tonv 1s pleased
with the posinive
responsc from local
adverusers “Sole
traders and small
5€FYV 1ICE COMPANLES NOW
have a platform that enables
them to connect with finelv
targeted local audiences at
ompetitive rates, so making
their imited advertising
budgets work much harder
for them ™

Hyper-foca,
hyper-tuxury

Different markets require
different formats co reflect

the nature of the audience and
the adverusers That's why the
London magazines team has
launched a range of tunury,

hy per-local magasines for
afftuent areas of London
under T#¢ Resident brand

These high-quality
publications feature relevant
local aruicles that reflect
the lises of thetr readers
“Alchough thev are free,” savs
publisher Helen Richmond.
“they have very high
production values, putting
them on a par with many
teading fashion magazines
and helping them stand out
in the compenuve London
‘freemium’ market

ONews
now comes

in bite-sized
chunks99

“Qur first atle, Fulham
Resident, which launched 1n
September, dehvers 10 500
free copics to upmarket
residenuial and business
addresses High-profile
contnibutors include chef
Marco Pierre White and food
writer Tom Parker-Bowles

“VVe are able wo offer
premium advertisers a
ughely targeted audience

that 15 interested

in and motvated

by lunury brands
“The process of

developing these

new titles and their

dudiences has helped

IMpros e our
relationship with
adverasers,”
concludes Helen
“We have become
mare constltanve
and creative wnour
wpproach YWe now
offer business
CUSEOMESS a winning
combination of
engaged audiences,
great features,
compelhng

wh ertisements and

areractive sponsorship
opportunicies
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WAYNE MORGAN
DIGHTAL DIRECTOR,
ARCHANT LIFESTYLE

What attracted

you to join Archant?

With my previous experence,

! saw the perfect opportuaity 1o
get into a srong Group with both
newspapers and magozings, a
perfect unien for me

What skills and
experience do you bring?
| have worked in media my whaole
career, starting i ad sales n
1996 for a newspaper group In
Gloucestershire, | moved inlo my
hrst ehgtal role n 1997 and
haven't locked back My dgilal
perfclio srefches 1o more than
750 websties and mobile
plotforms  The products | have
worked on end un have ranged
from small regionot news siles, to
national news and hully global
B2B products

What excites you about
your new role?
The mobife space ond whai 1t
means for the next phase for
publishers This 15 a genuine
game changer My sector just
doesn't stop innovating, | have o
lot of digiial expenence and | am
learning, every day We conlinue
10 1dentfy new solutions

Expernience and skifls are
growing rapidly for all staff at
Archani, working with them 1o
help them develop their brands
15 balliant fun

| am a publisher at the core,
I want to publish beautiful
products, loved by theuwr
consumers, with equally hoppy
advertisers that provide @ genuine
return on Invesiment

As far os | om concerned,
| hove the best job i Acchant
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Finding niche markets
Archant Lifesile has a rack record of producing
successiul “oneshot bockozines’ {oneoff premium
mogezines} and related mobile apps that appedl 1o
special interest communities Sometimes these ventures
ideniify miche markets with sufficient interest to suppor o
regular publicaton Wild Travel, launched by Archons
Specialist in 2012, 1s an excellent example

Wild Travel 1s the only UK travel magozine dedicated
to wildlife destinations Ecch ssue features o se'ection of
the world's best wildliie watching experiences os well
as wildhfe destination guides, photography workshons,
exper: travel advice, and the latest wildhie and
censervolion news

Iis fourch resulied kom crechve collcboration between
Specichsts editonal and edvertising leams “No one
else hod put these two populer sactors togethes like
this " says Matt Havercroft, editor of Wild Travel and
Discover Brtam, the UK's leading histonc travel
magazing “The Discover Briaun team had been testing
various markets with bookazines VWe shen looked for
opporiunities In areas we didn't usually cover Jomie

Bolion and Grceme Asher bom cur adveriising leam
suggested comining wildfe with wavel They hod
worked on the BBC Wildlife mogozine, so they knew
the seclor and that no one else wos catering specihically
for the waldhfe revel community ~ they 1dentinied the
perfect niche opportunity ”

Capitahsing on the success of The world's most
omazing wildlfe encounters , Wild Travel appeared
in 2012 as o quorterly magozine Demand fiom
audience and adveriisers saw if go bimonthly
“We found we were meeting o real reed n the market
Now we publish 25,000 copies an 1ssue for UK and
oversecs customers

Rather than crecting o websiie, Acchant sesearched
the market and bought wildhfeextra com, an established
sector brand specialising i wildlife and conservanen
news “The sile and mogazine complement each other,”
says Matt "Wildiife Extra has 155,000 unique
wistiors monthly and eround 12,000 subscribats
1o Its enewsletizr, and we have the skills to increase
the site’s ravel content
www wildhfeextra com

~ere grchant ca b




A pertect match

ARCHANE PLACLS GREAL
inportance on understanding
us customers and developing
relesang, subject-spectific
platforms A good example

15 WeddrngSite co ik, which
lnched in 2012 The new
site offers brides and grooms
4 platform for orgamsing their
big dav efficientlv online
Managing director Pettrina
Keogh explains “VWeddimgSire
uses saphisticated technology

{NEW TALENT

PETTRINA KEQGH
MANAGING DIRECTOR,
WEDDINGSITE

What attracted

you to [oin Archant?

| thrve on the exciement and
opportunily that leading @ startup
business brings Being owned by
Aschant, WeddingSie gives me the
best of both warkds in @ new role
a chance to grow the business as
well as having invalucble support
through Archant’s customer reach,
market expenence and internal
processes that many startups

con only dreom of

What skills and
experience do you bring?
| have 17 years’ excenence n
digital develcpment acrass web
and mobile siraegy. production,
developrent, marketing, and
monetischon |'ve worked with
large redwa corporates nduding
The Times, The Te'egraph ond
Caat ond digial skartups including
Looksmort and Gurgle com

What excites you about
your new role?

Beung oble to make o difference
from doy one, cnd see @ new
business grow and maure under my
leadership 1s the key crving force
for me The growth and conhauous
product development opportunties
of WeddingSiie oe very erergising,
but mos! of alf I'm excited cbout
becoming a leader In cur market

to bring together all che
wedding planning elements in g
single user experience It makes
acouple’s hfe easier by helping
them to manage bv automaring
the key tasks involved in
planning a wedding”

According to a recent OnePoll
suney the aserage UK couple
spends 200 hours planning
their wedding and 40 per cent
of tchem think the process 1s
more stressful than their job
* By providing budget planners,
‘to-do’ hists, ematil alerts and
real-time status updates onhine,
NeddingSte makes the entire
process less stressful for
evenone invohed ”

Pettrina understands the
unportance of offernng adverusers
highly targeted communications
“We attract engaged couples
and planners who are acnively
organtsing their wedding
Alcthough the basic service 1v
free, people have to register
to use our services 1 he data
people give us when they
register helps to provide
a better service

“Our budger tracker 15 very
detailed and cells us how much
they plan to spend on virtually
crverv aspect of the event
Orcher tools, such as the ‘to-do’
list und personalised wedding
plan, generate equallv valuable
information — because users
are recording and tracking real
information in real ume

Back L R Yenan Wang, Noomi Wilkinson,
Lucy Dancer, Veronica Ballard

Front L-R James Holding, Geeta Randev,
Petinna Keogh, Elmer Zinkhann

* This combination of rich
daca and users in the "bu-
now’ stage incredses the value
of our offer to adverusers,
which helps generate high
vields for Archant Aswell us
MOTE ALLUrIEE LArgeting, we
have a rapidiy growing audience,
with over 30,000 weddings
registered on the sue

Creative coliaboration
“UeddimgStre brulds on Archane’s
suceessful presence in the
weddings marker,” adds Serge
Taborin, digital sentures
chrecror ‘[c helps users chrough
a very exciung burt also
expensi e ume in ther lives,
and this builds our audience
relattonships I also offers
adverusers a host of targered
and highly effecuse ways of
reaching couples at hev stages in
the wedding planning process *
Pettring 1s working closely
with teams from Archant’s
portfolio of regional wedding
shows and bnide magasines on
LrOsSS-Promotion] activities
“We are sharing data with the
other titles, such as how much
couples intend to spend This
helps our colleagues plan their
arucles and events ™
WedddngStre 1s helping extend
Archants reach *Thisis a
natonal platform so, although
we can targer adveres by localiy
and subject, we are dlso
attracting national xdvertisers
This adds an extra dimension
to Archant’s relationship with
1its audhiences and commerciat
pareners ”
www weddingsite.co.uk

MARK WRIGHT
MANACING DIRECTCR,
ARCHANT SPECIALIST

What attracted

you to join Archant?

The challenge of working in the
publishing indusiry and the new
digital opporunities that we are
developing

What skills and
experience do you bring?
t have led large media dvisions
prmarly in the radic and digital
seclars | have expenence in
developing existing brands loking
new media products lo market and
buillding owardwinaing teams that
enjoy their work

What excites you about
your new role?

Working with professiongls who
are experts in their speciolist
flelds, expondmg ourf dlgllcl
plaforms and helping to develop
our exishing print titles end buld
new, relevant brands that will
complement the current portiolio
and grow the business




Zoe Francis-
Cox (feh)
and Mick
Hurrell
{right)

ARCHANT DiAl OGUE
( ELEBRAIED manv notable
successes 1n 2012 both with
current mulamedia contract
publishing clients, and in
securing new business across
a range of consumer, B2B
and membership sectors
Dulogue also delivered a
record commercial year, with
advertising revenues for 1ts
chent aeles breaking chrough
£2m for the first ume

Alick Hurrell, managing
director, reports on Dhalogue’s
diverse new client successes
“In carlv 2012 we relaunched
a lifestv le-focused magasine
for Bnush Showjumping
Building on our equestrian
publishing strengths, we
also published the 2042
Horse of the Year Show
programme later 1n the vear ’

Jount pirches with colleagues
from Archant Specialist
resulted in the Dualogue
publishing team winning the
maonthlv membership utle for
the Clav Pigeon Shooting
Assoviarion and new air safery
publicatsons for pilots for the

Civil Aviauon Authoney Other
notable wins tor the Dialogue
team included the members
magasine for The Briush
Motor Racing Associatton,

4 NEw mMagazing to promote
the Arts Council’s ‘Artsmark’
scheme to schools, the
onboard magasine for Brictany
Ferries and the destination
gwide for Visit Essex

Internarionat ophthalmie
manutacturer, Essilor
appointed Dialogue to produce
its quarterhy B2B magasine for
independent opuicians Mick
Hurrell explais “VWach Essilor,
it has been vital o constantly
prove the magazne's worth - a
reader survey conducted with
1ssue one has proved the value
of the customer magasine to
s audience, and that's what
we're all about ”

“Our skill lies in creating
content that meets our clients’
exact performance KPIs for
their branded publication,
purposed tor consumpoion
in the most relevant media
— from magazines o apps,”
explains publishing director

®®In 2012, Dialogue’s research
provided its clients with some

outstanding

%oof of
effectiveness
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Zoe Francis-Cox

“Qur success dern es fram
how we construct and present
it, 50 that our chient publications
connect and tesonate with their
specific rarger audiences

“Dralogue puts the reader at
the heart of all its publications
Key to this s the audience
rescarch that we carry out
on behalf of our clients We
estabhsh audience profiles,
quality percepions, refes ance,
content and media preferences,
and action after reading ~
gathering detailed insight
on what makes readers tick
to inform our publishing
strategies it 1s a listening
process that takes us and
our clients on a journey ot
evolutton and continuous
product improyement, vear
after vear

In 2012, Dialogue's
audience research provided 1ts
chients with some outstanding
proof of effeceiveness For
example, a magasine sunev
for a retail chent showed that
96 per ceni of respondents had
been inspired to trv something
as & fesult of reading about e
in their magazine Some 95
per cent said they knew more
about the brand atter reading
i and the same rated the tone
+nd picch of content as *just
right’ “Impressive figures in
therr own nighe,” Mick Hurrell

MIKE SHERRARD
MANAGING DIRECTOR-
WEDDINGS AND
EXHIBITIONS,

ARCHANT UFESTYLE

What attracted

you to join Archant?

The opgortunity io build o new
dwsion within Archont tve events
complete our media offering,
complementing our existing
publications and growing digitel
products — to be at the vanguard of
the live imitative 1s hugely atroctve

What skills and
experience do you bring?
I've worked in media all of my
career My hme has been spent
predoninantly on lounching and
runming exhubiions across a
number of different markets,

big and small Hopelully this
expenence will have a posttive
effect on our growth

What excites you about
your new role?

The opportunity We hove the
nght people and the nght
products as well as a vast canvas
vpen which o pant growth
plans We atlso benefit from very
strong backing at a duector level,
both in enthusiasm and the
wallingness to nvest All these
components coming logether
ensure that exhibiions become

a significant part of Archant’s
offening to their customers in the
neor future

explains, “but we could also
demonstrate an uphfc ot four
to s1x per cent on these and up
o 11 per cent on other KPIs
from our benchmark research
the previous vear thar had
guded 2012 contenct plinning ”
Dialogue’s vear was rounded
off perfectlv when its
internacienal work for Harlev-
Dasidson Owner's Group won
Highlv Commended for Best
Cross-Meda Contene Markeung
Solution of the Year against
some of the world’s leading !
consumer brands in the CMA
content marketng awards

e ¢ tchont co vk




I .ocal focus

2012 saw the formation of a new editorial structure
and the launch of some new inihatives that bring
Archant even closer to its customers than before

by gefting into the heart of local communities

THE NEWSPAPER INDUSTRY IS
evohvng rapidly New digital
platferms and social media are
ZIVINE newspapers a range ot
new ways ko interact with
custormners and communities
who increasingly wane therr
own voices heard

“The fundamental principle
of storstelling has senved
Journalism well for over three
centunies,” says Norfolk editor-
in-chief Nigel Pickover ‘“The
big change has been tn how we
find these stories and report on
them — with new technologies
enabling us to make them
more engaging

*We capture the action
in photos and videos on our
phones, and submit mulu-
media reports by email to our
websites and papers \hile the
wntren word remains as
important a5 ever. the interactn e
nature of new media has added
a fresh dimension to our
audience relationships ™

This 1s a really exciting time
to be a journahist, agrees
Suffolk ediror-m-chief, Terry
Hunt, “wich multiple channels
enabling us to tell our stories
o wider audiences Qur
reporters can break a story in
seconds through social medu,
within a mwnute or two on our
websites and, while keeping
these channels updated, write
a full version, complete with
reaction and analysis foc our
newspapers

*Me saw 4 great example of
this 1 Suffotk when Ipswich
Town Football Club parted
company with cheir manager,
Paul Jewell Our sports wricers
broke the storv chrough Frerrer,
hours before the club made the
offical announcement Thev
then followed this with hive
updates on our websites and
amore detailed report 1n our
newspapers

integrating sodial media
* People consume informazton
where and when they please,™
ddds Nrgel ncluding on the

S AL OICen o uk

Newsroom structure
Archant Anghc announced a rew editonal stucture in 2012, including the
appornirent of wo editors inchief, Terry Hunt and MNigel Pickover, for uis
newspoper operations 1n Suffolk and MNorlolk

Terry, who has been the EADTS editor for 17 years, now also edils e
loswich Stor and oversees Sulfolk s other weekly tifles Nigel, whe was
the Ipswich Star's ediior for 16 years, 1 now responsible for editing the
EDP and Evening News os well as overseeing the Noifolk weeklies

In addion, Tim Wilkams moved hom edior of the Evening News to
group editor for the MNorolk weeklies and development edutor providing
support acioss Anglia Nigel, Terry and Tim, who report to Bob Crawley,
Anglia publishing director ogether have a complete overview of the
edronol content of Archant Angha's newspapers

“Evenshing we do 15 predica'ed on telling great sones ard oresenting
them in engaging ways ° says Bob “Whether in pnnt o, digital media,
our audiences must find them relevant and delwered in o way that suits
them Nigel, Teny ond Tim ensuze cur pepers remain ¢t the heart of their
communtties with o strong focus on local news *

®®Excellent journalism
remains firmly at the top
of Archant’s agenda%®

move using our mobile sites
And they can respond
instantancously, adding cheir
own words and images — then
share the storv wich fniends on
soctal media, so widening our
circle of influence

“We are parucularly excrred
by the emerging medium
of web and hyper-local TV
The launch of our Mustard TV
platform will give our reporters
4 new way to engage with an
audhence that 1s hungry for
local, informative and
entertaining news This,” he
concludes, “1s an enchralling
time to be part of a mulu-
channel newsroom.”

“Good journahsts love
wrinng stocies,” says Terry,
“particularly when thev know
thousands of people will read
them, and the immediacy of
thgital media gives the process
an added buzs We are also
engaging more closely with
our audiences through services
such as Srreetfife, which reallv
come mto thetr own on big
public occasions or during
important local events

“Qur readers provided
thousands of fantastic pictures
covenng the Diamond Jubilee
celebranions and the Olympic
torch relay We have pubhshed
a large number of these photos
onthine and 1n prnt = and used
some to create tantastic front-
page stores By encouraging
people to contnbute in thes
wav, we build v alued and
trusting relanionships with our
customers

*As a resulr, audiences
feel that thev are part of
cur operations Thus reflects
a broad shifc in the medua
away from top down, editorial
tuchontv to a more creatve
and mteracn e way of sharing
informacion ™
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FIONA RYDER
MANAGING DIRECTOR,
MUSTARD TV

What attracted

you to join Archant?

Hed Archonl's Jocal TV bid and
wos impressed by the sirength ond
depth of Archant’s local medio
provision and 11s posiion as the
definive souice of local rews ond
information for many communities

A taste for Mustard
Archant continued 1o develop its multi-channel,
commurnity focused sirategy in 2012, by winning
an Ofcom hicence to wn a new local TV station in
Norwich Mustard TV launched online in earty 2013
and will be availlable on Freeview in the autumn
“This 1s @ natural progression i Archant's medio-
neutral strategy,” says Bob Crawley, Angla publishing
director "Qur objective s to deliver mspinng and
relevant community content, using the most effecive
channels fo engage with cur audiences
As Mustard TV mancging director, Frona Ryder
explains “Mustord TV vision 1s to be o community
osset o local broodcaster that reflects real lfe We
will work with ccademic institutions, businesses and

production componies fo deliver an authentic local
service, made by and for the people of Norwich

“Mustard TV hos o firm foundanon on which to build
a suceessiul commeraial TV service for Norwich and the
surrounding area 1t can draw on Archant’s established
media resources, especially its highquality journalism
and exsting media channgls At the same hme, This
dynamic new plafform will offer increased
opportuniies to Archanf’s business cusiomers

Johnny Hustler, managing director of Archant
Angha, adds “We are delighted o have this chance to
further strengthen our ties wath the people of Norwich
and Norfolk It enables us to extend the veluable
service we provide through our existing print and digital
chonnels *

What skills and
experience do you bring?
t am o former commercials
producer with aver 18 years’
semviof management expenence of
bulding oudiowsual businesses in
the refall, enferianment and new
medha sectors | have significant
expenence of video production,
associa‘ed commercal development
ond TV chonnel opesahons,
especiclly n new ond earlystoge
businesses

What excites you about

Word on the street

In JUNE 2012, Archant entered
1nto an innovacve partnership
wich streethfe com, a hyper-local
social network This enabled
streethfe com to extend its
service across Archant’s print
and dsgital portfolio

Within six months, 1t has
added 25,000 users and
established 700 new
communities It haseven
recerved a boost from Stephen
Fry, who encouraged his five
mullion Tarrrer followers to join
the network Just as importantly,
the site has become a valuable
resource for Archant’s news
deshs, delivening fresh content
and enabling reporters wo engage
more effectnelv with their local
community

The nemweork s unique

advancage,” savs Nina
Whittaker head of communities
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at streethfe com, “1s that it
bridges the online and offline
worlds, making a real difference
1n local communmities Recent
conversations on the site have
helped save threatened public
senvices recall local history,
expose local crimunals, reunite
people with lost pets and
encourage activities ”

Michael Adkins, editor
of Archant’s Barfug &
Dagenfam Post, 1s champmoning
streetlife com across London
*It’s a strong addition to our
editonal armoury It enables
us, through polls and
discussions to communicate
with local people on a range of
topics As a result, our news
team has denafied breshing
news, ganed feedback on
planned festures and idenufied
topical focal 15sues’

your new role?

To be at the start of the local

TV revolution in the UK while
developing @ brond new
broadeashng dvision for Archant
15 a huge honour and a very
exciting opporiumty Mustard 1s
a new chapter in Archant’s 160-
vear history and o natural part
of s evoluon

Archant Anglia has been
VeIV active (N promoting
streerfife comin print and online
As a result, Norfolk became
the first Archant region to hit
5,000 acuve users Meanwhile,
Archant South West guicky
bult some of the most
engaged communities and
achteved the highest level of
wser acuvity in ies first month
with a one-line storv posted
on sireeilife com that developed
mnito 4 local campagn in the
Exmonth Journal

“The rapid growth n our
vibrant communities 15 an
excellent achievement,”
savs Marr Boves, founder
and CEOQ of streetiife com,

“and one made possible by
Archant’s contnued
enthusiasm and support ™
www streethfe.com
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Lonneon2d con 15 ARCHANT'S
digieal-only news-media brand
serving London’s diverse
communities and visitors As
well as hosting content from
Archant’s 14 London-focused
newspapers, it has a small,
dedicated editorial team and
a nerwork ot hand-picked
contributors “Together. they
provide comprehensne
coverage of local news,
entertainment, sport and
other useful intormaction

Since 1ty launch in January
2011, London2d com has grown
1ts audrence to over 850,300
unigue visitors 1 month,
making it the second largest
London-centric news site

* The growch of Loudon24 com
and Archant’s other London-
tocused websites 18 testament to
the quakhiry of our journalism,”
savs Paul Hood, digital director
tor Archant London Tt also
reflects the team’s remendous
work in designing and des eloping
produces that make our
content more decessible and

~avarchat ¢o uk

enjovable to read

“The skills and dedication
of the team have established
London2d as a credible and
authoritatn e news-media
brand for London As such,
nattonal and tnternational
newspapers now follow up
on manmy o our stones ™

In our readers’ pockets
In May 2012, Lendon24
launched a free app that offers
users the ulumate mobile ity
guide Called " WvCrnWay
London24, it)1s the resultof a
partnership between Archane
and WCayWay Tt provides
customers with a wealth of
informanion at their fingerups
whenever thev need 1t

The app processes and
curares daca tcom over 30
spectalist mint-apps, and
Presents L In one easv-to-1se
discovery tool The min-apps
provide a range of detaled,
locavion-based, real-ime and
usetul intormaton that s
nerer more than four chcks—s

®®The skills and dedication
of the team have established
London24 as a credible and
authoritative news-media

brand for London39
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—away One muni-app enables
users to check tratfic feeds,
including hive camera images
of Londen's busiest read
intersections, another helps
locate the nearest parking spot
“A third quickly lists the

nearest facthries to vou, such
a5 a cotfee shop™ explainy
Paul “The lList s complete with
addresses, phone numbers and
even m some cases, photos of
the premises The app will
then present a map showing
direcuions from where vou are
to the place you choose

Ocher min-2pps help users
discover what’s an at the
nearest cinema, and the oime
and location of concerts and
spectal events Since the app

15 tree to download, people
are keen to share it with their
triends and colleagues ™
MyCinWay LondonZd helps
users to find things on ctheir
doorstep they never knew
ewsted and to navigate new
and unfamiliar pares of the
capital  We are exated to
be able to offer this
comprehensive urban
discover tool for free,”
concludes Paul It enables
anyone 1 London to explore
and enjoy the capital in
unprecedented ways Itis also
a natural extension of Archant’s
London24 brand and s nission
to serve our communities with
relevant informacion ™
www.landon24.com

onnecting customers

ARCHANT ANGLIA HAS
organised manv prestigious
local awards and events for
decades, but works hard to
develop each event to ensure
they don't become stale Good
ideas and show formats are also
shared across the business

A good example of
developing events 1n 2012
included adding ‘circus-sevle’
enterrainment o the sell-out
Easrern Datly Press Business
\wards o add some thearre
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to the ceremony

Archane Norfolk’s Future 50
event, which celebrates and
supports the countv’s brighrest
entreprencurs and 15 now In us
third vear, was successfully
rolled out in Suffolk

“It 15 imporzant that we
der elop our events and share
good ideas Thisis part ot the
fabric ot what we do as a
community media group,” savs
Bob Crawles, who became
Archant Anglia s publishing

director in May 2012

‘T'hese awards and events
help cement Archant’s place in
the commumty,” explains Gan
Attfield, relanonship manager
at Archant Anglia

“The anards are industrv
facing, recognising talent and
suceess However, they also
make effectin e markeung and
PR materal for nominated
businesses, not least because
our audiences trust the
endorsement trom our brands

ROBERT KIDD
FINANCE DIRECTOR,
ARCHANT LIFESTYLE

What attracted

you to join Archant?
Archant has a strong repulation

in the heart of the community

The epporiunily lo work with the
Company as it evalves ond grows
15 a reol privilege

What skills and
experience do you bring?
| have worked m finarce for more
than 15 years, in several different
areas Allhough medio 15 o new
venture for me, | hope to bring a
range of expenences and good
practice smihotives 1o the role

| beheve 1t 1s criheal that inance
be a true commercial partnes,
veorking wathia the business to
provide quality analytics, good
commercial acumen, and
approprate process and control

What excites you about
your new role?

The size and scope of the
oppotiuny 13 really exciing
We are operahing in a
chollenging economic
environment, and every penny
counts lo the business and cur
customers We will need to be
creatve and invest wisely s
a balancing octl
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$6Archant
is enhancing
its ability to
capfure
detailed and
reliable user

data®9®

Datais the
engine for
arowth

Capturing and using detalled,
accurate and relevant data 1s
critical to building a performance
culture and developing customer-
centric products and services

ARCHAN T 15 FADEAING rapidly
from a newspaper pubhisher
into a multi-channel community
media company In this new
world of numerous and diverse
qudiences, clear customer
segmentation based on accurae
data 1s the crincal currencey for
acdhernsing

* Adveruisers increasingly
want to reach only those
people chat matter o them ™
sdvs Seree Faborin digital

v~y 0 chant co vk

ventures director, ‘ meaning
it 15 vital we have accurace
information on our audience
That 15 why Archant 15
enhanctng 1ts ability to capture
detailed and reluable user daca,
signmificantly improving
understanding of our
audiences and related trends,
while making our products
more atcractinve o xdvertisers
“It also enables us to make
better decisions based on tacts,

maximise reventes from
existing operations, idenufy
new opportunities and
Improve customer service
Archant serves two groups
of customer 1ts audrence and
s ¢hients “We are currently
running two data projects,”
savs Serge “One 1s profiling
our online and otftine
audiences, while the other has
been looking at adverusing
spend, specifically by small
and medium-sized enterprises
(SMEs), in our local markers ™
For this project, which
started tn July 2012, Archant
engaged the services of Borrell
Assoclates, a leading US
research consultancy that
speciahises in tracking local
adverusing trends
“The purpose of this projece
15 to generate data-driven
analysis of how SMEs i our
regtons promote themselves
through different media
channels, and how thes plan
1o do so in the tuture As well
as helping us structure our
senices 1o improse profitabiliey
it will provide a clearer view
of the compeutive landscape
and help us beachmark our
pertormance more accurateh "
Borrell Associates draws on
national commercial data from
vanous sources, including
private sunevs of several
thousand local SMEs
Consequenth, it has a
comprehensive hnow ledge of

every region and the kev drivers
behind ads eriising spending

‘Bv understanding the
business factors that influence
spending, Borrell Associates
can give us dCcurdate esamates
of what different tvpes of
business spends bv channel,”
savs Serge, “including pring,
onlime, mobile and directories
This will enable us to advise
chents on what their competitors
are likelv to be spending and
s0 establish a good working
refationship based on this
expertise

“In addition, we are now
able to target businesses chat
operate 1n higher spending
sectors and are a better fit for
Archant products ” .

Strengthening client
and community ties
Archant’s relationships with
1ts communities are criucal o
s commercial success To
understand how well 1t1s
managimg both sides of the
business, Katherine Silver,
head of markenng for Archant
Angla, arranged two research
projects in 2012 The first was
A mystery shopping exercise
with chients across the region,
covening all three business
centres — Herts & Cambs,
Suftolk and Norfolk

The second was an audience
engagement sunev that
focused on Norfolk following
the success ot a similar projece -
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+— for Suffolk 1n 2011

Overall, we wanted to
position our three business
centres as clearly ahead of
thewr competitors ”

Mystery shopping
Archane commissioned The
Mackman Group to conduct
this studv “Thes looked at a
range of factors relating to our

sales team’s overall approach
to relavionship buillding, savs
Katherine “These factors
were then measured 1gainst
our competitors

“We gathered the findings
tnto our new ‘Customer Furst’
handbook which contams a
range of suggesnions to help
our teams better senv e therr
customers It also expluns how

Archane can improv e its
standing n our regional
business communities

Customer engagement
Archant Angha’s customer
engagement survev focused
on understanding marker
percepuions of the EDP
brand “As well us surveving
consumers and emplovees,

we added advertisers ta
gain a 360° view of the
EDPn print, onling, ac
work and in the
communiy

“We used the research to
construct 4 brand
engagement model that
identifies kev brand drivers
and shows how they vary
across different consumer

Katherine Silver

Seeing the bigger picture
th 2012, Archant Lfestyle used results from the
Professional Publishers Association (PPA) Magmify
study and the Nationo! Readership Survey (NRS)
1o learn more about i1s recders ond the woy they
consume and respond 1o editoral and adveriising
n magazines

The Magmify study explored readers’ responses
to editorial and edverhsing in 96 different
mogazines, ncluding four Archant Life nitles ond
three Archant Specialist publicanons

The resulls provide o detailed understonding of
how readers interact with magazine content “This
tandmark study confirms that mogozine readers
are not only tughly receplive o advertising,” says
Manus Cloete, heod of research al the PPA “but
are just as bkely to recell odvertising os they are
editonal

“It fugnhghis the power of mogazines ko engage
consumers and shmulole o pesiive response lo
biond messages This, in un provides advertisers
with voluable insights en how to make therr
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cempaigns more effective In short,” he concludes,
“It proves that magazines are a great envikonment
for adverising and brand focused editonal *

Miler Hogg, managing director, Archont
Lfestde, adds “This hos gwven us incredible detall
on the way our readers use our publicotions and
enabled us to benchmark our portfolio against the
indusiry’s performance

"Oui soles leam can now give adversing
customers specific feedbock on the perfermance
of therr compaigns in our magszines, compared
with the indusiry overage for similar busiress
categones This has helped increase their success
rate for winaing and retarning customers It has
also helped us deve'op our editonal content and
design, and refresh our page planning *

Meanwhile, four tifes from Archant Lies porfolio
are now taking part n the National Readership
Survey "This 15 ¢ continuous survey,” says NRS
CEO Mike lrenside, “which 15 run i conpunction
with Ipsos MORI, seven days o wesk, throughout
fre year k covers over 250 of Brtains mojer

segments Although the
research focused on the
EDP, \t gave us penetration
and profile data for all our
brands in Norfolk The
survey showed that many
people consider reading the
EDP to be verv much part
of Inving 1n the county The
vounger market tends to
read che print edition only
once of twice 4 week
Meanwhile, the EDP24
website 15 attracting a new
audience, with a different
demographv

“We are using this
knowledge o help us
improve our audience
targeting,” says Kacthenne,
*and m turn our clients’
targeting ‘This will help
buwild an engaged audience
and deliner increased
response rates for clients

“Importantly for
advertsers, the £DP has
4 arge, exclusive reader
pool which national
newspapers tend not to
rexch This means national
print campargn planners
who want to cover Norfolk
will benefit from adding
the EDP to therr
schedule ”

newspapers and magazines and nterviews 3,000
randomly selecied adulls [aged 154 every month

"The NRS provides some of the most
authoriative ond valued audience research for
print advertisers in the UK ~

Miller adds "By being port of NRS we have
a venhied oudience tor our four narthern Life utles
that aational media buying ogencies recogrise
And with the support of the PPA, we hove been
able to model this research across all of our
county mogozInes

"By combining NRS and Magnify we have
been cble to buld o more detailed reader profile
for our regional hiles We have also been able 1o
creale a new marketing slery for our soles leom
based on better product and cudience knowledge

"Together, INRS and Magnify have shown us ihe
importance of really unders.anding our readers
and the way they use and enjoy our titles As o
resull,” he concludes, “we can now do more fo
help our advertisers optimise their markeling spend
cnd secure the best apporiuniry for respanse *
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KNOWING AND

LNDE RS EANINNG vour
audience 1s at the heart of
successful pubhshing, as one
of Archant Lafe’s major
magazines has proved

Laucashere Life s a flagship
utle with a proud hernitage
covenng one of the countny's
biggest counties

“With brthane photography
and outstanding features, it has
alwavs been a paceserer in
terms of quality and sales,”
savs editor Roger Borrell

‘However, we are up against
dggressive compeneion

“We realised that an
tndependent *health check’
was vital if we were to
MAINEAIN QUr PIIME POSIton
We commissioned an
established research company,
Linda Jones & Partners, to
conduct a sernes of focus
groups with current and lapsed
readers, a5 well as people who
read the oppostuon utle QOur
am to better understand our
audience ”

“We are commiteed to
understanding our chents’
markets,” savs Linda, “and
providing them with a clear
vision for therr brands and
services Our chents benefic
from our detailed quahtative
and quanuracve research, our
plain speaking, and our abikiey
to brning markets to hfe

“Leancashire Life enjoys
tremendous respect and
affection among 1ts readers,”
says Linda “Thisis a secure
foundation for the future,
but there 15 no room for
complacency To matntain ics
pre-eminent position in the

+wa archonl co vk

&80ur retail
point-of-sale
data has
shown year-
on-year
increases99

Knowledge
'S power

counts, Archant must place the
reader firmhy ar the heart ot
the editorial process

The tesearch provided the
eduonal and commercial teams
with hev informanion An
action plan and tmetable were
igreed and the iWdenufied
improvemenis were rolled out

Thev imcluded a refreshed
running order which gives
readers a broader selection of
teatures in che firsc 100 pages
of the magazine and more
cohesive grouping of topics
throughout the magasine

The popular town features
were revisited and given a new
direction and the important
property, intenors and garden
section has also been given a
seronger and clearer tocus

Lancashire Life’s design has
been updated to berer reflect
the content and 1s now much
bolder and more confident in
picture use and o pographv

The work has already pard
dividends *Our recail point-of-
sale data has shown
year-on-vear imncreases,” sad
Roger “We now have avery
clear sense ot direction for
Lancashure Life in terms of
content, structure and the use
of advertising At the same
ume, we have created a
templare for a ‘gold standard’
county magasine, which Life
15 adapting for use across its
porttoho

*Landa’s research provided
one valuable overall lesson
while vou think you are doing
the right ching, vou should
alwavs listen co vour
customers "
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Intuitive user experience

As AR OF 1ts mulu-channel
strategv. Archant now runs
180 websizes serving clearly
defined regional and special-
mterest COMmMUILIES
AMavimising this portfolio’s
value mvolves understanding
and engaging audiences,
while dehvenng argeted
adverusing for business
customers That's why,
during 2012, Archant iny ested
in the «Xense Context
Compuung Engine™

«Xense (pronounced see-
sense} 1s 4 globat technology
companv that creates
innovative and intuitive
products which help
compdanies buld great online
user experiences Archant
plans to take full advancage of
CCE™ powered applicauons
to impros ¢ advertising
deliveny, content
recommendation, site search
and traffic generation across
1ts digueal properties

advanced contextualisation
and personalisation products
across our websites will gine
us eremendous competiin e
advantages in a number of kev
areas,” explains Paul Hood,
digital director for Archanc
L.ondon “These are related to
four integrated cXense wols
real-ume visibihies of our
online audiences, therr
paterns of content consumpuon
and theirintent, retevant
recommendations for users for

(CCEE\I)

Shaping our industry
Archant 15 proud to report that four members of s senior
management team have also taken up smportant roles on
leading mndustry bodies in 2012 These oppointments
demonsiate the group’s respected position i the wider
media community, as well as ifs leaders’ expenence
and chilties

In July, Acchant's chief executive, Adnan leakings,
became President of the Newspaper Society, wihich
represents and supporis the interests of Briain's
regional and locel media In November, the Press
Complants Commission (PCC) named Bab C.awley,
Aschant Angha's publishing director, os one of its
COMIMISSIONETs

Adnen, whe has previcusly been treasurer and vice
president of the Newspaper Society, joins a dishaguished
hst or directors from Archant ond its forerunners who hove

R

‘Deploving (Xense's

‘related content’ on other

served as presidents °| look forward o helping the
Newspaper Society continue to fulll s iInvaluable role of
promoting the important work, unique strengths and high
standards of cur industry,” he says

As one of seven senior editandl representatives on
the PCC, Bob will contnbute indusiry expertise 1o the
Commission’s important deliberations "The PCC does
extremely valuable work ond | am delighted to represent
the regional press dunng this ime of greot change,” he
says “In porcular, § look forward lo working with the
team on mamntoining high reporting standards across
the industry "

Jehnny Hustler, menaging director Archant Anglie,
hos been appointed as the UK drector of The
Internguonal News Media Associchon (INMA] and
Brian McCarihy, hinance direcior, os @ norexeculive
drecior of the Newsporer licensing Association

Archant websites, improved
web tuncuonality, and an
mtelhgent contexcual ad
targeting technology that wiil
enable Archant to deliner
online ads to the most relevant
audience segments

“Using this best-in-class
technology gives Archant the
ability to manage and control
1ts audience data e also
makes us independent of
vanous other third-party
service providers, so
shortening and screngthening
the business value chain
This,” Paul concludes, “will
enable us to offer a clearlv
differenniated business

"

Proposition
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Supporting sustainability

FOR 1HE SECOND vear
running, Archant won a gold
ward for environmental best
practice in pnnt and pubhshing
at The Green Organisation’s
annual Green Apple Awards
This 1s an outstanding
achievement,” savs Greg
Puarton, head of procurement
and suscanabihiey “ Ie
rECOZNISES OUr LOMMmItMent
to sustamnability partcularly
emplovee involvement 1n
our 204 12 campaign ”
Launched on 20 Apnl 2012,
204 12 uims to implement
20 actions in four hey areas
of energy, water, business
miles and office paper “It
encottrages employees to
find more sustmnable wavs
of using valuable resources,”
savs Lara Greaves, Archant’s
sustamabihicy correspondent
‘The campaign includes
an ontine training module
suggeseing ideas for reducing
waste and saving monev”
“There are compelling

e archant €o Lk

ethicat reasons for protecting
the environment.” says Greg,
* but sustamnability also makes
sound business sense A more
sustatnable company 15 2 more
efficient companvy Emplovee
engagement helps boost
morale because we all hke
to know we can make a
difference ™

*Inour 2012 green sunen,”
savs Tara, “emplovees said
they reatly wanted to be
involved That was evident
when we supported national
‘Bike to Work Week’, as one
of our 20 4 12 acuons to mahe
everv business mile count
Colleagues were particularly
heen to test the two electne
bikes we had boughr for
employees in Norwich and
London to use on short
journevs instead of taking
apool car ™

Nick Schiller, operations
director, who pioneered the
electric bike initatinve, enjoyed
testing them so much that he

bought one I think electric
bikes will plav a partin our
longer teem plans to help lower
our carbon footpring and reduce
local pollutton,™ he savs

Meanw hile, in Ipswich,
Archant emplovees Chns
Grover Mao Ravner, Mike
Rawden, Sarah Thomas, \latt
Casburn and Wall Rodwell
signed up for Suffelk Cottney
Counctis cvele to work
challenge “Our brands are a¢
the heart of the community,”
says Chns, an adverusing
business manager, “and this
Wwas a great was to demonstrate
that imvolvement Now we cvle
to work wheneserwecan”

“As well as the Green Apple
award,” concludes Greg, “we
won the corporate
Environment Award in the
2012 Newspaper Awards and
received a highlv commended’
in the Protessional Publishers
Assoclation environment
awards Thank vou to evenone
for vour hard work and 1deas ™

Lester
Marshall

Protecting our people
Employee welfare 1s of paramount
importance to Archant “This is not
st about complying with our legal
requremenis as an employer,” says
Lester Morshall, Group health and
safety manoger "Itis also our
moral duly fo proteci our emplayees
and naver put them ot nsk for
commercicl gan

“That's why, m 2012, we worked
on consolidating varicus inatives
we have launched over the lost five
yeors to improve health and scfety
{H&S} across the Group As o resull,
we saw the number of workplace
acaidents fall agan in 2012
marking the sith conseculive yeor
of smprovement

These achievemenis reflect a
deeper cullural change “This year,”
explains Lester, "we saw the highest
level of compliance with our annugl
H&S oudits, which demonstrates our
managers' real commitment 1o our
employees” welibeing Now, rather
then domg audits because we hove
to, we do them because we believe
they are nght and impartant for the
business and our colleagues *

In recognition of these
achievements, Archant receved a
Sitver Award from the Royal Society
for the Prevention of Accidents
(ReSPA] The RoSPA awards are the
largest and longes! running scheme
of their kind 1n the UK “As well as
looking ot our accident rales,” Lester
exploms, “RoSPA locked at our H&S
management systems, including
strength of leadership and workferce
engogerment

At the cwards’ presenichion
September, Dawvid Rawling, RoSPAs
Awards Manager, sasd “We
congratulate Archant on its success
ond encourage all our winners o
remain commilted 1o sclety and
health, which 1s recogised to
be good fo, workers ond the
bottom line *

lesier also ananged for Archant
to buy nine more dehbullators for its
lorger offices, in addihon fo three «f
already hed “Ropid response to
cardioe arrest 15 crheal to saving
lves So, we have taimed around
50 employees to use the machines

"It 15 @ credit to ali employees ”
concludes Lesier “Thank you
everyene 1n the business for all your
suppost ond for helping io create o
posive healh and safety culture ™
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Report of the directors

The directors present their report and the audiied finencial siciements of
the Group for the yeor ended 31 December 2012

Results

The resulls for the yeor ended 31 December 2012 are set out n the
Group profit and loss occourt on page 50 The loss afier faxation of
the Group for the year was £14,569,000 (2011 loss £1,462,000)

Dividends
The directors do not propese a final dividend in respect of 2012

The intenm dividend of & 4p per share paid on 4 October 2012
will make a total dwidend of & 4p per share for the year

The cost of dvidends for 2012 15

£000
Interim 875
Tolal 875

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company thraughout the year hos been
to act as the holding company of the Archent group of companies

The principal actvities of the Group throughout the year were, and
conhinue to be, publishing newspapers and magazines in prnt, online
and through mobile technologies, contract publishing of magazines and
prining newspapers

Business review and future developments

A review of the year and of the Group's prospects 1s sef out in the
Chairman’s statement on page 4, the Chief Executive’s report on page
6 and the Financial review on page 8, each of which 1s deemed to be
incorporated heren The key performance indicators for the Group are
onmandy knoncial, ond are included in the Financial review

36

Principal risks and uncertainties

There 15 an ongoing process for the identification, evaluation and
management of the significant usks foced by the Group This 1s
deseribed i the Internal control section on poge 38

The principel nsks and uncenasies are operaional and financing nsks
The financing nsks faced by the Gioup ore descnbed n the Treasury
managemen, associcted risks and uncertainties section of the Financial
review The key operational nsks are the organisahional stucture and
retention of key people, siructural changes n cdvertising markets
resuling 1n loss of cdvertising revenues, newspaper end magczine
crrculations, loss of key suppliers, pension fund velatility and business
continuity Each such nsk 1s being mancged o miigate ony cdverse
impact on the Group as described below

Organisahonal structure and refenhion of key people

Our ability fo execule and implement the Group’s strategic and business
plons relies on the appropriate Group siuciure, culure and key people
We promote a culture of conhinuous improvemert and will endeavour to

retain our key people

Advertising

We are not overly relant on any single customer or sector but we ore
impacted by the economic downturn being experenced m the UK ond
the stuctural changes within the industry We continue o invest 1n the
quality, stucture ond iraining of our sales teams, whilst ensunng they ore
preperly incentivised We continue to strengthen our online and mobile
presence thiough the iaunch and refresh of our digitel brands and
continuously seek new anline and mobile technology revenue sources

Circulation

We may be impacted by market dechines i newspaper circulation due
io changing lfestyles, changes n the paid for/free distnbution models
and the prolferation of news disinbution channels Cur approach for
newspapers 1s 1o endeavour to increase criiculation by focussing on
relevant content and efficient disinbuion mechamisms  Revenue lost
through dedining arrculations haos been pamatly offset by cover price
increases Qur magazine creulahons are prneipally drven by our
subsenption sirategy

Key suppliers

We hove a rumber of key suppliers which if they were unable to
meet their obhgations to the Group could result in disruption We have
an cgreement fo source all newspnnt from a single major supoher

In the evenl of disruplion ot one plant, the supplier has guaranieed
contiruous supply from its other planis If our telecoms providers

were unable 1o meet their obhiganons, the Group would expenence
disruption The Group has put contingency plans i ploce to mimimise
any such disuption
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Penstons

The pansion deficit 1s carefully monitored and there are regular reviews
with Archant Pension & Life Assurance Scheme Trusiee Umiled {"Trustee
Company”}, which was established as o corporate trustes and is
independent of the Group The Group and Trusiee Compary take
approprate oclions 1o miigate the growth in pensien labiltes
However, there cre a number of foctors which are oulside the Group's
cortrol, including interest rotes, inflation rates, life expectancy and
regulatery change

Business continuity

We are dependent on our technology, networks and printing capability
and we have invested in our network and prnting frastructure During
2012 there was a full review of business continuity plans which are
updated on an ongoing bass to reflect changes in operations and
syslems

Share capital
The 1ssued share capital of the Company 1s shown in Note 21 of the
financiol stalements

Directors
Those who are currenlly directors, and who served os a direcior
throughout the year, were

RW Jewson

SC Alleyne loppoinied 1 february 2012)
SC Copeman

JAE Rustler

AD leakings

BG McCarthy

PIC Troughton

M) Walsh

RE) VWyatt

The mnterests in the shares of the Company of the directors serang ot
the year end are disclosed in the Directors’ remuneration report on

page 42

Corpeorate governance

The Company 15 nat bound by the prowvisions of “The UK Corporate
Governance Code”, bul the Board remains commified to moiniaining
high standards of corporale governance

=~y grehont co uk

(a}

(b)

Board composition and appointment
The Board currently comprises rine direciors, six of whom,
including the Charman end Vice-Chaiman, are nonexecutive

The direciors have soughi 1o ensure thot the composiion of the
Beard is such that the skils ond expertise present in the board
room, whether denved from lechnical knowledge or pracical

experence, are those necessary for the Board o monage the

Company effectively

The Anicles of Asscaiation of the Company require that at each
Annual General Meeling of the Company the number of drectors
most nearly equating to one third [disregarding those appointed by
the Board since the previous Annual General Meeting) retire by
rotahion

Role and operation of the Board

While the Board as o whole 1s responsible to shareholders for the
proper management of ine Group, 1t has established the cqudit,
nominations, penstons and remuneration commiltees {the
"Committees”) os “standing” committees with paricular
responsibilinies, and other committees are established from ime to
nme to deal with specific matiers The terms of reference of the
Committees are set, and subject to pencdic review, by the Board
The Board has also established a formal schedule of matters that it
has determined should be decided upon only by the Board In
particular, the Board determines the Group's sirategy, approves the
Group’s business plan and budget, menitors the Group's financiol
performance, determines the Group's funding strategy and reports
to shareholders The Board also refains responsibiity for
determining the remuneration of the nonexecutive directors, save
that the Chairman's fee 1s determined by the remunerction
cemmiliee meetng 0 his absence

Meetings of the Board are minuted, as are those of the Committees
of the Board, and all such minules are considered and agreed ot
a loter meeting of the relevant bedy, usually the meeting following
that to which they relate Directors cre free 1o request that thenr
specthc views are recorded in those minutes and, in odditon to
them having access ‘o the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, o procedure exsls whereby directors may toke exiernal
odvice at the expense of the Company in respect of matters of
concem 1o them i their role as o director of the Company

The Comoany Secretary hos responsibility for ensurng thas Board
procedures are followed

The roles of the Chawrman and Chief Executive are separate and
the division of responsibilites has been formally sel out

In additon to the six meetings cf the Board scheduled af the
beginning of the year and a fullday sirategy meefing at which the
Bocrd considered the future direction of the Group's aclvilies in
detall, there were mestings of the Commitiees cf the Board n
2012 Addmonclly, the Board met either 1n full or via other duly
constituied commitiess ko consider specific mallers on a number
of other occasions in the year
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(¢)

(n)

38

The Chairman meets from tme to time with the other non-executive
directors 1n the absence of the executive direciors, usually on an
informal basis

Board committees
The composiion of the Commitiees of the Board 1s set out on
pages 12 and 13, together with directors” bicgraphical detals

The Board has sought to appesnt 1o the Commitiees those of the:r
number who, together, it considers 1o have the most appropniaie
skills to enable each Committee to carry out ts allotted funchons
Annually each Commitiee underikes a review of the Commitiee’s
compliance with iis relevant lerms of reference and reports its
findings to the Boord

Audit

The terms of reference of the ouds commitiee, which were
reviewed in 2012, assign ic the commitiee, among other matters,
responsibibty for

* reviewing the inlegnly of the Company’s inancial siatements,
meluding the consistency of the applicotion of, and changes io,
accounting poheies,

* considerng and making recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
Company’s auditors,

* overseeing the selection process for new audtors,

pencdically ossessing the independence and objectvity of the

Company's auditors,

* :eviewing and approving the annual audit plan and agreeing

the audtt fee,

reviewing the effectiveness of the audit,

* keeping under review the effeciveness of the Company’s internal
controls and nsk management sysiems

Nominations

The terms of reference of the nominations committee, which were
reviewed 1n 2012, incluce a requirement that, in respect of each
propesed appomtment 1o the Board, the commitiee evaluates the
balance of skills, knowledge and expernience on the Board and,
n the light of that evaluation, prepares a descripticn of the role
and copabilihes required for ¢ pariculor appointment

The commitiee 1s charged with identifying suitable candidates for
epponiment fo the Board and with keeping under review the time
commitments of the nonexecutive direciors with a view fo ensuning
Irai those so appointed have sufficient sime 1o properly dischorge
their duhies in relation to the Company

The terms of reference of the committee clso require 1t to keep
under review the lecdership needs of the orgamisation, to gve full
consideration 1o successien planning for directors ond ciher sentor
executives and, 1n consultation with the Chanmen of those
Commitiees, to make recommendalions 1o the Beard concerning
the composition of ihe audit and remunerahon commifiees

{1} Remuneration

)

(d)

(e)

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee, which were
reviewed 10 2012, provide that the commites 15 responsible for
de*ermining and agreeing with the Board the framework and
policy for the remuneration of certain senior executives and, 1n
consuliatron with the Chairman and/or Chief Executive os
oppropncte, defermining the iotal Indmviduel remuneration package
(inclucing pensions, bonuses, incentive payments and share
awards) of those executives  The senior executives concerned are
the Chief Executive, who 1s not consulted i relation to his own
remuneration, his drrect reports, the executive duectors of the
Company ond the Company Secrefary The commitiee excluding
the Chaiman also determires and agrees with the Board the
remurerahon of the Chairman

The lerms of reference of the commitiee require It 1o review the
design and targets of olt performancerelated pay and longterm
share incentive schemes

Pensions

The terms of reference of the pension commitiee were reviewed 1n
2012 The pensicns committee compises the Charman, Chief
Executive, Finance Direcior, Company Secretary, HR Director and
Pensions Manager The Commitize monitors the perfermance of
the Group’s pension scheme and makes recommendations 1o the
Board in respect of the Group’s pension arangemenis i light of
current circumstances, matters requinng consulation with the Trustee
Compony and anticipated developments

Board’s relations with shareholders

Communicaton with shareholders 15 undertaken prncipally through
the Annual repor, the Interim statement ond ot the Annual General
Meeting

There s dlso a programme of meetings between directors and
mojor shareholders

The Chairman: and ViceChairmen remain willing, subject to 1ssues
of commercial confidennally, to discuss with any shareholder,
urespective of the size of therr holding, maiters of concem o them
in relaon to the offars of the Group

Internal control
The drrectors are responsible for the sysiem of irtemal control in the
Company and its subsidicries and for reviewing s effeciveness

The conirol siuciure and procedures odopted are designed o
manage, sather than elminate, the nisk of failure 1o achieve
business objectives, and con only provide regsonable, and not
absoluie, assurance agonst matenal missciement, errors, losses of
fraud

The key elements of intreral conirol thet have been estoblished,

and that were in operchon throughout 2012 (and up to, and
including, the date of this repest), are
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* Authonty to menage the Group's eperaling uniis 1s delegoted,
subject to ceriain constraints determined by the Board Each of the
principet operaling uniis holds regular menagement meetings that
are atended by senior executives of the Group Other maters of
significance are reported where required,
Annual fironcial and operational budgets and quarterly forecasts
are prepared by operating uniis and reviewed and approved by
senior executives of the Group and, on a consolidated basts, by
the Board,
Monthly monagement reports and accounls are prepared by ¢l
operating uails and indude comparisons to budget, prior year end
forecasts Significant variances are highlighted and inveshgated,
» Formal procedures are used fo ossess material Investments and
copral projects and appropriate due diligence 15 cormed out if
a business acquisition 15 proposed,
» The qudit commitiee reviews the effechiveness of the financial
control systems and reports areas of concem 1o the Board

Procedures have been implemented to moniior the systems for
safeguarding assets agamst unauthonsed use, for montaning
proper accounting records, and for ensuning the reliobility of
financicl information within the business

The Boord reviewed the effectiveness of alt matenal controls,
including finaneicl, operational, comphionce and nsk management
in 2012 through a formal procedure to identify, evaluaie and
manage such significant nsks as the Group faces

Each operating unit prepores o sk matnx annually The mainx
details nisks that it 15 thought could prevent the achievemeni of the
stralegic objectives of that business unit and cssesses the likelihood
of thewr occurrence  The measures in place, and proposed, n
respect of the momitonng and management of ecch such nsk are
documented This informahon 15 reviewed with the Finance Direcior
Thereafter, seriar manogement reviews the nsks to the Group os o
whole, focussing 1n paricular on these factors that could impact
upon achievement of the Group's strategy

The outcome of the nisk review process 15 summansed and reponied
upen anmuclly to the audit commitiee, to whom responsibility for
such annual review hos been delegated by the Board

(f} Operation of the audit committee

The audit committiee met on four occasions in 2012

The committee reviewed the 201 1 hnoncidl stolements and the
2012 Intenim statement prior to thew publication

The commitiee mes with the cuditors 1In 2012 to discuss the oudit
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011, matters of
refevonce to the 2011 financial statements and the propesals
for the conduet of the audit in respect of 2012 Cther motters
consicdered by the commitiee dunng 2012 included the Group's
corporate governance mechanisms, the annual review of
operanonal rsk and a report i relation 1o he Group's insurances

w s orehant eo uk

(a)

(h)

internal audit

The audit commitee penodically considers whether the infroduction
of an intemal qudit funclion would strengthen the conirel
environment 1o the extent necessary to sty ihe additional costs
and the impect on the opeschion of the business that such a
function would erntal

In the ight of the scale and structure of the Group and the control
environment in place, the Board does not currently consider thot the
introcduction of on infeinal audd function would matenally benefit
the Group

Non-audit fees paid to external auditors and
auditor independence

The audit committee has an ongoing responsibility for monitoning
the independence of the Company’s auditors

In the hight of the substaniial knowledge that the Company’s
audtors, Ernst & Young LLP {"Emst & Young™), have built up of the
Group and s afferrs, the considerable level of technical expertise
that they can make ovailable to the Group and the cost
effeciiveness and efficiency of oblaining that expertise from a poriy
who clready hos a delalled knowledge of the Group, the Board
has not placed any restriciion on the use by the Group of Ermst &

Young in respect of non-audit matters

Accordingly, dunng 2012, Ernst & Young adwised the Group i
relahon to fox compliance, general tax advice and the provisien of
arculaon cemfication to ndusiry audit bodies

In accordance with ethical standards, Emnst & Young has odwised
the Company 1n wriing shat the firm 15 independent within the
meaning of regulatory and professional requirementis and that the
objecivly of the cudit engagement pariner ond audit staff 15 not
imparred Hoving reviewed that opimion, the Boord 1s of the
opinion that the continuing provision to the Group by Ernst &
Young of both cudit and norcudtt services has ral compromised
the independence of the cudilors in relation to their audit of the
attonrs of the Company and the Group in respect of 2012

Sums peyable to Emnst & Young 1n relation to the 2012 audit were
£90,000 and in relation to noraudit services provided in the year
were £181,000

Operation of the nominations committee

The nominciions commities met on one occasion m 2012 1o
consider the renewal of the non-executive direclors’ contracts for
Mike Walsh and Simon Copemon and ogree the directors 1o
siond for reelection at the 2013 Annucl General Meeting
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
financial statements

The direclors are responsible for preparing the Report of the directors
and the financial statements sn accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Corpany law requires the directors to prepare financial statements

for each financial year Under the law the directors have elected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with Unued Kingdom
Generclly Accepted Accounting Practice [United Kingdom Accouniing
Standards and applicable Jaw] Under company lew the directers must
net approve the financial statements unless they are satished thot they
give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Greup and the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that penod

In prepanng those financial statements the directors are required to

* select sutoble accounting policies ond then apply them consistently,

e make (udgements and estimaies that are reasonable and prudent,

* siate whether applicable accounting standords hove been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements,

* prepare the financial siclements on the going concem basis unless 1t
Is tnappropriate fo assume that the Group will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records thet
are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and the Company’s
fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy ot any hme the
financial position of the Group ond the Company ond enable them to
ensure that the finanaial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are afso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and Company and hence for taking reasonabile steps for the
prevention and detecton of fraud and other megulanties

Statement as to disclosure of information te auditors
The directors who were members of the Board af the time of approving
this report are detatled on page 37 Hoving made enquines of fellow
directors and of the Company's audiiors, each of these directors
confirms that

* to the best of therr knowledge and belief, there 1s no information
refevant 1o the preparation of this repors of which the Company's
auditors are unoware, and

* they have taken all the steps o director might reasonably be expected
to have token 1o be aware of relevant qudit information and to
eslablish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Going concern

The Group's business aciivities, together with the fociors likely to offecr
s future development, its inancial position, financial nsk managemeni
objectives, ifs exposures 1o lquidity, interest rale, ioreign exchangs,
credit and price risk, ore descnbed in the Financial review on page 8
and Note 23 1o the financial stotements

The Group has considerable financiol resources and facilies ovarlable,
together with secure long tlerm contracts with principel suppliers The
Group's budgeling and forecasting processes include the preparation
of forecast cash flows, based on expecied rading results, the Group's
averall working copital requirements and other norirading cash tems,
including coprtol expenditure, mterest, debt and taxation These
forecasts indicate that the Group has an adequate level of faciliies to
meet ils forecost cash requirements, and as ¢ consequence the directors
believe that the Group s well placed to manage ils business nisks
successfully despite the current uncerlain econemic outlook

After making enguines, the direclors have o reasonoble expectation that
the Company and the Group have adeguate resources to continue in
operational exstence for the foreseeable fulure  Accordingly, the
directors have coniinued to adopt the going concemn bosis In prepanng
the hinaneidf stalements

Employees

The Group continued fo provide employees with infoermation about the
Group throughout 2012 and to encourage siaff svelvement In
addiion o local intiatves, methods of communication have included
an onkine news service, which 15 updoted of least weekly via the
Archant intranet ond emall, and the continuing use of o corporale socal
network to focilitale open commumcation between employees for both
corporate and social informaticn

Adnan Jeckings undertook ¢ series of presemations dunng 2012, 1o
which all employees were mvited Those attending were briefed on the
Group’s performance, new developmentis, the Group's plans and other
matiers of relevance to employees

In compliance with the selevant legislation, the Group recognises Unife
the Umon at its Thorpe Print Cenire and the Natonal Union of
Joumnalists in respect of relevant siaft of Archant Norolk, Archant Suffolk
and af Archont london’s Hackney Gazette, East london Advertiser and
Hompstead & Highgate Express senes  Such recogniion provides for
an annual oint review by management and the relevant union of pay,
hours and holidays of sioff in the relevant bargaining unit

The Groug's Informanion and Consuliation Framework Conshiution aims
io provide a means of informing ond consulling with employees,
hrough therr elected represenialives, en a regular basis so that thexr
views can be taken nto account n moking decisions that may affect
iheir inferests A framing programme 15 ofiered 1o siof-elected
representatives
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Consuliation also lakes place on matters such os health end safety and
pensions Certain directors of the Trustee Company are employees of
the Group romincted ond elected by members of the scheme

Aforum compnsing ihe human resources director, monagers and aiher
siaff wah related responsibiliies meets regularly end kes the promotion
of best human resources prachice orcund the Group as one of iis goals

It 15 the Group's policy that, within the constiaints imposed by relevant
leg!slohon, discrimination on such grounds as gender, race, ethnic
ongm, sexual onentaiion, discbility, nationality, age, mantal siclus or
religious belef of applicants for employment and employees 1s not
acceptable As a result, the Group seeks 1o ensure that decisions on
employmeni, mcludmg reciuttment, fraining, development, promation
and pay, are based on the indmidual’s ability to do the job and on s
or her expenence ond skills Accordingly, disabled people are dealt
with in such respects on the same basis as cblebodied epplicants and
employees If o person becomes disabled while an employee every
practical effort 1s made to moke such reasonable adjustments as may
be necessary to enable the indvidual concerned 1o conhinue in
employment with the Group

Supplier payment policy

The Group regotates approprnate terms and condttions for iis
transachens with supplers and it 1s the Group’s policy that payments are
made in occerdance wih those terms ond condiions

A 31 December 2012 the Group held 26 doys’ purchases
cutslonding in trede crediors (2011 27 days)

At 31 December 2012 the Compony held nil days’ purchases
ouistanding in rade creditors {2011 rul days)

Donations
Tne Group has three principal meens of ofienng financial support 1o
charitable causes

* Theough its Archant Gold programme the Group motches sums raised
by the efforts of employees for therr chosen causes,

* By marching ot a given percentage sums donated io chanly by
employees using the Chanittes Aid Foundahon payroll gving facility
{clso known as “Give As You Eom”) - the Company also pays all
odminisraion costs ossocatad wih this meens of chenloble gving, and

* By airect donations

Donations made by the Group for chantable purposes duang 2012
toiclled £64,000 {2011 £66,000

In addition, the Group, through ts pblicanons, encourages readers 1o
support a numbser of worthy couses, resuling in substanial sums being

raised

v ~w orchant co vk

Quulifying third-party indemnity provisions

li has been the procice of the Company to indemnify iis directors in
accordance with the Company's Aricles of Asscaiction ard to the
maxsmum exten! permiiied by low Indemnines which constiiute
qualifying third paryy indemnity provisions cs defined by section 234 of
the Companies Aci 2006 have been in place throughout the year and
as at the date of this report remain 1n force Under those indemnities the
Compeny hes indemnified the directors, in accordance with the
Company’s Adicles of Association, in respect of lickilives thot may
attach to them in their copocity as direciors of the Company or of
ossociated companies

Auditors

The Company’s oudiiors, Ernst & Young UP, have indicated therr
willingness ta continug in office and, in accordance with section 485 of
the Companies Act 2006, o resoluton proposing their reappoiniment
will be put 1o the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting

Noiice of an Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
23 April 2013 15 set out on page 89

Secretary

28 Febuary 2013

By order of the Boord

JO Ellison
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Directors’ remuneration report

Remuneration committee
The remuneration commitiee s chaired by Richeord Jewsan, who 1s both
the Chairman and a nonexecutive direcior of the Company

Peter Troughton, Mike Walsh ond Richard Wyatt olso served os
members of the commitiee throughout the year All members of the
commiltee are nonexecutive directors The commities met on five
occasions in 2012

Policy on remuneration of executive directors

The remuneration committes determines an overall ;emuneration
package for each executive direcior of the Company, with the intention
of atiracting and retaining high-quality executives capable of enabling
the Group to achieve its objectives

In determining the elements of those packages the remuneration
committee pays particular oftention fo remunerakion levels in the industry
and may lake advice from external remuneration and other consultants
where 1t considers it appropricte fo do so Dunng the year the
remunerahion commitiee used the services of MAMEK Limited {"AMMSEK")
m relation to the benchmarking of directors’ pay and benefit levels
agoinst a peer group of media and industry companies MMEK also
administers the all employee share incentive plan on behalf of the
Group

The main elements of the remunerakcn packages of the executive
directors of the Company are

{a)

(b)
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Basic salary

Basic salary is subject to annual review by the remuneration
commttee with reference to such external data as the committee
considers relevant

Annual bonus (non-pensionable)

Each of the execulive directors of the Company paricipates n an
annual cash bonus scheme The payment of any such bonus s
dependent in part upon the extent 1o which certan inancial iesgets
of the Group are met, or exceeded, in refation fo the particulor
year Payment of the bolance depends on the extent to which the
duector achieves, or exceeds, persanal goals in the yeor in
question

The targets and goals for each direcior are determined by the
fremuneration commitiee ai the beginming of the financial yeor, and
any such bonus 15 pard annuclly In arrears

(¢} Long-term incentive plans (“LTIPs”)

The shareholder approved (TIPs are designed 1o align closely the
inverests of pomapoting senior managers with those of
shareholders by semng performance targets measured over o
ihreevear period for each plan cycle The rules of each of the
LTIPs stipulate the conditions that must be met and/or the
crcumstances that musi anse in order for restricions to be lifted
o for the options lo become exercisable For all plans, the
conditions that must be met are bosed on the financial
performonce of the Group as meosured by the Group's adjusted
eamings per share aggregaied over a penod of three years Any
awards that do not meet the conditions wathin the specified
timeframe are forfeiled or lopse The moximum number of
shares/options that moy be awarded to any participont in ony
one year connot exceed 100% of the participent’s annual solery
excluding bonuses

Awards under The Archant 2011 LongJerm Incentive Plan (*2011
LTIP*) are n Ine form of options and compnse we mam elements
an HM Revenue & Customs ["HMRC') approved option granted af
the market prce of the shares on the date of award  The maxmum
awaid of the approved optons 1s £30,000 per person being held
¢t any one ime This element also comprises a discretionary
taxable cosh bonus equivalent to the value of the exercisable
approved ophon 1o enable portaipants 1o exeraise their ophons al
nil cost fo them (with the exception of any tax liability due on the
cash bonus), and

nikcost oplions which are granted to individuals who are eligible

for a grant that 1s In excess of the HMRC opproved option mit of
£30,000

No awards were made under the 2011 LTIP in 2012

Awards under the 2006 LTIP were made 1n the form of restncted
shares Since the approval of the 211 LTIP no awards have been
granled under the 2006 LTIP

Employee share schemes

From time to time the Company offers an HMRC opproved share
incentwe plan {"the SIP"} Executive directors are entitled to
participate in the SIP on the same basis os other eligible
employees
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Direcfors’ remuneration report

(e) HMRC approved pension

Eoch of the executive direciors 1s o member of the Archent Pension
& life Assurence Scheme {“the Scheme”) and 1s etther o member of
the Defined Benefit Section or the Defined Coninbution Section of
the Scheme [furiher nformauon 1s given in Note 29 1o the inancicl
slatements|

For the Detined Benehit Secticn, members who commenced
pensionable service prior to 31 Moy 1989 were not subject to the
stalulory pensienable earnings cap infroduced from 1 June 1989,
nor to the schemespecific eamings cap ntroduced from & Apnl
2006 ater the abolinon of the staiutory pensiens eamings cap
From 1 December 2009, members' pensionable earmings were
copped at the level of pensionable earings over the 12 manths fo
1 December 2009 fthe "2009 Cap’} Any pension benehis on
pensionable earnings above this copped level are provided
through a Defined Contnbution arangement

The Senior Mancgement Defined Beneht Section provides @
pension of up to onethirieth of the participant’s final pensioncble
salary for each year of pensionable service, so that members wath
at least 20 years’ pensionable service can achieve a pension of
tworthirds final pensionable salary [subject to the 2009 Cap) o the
rormal retirement age of 65 Benefits cannct exceed the maximum
lfetime cllowonce laid down by HAMRC

The Defined Coninbution Section provides a pension af retirement
based on the value of the member's fund, including investment
returns, the type of annuity chesen and annutty rates n place o
that tme

From 1 May 2009 the Company introduced SMART, a salary
sacrifice arangement whereby eoch Scheme member was given
ihe option to have their pension centnbutions poid by the Group
and the member’s controctual pay was reduced by the amount of
these contnbutions Each executive director opted to have therr

coninbutions poid by salary sacrifice

Acnan Jeakings 1s a member of the Senior Management Defined
Benefit Section of the Scheme and wos subject 1o the siotutory
penstonable earnings cop up to 5 Aprl 2006, the scheme-specific
earnings cop ond the 2009 Cap The Compeny has cgreed fo
pay Adnan Jeckings o nonpensionoble supplement of 25 per cent
of pensioncble ecrnings above such caps

" e GICant ¢o Uk

i)

Johnny Hustler 1s o member of the Senior Mancgement Defined
Benefii Section of the Scheme and has not been subject io the
staiutory earnings cop of the schemespecific eamings cap but 1s
subject to the lifetime kmit ond the 2009 Cap Member pension
coninbunons on any pensionable earnings above the 2009 Cas
are under SMART info the Defined Contribution toprup arrangement
which the Company matches of ¢ rate of 1 5 tmes

Brian McCarthy 15 @ member of the Senior Manogement Defined
Contnbution Secuon of the Scheme and opted to hove his
contnbutions paid under SMART, the Company malcnes these
contnbutions at @ rate of 2 5 times

For the executive directors the Scheme has teken out ¢ Iife
msurance policy under wiich a lump sum of four tmes "Reference
Salory” Imember's solary before any reducton for sclary socrfice)
15 payable on death in sevice Spouses” and /or dependents’
pensions are also payable for death 1n service

The Company may provide an immediate pension to, o ather
benefts to aequire o penson for, executive direciors retinng on the
grounds of etther permanent iotal or permonent partial Incapociy

Other benefits

In common with those other senior execuiives of the Groug, the
executive directors are offered @ compary car or are poid an
annudl cosh sum as determined by the committee 1n lieu of the
prowision of a car

Each of the executive directors may elect to have the Group make

ihe benefiis of private health insurance ovailoble for themselves
ond, i they so choose, their spouse/pariner and/or children
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Directors’ remuneration report

Policy on remuneration of non-executive directors

Subject 1o the resirictions contained 1n the Articles of Associaion of the Company, the fees of nonexecunve dieciors ore determined by the
Chairmon and execulive directors in the light of such external advice as they consider oppropricte to take and recemmendations made to them by
the Chairman and Chief Execunve  The Cheirman's fee 1s deiermined by the remunerction commitiee in his cbsence

Service contracts

{(a) Executive directors
It 15 the policy of the Compony that contracts with executive directors should continue untl aged between 60 and 65, subjeci to ecrhier
termination by erher party on 12 months' nofice In wrifing, save where the agreement may be terminated summarly for a significant and/or

specihed breach

{b) Non-executive directors

It 1s the policy of the Company 1o engege non-executive directors on fixed term contracts for penods of three years Such contrects, which are
generally renewable, are, however, subject to termination on one manth’s noiice, or thiee months” notice n the case of the Chairman

Directors’ emoluments

Sclary/lTees Performance Other benefis Total
related bonus

2012 2012 2012 2012 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
RW Jewson 109 109 109
SC Alleyne’ 23 23
SC Copeman 25 - . 25 25
JAE Hustler? 146 36 1" 193 190
AD Jeakings’ 284 98 15 397 440
BG McCarthy 162 58 13 233 232
PIC Troughton 29 29 29
M Walsh 25 25 25
RE) VWyalt 25 25 25
IF de Moller . 8
Total 828 192 39 1,059 1,083

" SC Alleyne was appoinied fo the Board with effect from 1 February 2012
2 JAF Hustler's contractual working days per week changed m April 201 1 from four doys fo five days and from August 2011 onwards reverted to
four days In June 2012 Mr Husller's contractual working days reverted to five days per week

! thighestpaid serving director os at 31 December 2012

* JF de Moller resigned from the Board with effect from 13 Apnl 2011

Adrian Jeakings has been permiied to relain inose fees payable to hum in respect of his directorship of PA Group lmited ond receives no
remuneration 1n relation to acing as a governor of Norwich School, @ director of Norwich School Limited or as a member of the Board of the

Newspaper Scciety
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Directors’ remuneration report

Directors’ accrued pension entifements
Adrian Jeakings and Johnay Hustler were both members of the Group’s Senicr Monagement Defined Benelt Section of the Scheme dunng 2012

The following table shows the members’ contnbutions, the increase/decrease in acerved envilement during the period and ihe accrued eniilement
at the end of the period

Age ct 31 Accrued Real Inflatron F Increcse / Accrued
December pension 31 increase / i [decreuse) pension 31
2012 December {decrease) | n aeened December
2011 in aecrued ! pension i 2012
pension ; the year
£000 £000 £000 ! £000 £000
AD leakings 54 379 31 10 41 420
JAE Hustler 57 923 (1 4) 24, 10 933

The following table sets out the ransfer value of the directors” accrued benefi's, calculoied In a manner determined by the Trustee Company of the
Scheme having token advice from the Scheme Actuary

Transter Transfer Other Increase n | Coninbutions® Transter
value value of real changes to fransfer value
31 December increase / transter value 1n the | 31 December
2011 |decrease) valye period | 2012
in acerued net of
pension contnbuiions
net of
ceninbutions
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
AD Jeakings Q587 600 Q37 1537 75 1,1199
JAE Hustler 1,846 7 {22 5} 1270 104 5 86 1,959 8

“These include notional coninbutions paid under SMART

The transfer volues disclosed obove do nol represent ¢ sum paid or poyoble to the indwvidual director, but they represent hiabilines of the pension
scheme The above figures exclude addiional voluntary contributions

Other pension provisions
The Company coninbuted £28,42012011 £28,420) to Bnan McCarthy's Defined Contnbution pension fund during the year This higure excludes
conmnoutons under SMART

Contibutions made by the Company during the year in respect of pension arrengerments for Adnan Jeckings in cddinon to the Scheme were £nil
{2011 £6,775 which was paid no o SIPP} Adron Jeakings was paid 25% of pensionable earmings obove the 2009 Cep (£40,650} os ¢ cash
supplement (2011 £33,875)

In 2012 boih Johnay Hustler and the Company paid Defined Contribution toprup paymenis on his pensioncble earnings abeve the 2009 Cap
Mr Hustler's contbuton was matched of a wcte of 1 5 imes, equating 1o an employe coninbution rate of 10 5% The Company paid £1,959
Defined Coninbuiion togup payments in 2012 2011 £1,430)
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Directors’ remuneration report

Directors’ interests in shares

The nterests in she shares of the Company of those indmaduals who were directors ar the yeor end were as follows

20p ordinary shares 20p crdinary shares
al 1 January 2012 at 31 December 2012
RW Jewson 35,697 35,697
SC Alleyne
57,222 57,222
SC Copemon 24,5004 24,5002
8,826 8,826
JAE Husiler® 30,800° 14,0003
21,602 21,602
AD Jeakings* 84,000° 42,000
4,728 4,728
BG MeCarthy* 44,800° 22,400°
PIC Teoughton Q1,755 21,755
M} Walsh 5,000 5,000
RE) Whatt 10,000 100
' Non beneficial

? Joint with others
? Resinicled shares owarded under 2006 TIP [see poge 48) and subject to nsk of fofeiure

* The director was inviied to paricipate in the SIP on the same basis as other eligible employees As a result, the duecior has obtaned, and os o
31 December 2012 retained, the awards of shares under the SIP. as shown on poage 47 No awards have been made under the SIP since 2008
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Directors’ remuneration report

Share incentive plan

Dote of Award 6 Ocicber| 17 lune 28 June 31 May 30 May 30 May
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Pace pad for Parnership Shares ipence per Shore) 1000 1250 1500 1325 1150 800
t
AD Jeakings ,
Parinership Shares o] 5 5 6 Q
Matching Shares 12 10 10 12 18
Free Shares : 22 19 22 25 36
Total 40 34 37 43 63
BG McCarthy E
Partnership Shares ! 5 5 6 Q
Matching Shares ' 10 10 12 18
Free Shares - 19 22 25 36
Total - 34 37 43 63
JAE Hustler :
Partnership Shores 7 % o} 5 5 6
Matching Shares ]4[ 12 10 10 12
Free Shares 28| 22 19 22 25 36
Total 491 40 34 37 43 36
]
Total i 49| 80 102 1 129 162

Al such shares, none of which are included in the numbers set out in the principal table, are currenlly held by the SIP Trusiee pursuant to the rules of

ine SIP

No sum was paid o poyable in respect of the Matching shares or the Free shares

As far as the Company 1s aware, none of the directors of the Compony at 31 December 2012 had any inlerests in any shares in the Company or
any of s subsidiones ai 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 or 28 February 2013 save os disclosed above ond in the seclion on page 48

headed ‘longlerm incentive plans’

Options and invitations to subscribe held by directors

Save as disclosed in the sechion on poge 48 headed Lengterm incentive plans’ as fer as the Company s eware no direcior had options

outsianding over any share in the Company at any hme duning 2012 end none hes been gronted any option over any such shore since the end

of ihat year

=+ quchant co vk
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Directors’ remuneration report

Long-term incentive plans
Grant of options mace under the 2011 LTIP to those ndividuals who were directors of the Company at eny time duning the yeor and which
remained outstanding ot any hme dunng the year were as fellows

Awards Granted Exercised| Awards held | Markel Exercise Date from Date of

neld ct dunag dunng at 31 i price on price which expiry of

] Jon 2012 perad perod|  Dec 2012 SXEICISE £| exercisable options

AD Jeakings 41,000 41,000 40016 June 2014| 16 June 2021
AE Hustler 20,000 l 20,000 40016 June 2014} 16 June 2021
BG McCarthy 22,000 | 22,000 40016 June 2014 16 June 2021

Awards of resincted shares made under the 2006 LTIP 1o those indmiduals who were directors of the Company of any kme dunng the year and
which remamned outstanding at any ime duning the year were as follows

Cycle ending I Date of Market Awards Awarded Forfeited Awards
31 Dec! award|  price ot fime held of during dunng|{ oustanding ot
: of award 1 Jan 2012 the: yeor the year{ 31 Dec 2012
: Number Number Number Number
i Pence of 20p of 20p of 20p of 20p
! per share | ordinary shares | ordinary shares | ordinary shares | ordinary shares
AD Jeckings 2011, 06 05 09 350 42,000 42,000 -
20121 14 05 10 525 42,000 42,000
- : I -
JAE Hustler 2001 06 0509 350 16,800 16,800 -
2012, 140510 525 14,000 14,000
BG McCarthy 201N i 060509 350 22,400 22,400
2012 ; 140510 525 22,400 - 22,400

Where reference 1s mode in this document io market price ot ¢ date prior to 8 June 2004 this 1s the price which, of the relevant ime, the Board
had ndicated 1t was willing to offer for sale shares which a shareholder had asked t o offer for sole pursuant to Asticle 39 of the Articles Where
reference 1s made 1n this document to market prce t @ date on or affer 8 June 2004 this 1s the price at which shares had most recenily been
raded vic the Maiched Bargain Facility operated in respect of shares in the Company Any values of shares in Acchant referred to in this document
have been colculated solely by reference to such pnces

Approved by the Board and signed on s behalf by

RW Jeo
Chairmg

GAS

28 February 2013
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
Of Archcm’r Limited {company number 4126997)

We have audiied the financiol siatements of Archant Limiied for the yeor
ended 31 December 2012 which comonise the Group profit and loss
account, the Group statement of tofal recognised gains and losses, the
Group reconciliation of movements 1n shareholders’ funds, the Group
and Compony balance sheeis, the Group statement of cash flows and
the related noes 1 to 29 The firanciol reporting framework thet has
been applied n therr preparation 15 applicable low and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 18 made solely to the Company’s members, os o body, in
accosdance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work hos been undertaken so tha: we might state to the
Company's members those matiers we are required 1o state to them in
an cuditor's report and for no other purpase To the fullest exient
permitted by low, we do not cccept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, of for the opimens we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibiliies statement sat out
on page 40, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
fnancial statements and for being sahsfied that they give o true and fair
view Qur sesponsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the
financie! statements in accordance with applicable law and
Internaticnal Stendords on Auditing {UK and Ireland)  Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Praciices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the emounts and disclosures
in the finanaial siatlements suficient to give recsonable assurance that
the financial saiements are free from matencl misstatement, whether
coused by froud or emmor This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are approprate to the Group's and the Company's
arrcumsianees ond have been consistently applied and adeguately
disclosed, the recsonableness of significent aecounting estimates mede
oy the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements
tn addiion, we read dll the financial and norfinancial information in
the Report and knanciol siatements 1o identfy matenal inconsistencies
wath the audited finaneial siatements I we become aware of any
apporent matenal missialements o Incensistencies we consider the
imphications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinton the financicl statements

* gwe a tiue and forr view of the sicte of the Group’s and of the
Company's aitarrs as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's loss
for the year then ended,

* have been oroperly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accouning Prochice, ond

* have been prepared In accordence with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

s orchant co vk

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opnion the formation given m the Report of the directors for the
financial yeor for which the financiol statements are prepared 15
consisient with the financial staiemerts

Matters on which we are required to report by

exception

We have nothing to repont in respect of the following matiers where the

Companies Act 2000 sequires us to report 1o you if, 1n our opimion

* adequale accounling records have not been kept by the Company,
of returns adeguate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not visited by us, o

* the Company financial sictements are not In agreement with the
accounting records and retums, or

* certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by low are not
made, or

* we have not recerved dll the iffermation and explanations we require
fg,r our audit
ernt ¢ YNowa P

Tony McCarlney\_)

Senor statory auditor

for and on behalf of

Ernst & Young LLP

Statutory Auditor

Cambridge

2B February 2013
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Group profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Noles £000 £000
Group turnover
Conlinuing operahons 131,364 135057
Operating proFIt before amortisahon and excephonu| items
Continuing operations 6,301 i0,415
Amortisation of goodwill and other intangible assets I {4,560) {4,616}
Impaiment of intangible assets 3 {4,815)
Restructuring cosls 3 {1,312 (3,095}
Group operating {loss)/profit 2 (4,386 2,704
Income from 1avestments 5 19 25
Interest payable 6 {5,571} {1648)
Cther hnance expense 29 {783) [60)
{Loss}/ profit from ordinary aciivihes befere taxahon 110,721} 1,021
Tax on flossl/proft kom ordinary actvites 7 (4,053) (2,549}
Loss from ordinary actviies after taxation {14,774 {1,528)
Minonty interests 205 66
Loss for the financia! year attributable to members of the Company {14,569 (1,462)
Earnings/lloss) per share — Basic 10 {106 4p) (10 &pl
Conlinuing operations 10 (106 4p) 10 &p)
Diluted 10 (106 4p) (10 &p)
Adjusied 10 19 8p 43 ip

There 1s no matenal difference between the profils caleulated on an historical cost basis and those presented above
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Group statement of total recognised gains and losses

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

MNote £000 £000

Lass for the hinancial year atinbulable to members of the parent company (14,569} {1,462}
Actuanal losses recegnised on dehined beneit pension schemes 2¢ (34} {15,790}
Mavement on deferred fax osset associoled with pension scheme defici 10 4,269
Change in deferred 1ox assel on pension scheme deficit ansing frem o change in the rate of corporation tox (594) {606
Total recogmised gains and {losses} relating 1o the year {15,187} (13,589}

Group reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note £000 £000
Opening shareholders' funds 40,174 57.060
Total recognised gamns and losses (15,187} {13,58%}
Dindends Q {2,752) 12,779}
Issue of rew shares 10 -
Purchases of own shares 71 {518)
Toal movemenis in the year (17.936) 116,886)
Closing shareholders’ funds 22,238 40174

2 asane arrhent fa ok
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Balance sheets

as at 31 December 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
MNoles £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 1 45,711 54,595 -
Tangible assets 12 28,960 32,318 i
Investments 13 Q1 43 166,863 166,863
74,762 86,956 166,864 166,863
Current assets
Stocks 14 1,267 1,359 -
Debtors 15 19,297 21,368 85,806 85,492
Caosh at bark and n hand 146 3,663 4,194 7 Q
24,227 26921 85,813 85,501
Creditors — amounts falling due within ane year 17 34,622 27815 3,017 6,840
Net current {liabilhes)/ assels (10,395) {894) 82,796 78,661
Total assets less current abilibes 64,367 86,062 249,660 245 524
Creditors — amounts faling due ofter more than one year 18 18,515 21,237 205,210 213,320
Provisions for lichilites 20 751 1,956 - 500
Net assets excluding pension scheme Liability 45,101 62,869 44,450 31,704
Defined benehl pension icbility 29 22,857 22,709 -
Net assets including pension scheme hability 22,244 40,160 44,450 31,704
Capital and reserves
Colledup share capital 21 2,873 2,872 2,873 2872
Share premwm account 22 2,625 2616 2,625 2,616
Revaluahon reserve 22 255 285 -
Chher reserves 22 2,647 2,654 {5,072) {5,065)
Proft and loss account 22 13,838 31,747 44,024 31,281
Shareholders” funds 22,238 40,174 44,450 31,704
Minanty mterests 4 [14) -
22,244 40,160 44,450 31,704

RW Jewson
Chairman

BG McCa

Finance Director

28 febwary 2013
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Group statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Noles £000 £000

Cash flow from operating activines 24 7,572 13,095
Relurns on ivesiments and servieing of finance 25 {1,055) {1,355}
Taxction (11 {338]
Copital expendiure and financial invesiment 25 {1,298) {1,789)
Acquisitons and disposals 25 (264) 72)
Equity dvidends paid Q {(2,752) 2,779
Cash inflow before use of hiquid resaurces and finanang 2,190 6,762
Financing 25 11,619 (4,518}
Increase in cash 26 571 2,244

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net deht (Note 26)

| 2012 2011

£000 £000

Incresse in cosh 571 2,244
Cash flow from decrease in loans 1,000 4,000
loan issue costs 622 -
Change i ret debt resuling from cash flows 2,193 6,244
Amortisahon of loan 1ssue costs 1513} (374)
Chenge m ret debt 1,680 5,870
et debt ot 1 Jonuory (17,387} (23,257}
Net debt at 31 December (15,707} {17,387}

~ vorchant co vk
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

1, Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements hove been prepored under the histoncal cos!
convention modified by the revaluation of certan freehold and
leasehold properties, and 1n accordance with UK Generally Accepled
Accounting Proctice

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect
its future development, its financial position, financiol nsk management
objecrives, tis exposures to hquidity, nlerest rate, foreign exchange,
credit ond prce nsk, and detalls of its financial instruments, are
described in the Financial review on pages 8 to 11 and Note 23

to the financial statements

The Group has considerable financial rescurces and facilihes avallable,
logether with secure longterm contracts with prncipal suppliers The
Group’s budgeting and forecasting processes include the preparation
of forecast cash fows, based on expected trading resulls, the Group's
overall working capital requirements and other nonrading cash items,
including capital expenditure, tnterest, debt and toxatien These
forecasts indicote that the Group has an adequate level of facilites

io meet its forecast cosh requirements, and as a consequence, the
directors believe that the Group 15 well placed to manage #s business
nsks successfully desptte the current unceriain economic cutlook

Afer making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectaiion that
the Compony and the Group have adequate resources to continue In
operational existence for the ioreseeable future Accordingly, the
directors have continued to adopt the going concern basis 1n prepaning
the financial statements

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial stotements of
the Company and all its subsidiory underiakings drawn up to 31
December each year No profit and loss account 1s presented for the
Company, as permited by secion 408 of the Companies Act 2006

Enies 1n which the Group holds an nierest on @ longterm basis and
are jomily controlled by the Group and one or more ofher venlurers
under a contraciual arrangement are treated as joint ventures In the
Group financial siatements, joint ventures are accounted for using the
gross equily method

34

Intangible fixed assets

{a) Newspaper and magazine hiles
On the acquisition of o business the cost of investment 1s allocated
between net fongible assels, goodwill ond newspeper or mogazine
iles on a forr value basis The fair value of newspaper tiles 1s
assessed by the directors at the date of acquisition, supported by a
comparative view of similar ransactions within the newspaper
industry The faur value of magazine titles 1s mited lo an amount that
dees nof creale or Increase any negatve gooadwall arsing on the
acgusttion

Newspoper and magazine tilles are amortised on @ straight line
basis over ther estmated useful Iives, subject to @ maximum of 20
years

The carrying volue of newspaper and magazine tiiles 1s reviewed for
impairment at the end of the first full year following acquisiion and
in other penods if events or changes 1n circumsiances indicate that
the carrying value may not be recoverable

Newspaper and mogazine hiles created within the business are not
capitalised and expendiiure is charged ogomst profits in the year in
which it is incurred

Newspoper and magozine tiles acquired pror 1o 31 December
1997 were classified as goodwiil and waitten off directly to
reserves

(b} Goodwill
Goodwill ansing on acquisiions pror to 31 December 1997 was
st off dwectly against reserves and hos not been renstated on
smplementaton of FRS 10

Goodwil ansing on cequisitons since 1 January 1998 15
copiichsed, classifed as an asset on the balance sheet, ond
amorised on o straight ine basis over ils useful economic bfe,
subject to o moximum of 20 yeors 1t 1s reviewed for impairment at
the end of the first full inancial year following the acquisiion and In
other peniods «f events or changes in circumsiances indicate Ihat the
carying value may rot be recoverable

If o subsidiary, associate or business is subsequently sold or closed,
any goodwill ansing on acquistion tha! was watten off directly 1o
reserves 15 foken inio account In determining the profit or loss on sale
or closure
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. Actounting poelicies {contnued)

Tangible fixed assets
Freehold properes are carmed of therr frozen 1996 valuations, as
permuited by FRS 15 "Tongible Fixed Assets”, os adusted for

subsequen: addimens, disposals, deprecicticn and impairment, f any

All other assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciaion and
imparment if any Such cost includes the cost of refurbishing or
replacing part of an asset when that cost 1s incurred, provided thet the
recogninon critenga are met

Freehold land 15 not depreciated  Depreciation and amarmisation s
provided on oll other assets on ¢ stroight fine basis estimaled to wrile
off the cost or valuation of those assets, less their esimated residual
values, over therr useful Iives at the following rates

Freehold buildings 2%
Leasehold buldings ~ long 2%
- short Period of lease

Between 7% ond 33%

Plant, equipmen: and vehicles

Website development costs

Costs incurred n the development and mointenance of websiies a:e
expensed as incurred, and are only cepialised if the cnitera specified
in UITF 2¢ "Website development cosis” cre mel

Leases

Assets acquired under hnance leases are capitalised in the balance
sheet and deprecioted over the shorier of therr respechive lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets

Renlals pa:d under operating leases are charged to ncome on a
stranght hine basis over the term of the lease

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
includes all costs incurred 1n bringing eoch product to s present
lecation and condition

Row matenals, consumables and goods for resole are siated at
purchase cost on a fistkin, hrstout basis

~ ra archant co uk

Deferred taxation

Deferred 10x ts recogmised in respect of oll iming differences that hove
onginated but not reversed at the talance shest date where transactions or
events have occurred af thar date that will result in on obligation to pay
more, or ¢ nght io pey less or o receve more, iox, with the following
exceptions

e provision 1s made for tox on gamns ansing from the reveluation {and
similar fair value adjusiments} of fixed assels, and gains on disposal of
fixed assets that hove been oled over nto replacement osse's, only to
the extent that, Gt the balance sheet date, there 1s a binding agreement
lo dispose of the assets concemed However, no provision 1s made
where, on the basis of all avaloble evidence at the balance sheet date,
it 15 more likely than not that he taxable gain will be rolled over info
replocement assets and charged to tax only when the replacement
assets are sold,

¢ deferred tax osse's are recognised only o the extent that the directors
consider that it 1s more likely than not that there will be sutable taxable
profits from which the future eversal of the underbing nming differences

can be deducted

Delerred tox 15 measured on an undiscounted bosis at the tax raes that are
expected 1o apply in the pericds in which nming differences reverse, based
on fax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted of the balance
sheet dote

Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the Group has o present obligation as o
result of o post event, and 1t 15 probable that the Group will be required 10
setile that obligation Prowisions are measured at the directors” best eslimate
of the expenditure required to sefle the obligation af the balonce sheel
date, ond are discounted 1o present value where the effect 15 matenal

Foreign currency transachions

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are recorded at the raies ruling at the
dates of the ransactions Monetary assels ond habilites denominoied n
foreign currencies are transloted inlo stering of the rates ruling af the
balance sheet dote  All exchange differences are taken to the profit and
loss occount

The troding resuls of foreign stbsidiary undenakings are tfranslaied inio

stelling at average rates for the yeor All other exchenge differences are
taken to the prefit and loss accourt
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. Accounting policies (conhnued)

Pensions

The defined benelit pension scheme operated by the Group requires
coninbutions to be made 1o separately adminisiered funds  The scheme
was closed to new members in February 1998 from which nme
membership of a defined contibuiion plan 1s available

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit scheme 1s
de'ermined using the projected unit method, which alinbutes entilement
to benehts lo the current penod {lo determine current service cosi) and to
the current and prior penods {to determine the present value of defined
beneht abligations) and 15 based on acluana! advice  Past service cosis
are recognised in profit or doss on o straight line basis over the vesting
pericd or immedrately 1f the benehits have vested When a serflement or
curtalment eccur the change in the present value of the scheme
hichiliies and the faw value of the scheme assels reflects the gain or loss
which 1s recognised in the profit end loss account Losses are measured
ot the date that the employer becomes demorstrably committed fo the
transaction and gams when all parties whose consent 5 required are
wrevocably committed to the trensachon

Tre inferest element of the defined beneft cost represents the change in
present volue of the scheme obligations resulting from the passage of
nme, ond 15 determined by applying the discount rate to the opening
present value of the beneh: obligation, taking into account metenol
changes in the obligation dunng ihe year The expecied return on
scheme assets I1s bosed on an assessment made ot the beginning of the
year of longterm market returns on scheme assets, adjusted for the
effect on the fair value of scheme ossets of contributions receved and
benefiis paid during the year The difference between the expected
reium on scheme assets and the interest cost 1s recogmised 1n the prohi
and loss account as other finance income or expense

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised 1n full 1n the Group statement
of total recogrised gams and losses in the perod in which they occur
Any difference between the expected return on scheme assets ond that
actuclly achieved ond ony differences that anse from expenence or
essumption changes are also charged through the Group siatement of
toal recogmised gams and losses

The defined benefit pension asset or liobility in the Group balance sheet
comprises the present volue of the defined benefit obligation {using o
discount rate bosed on high quality corporate bonds| less ony past
service cost not yet recognised and less the farr value of scheme assets
oul of which the obligations are to be seilled dwectly, net of delered

iox Fair value 1s bosed on market prce information and in the cose of
ouoied secunties 1s the published bid price The value of @ net pension

benefit asset 15 limiled to the amount that may be recovered erher
through reduced conrbutions or agreed refunds from the scheme

The Group operates a defined coninbution pension scheme, which 1s
open io digble employees The Group's contnbutions are charged fo
the profit and loss account in the year in which they are payable

Addiioncly, the Group coninbutes to two small Group personal
pension plans for certain employees who are not pariciparis in one of
the Group's pension schemes

The Group also makes provssion for the capital value of unfunded
pensions to certain current and former employees in accordance with
independent actuanal advice

Segment reporting

Group actvties are predominantly UK based and compnse a single
trade of pubhshing newspapers and magazines in prat, onhne and
through mabile technologies, and printing newspapers As the directors
believe that he gecgraphical markets do not differ substantially from
one cnother, no segmenial reporting by business segment or
geographical area hos been separately disclosed

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideralion recaved or
recevable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of
ihe Group's actvisies Revenue 1s shown net of value cdded tax, tade
discounts and anticipated rewms ahter ehiminating sales within the
Group

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably mecsured,  1s probable that future economic benehits will flow
to the entity and when specific cntena have been met for each of the
Group's acivities as follows

¢ Adverising and circulation revenues are recognised on publication
or display

¢ Subscnplion revenues are recognised over the penods to which the
subscrpiions relate

* Printing ond contract publishing revenues are recognised on delvery
of the publication

*» Other revenues are recognised when the goods or services have
been suppled or provided 1o the customer, and there 15 ¢ conraciual
obhgailon for ihe customer to pay for those goods or services
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Nofes to ihe financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

1, Accounting pelicies [continued)

Share-based payments - equity-settled transactions

The cost of equiysettled fransoctions with employees 15 meosured by
reference to the icw value at the dole or which they are grented and 15
recognised as an expense over the vesting penod, which ends on the
dete on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award Foir value 1s datermined by reference 1o the price of which
shares 1n the Company have most recently traded through the maiched
bargain fecilly

At each balance sheet date before vesing, the cumulative expense 1s
caleulcted, represeniing the extent o which ihe vesting penod has
expired and the manogement's best esimate of the achievement or
otherwise of nonmarket conditons and of the number of equity
nstrumeryts that will ultimately vest The movement in cumulotive expense
since the previous balonce sheel date 15 recognised i the income
stofement, with @ comesponding eniry In equiy
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. Group operating profit

2012 2011
iNotes £000 £000
Tumover from continuing operations 131,346 135,057

1

Operating costs I
Change in stocks of fmished goods and goods for resale (2 5
Raw ma'enals and consumables 10,966 10,398
Staff costs 4 56,154 55,862
Depreciction of tongible fixed assels 12 4,689 4,703
Amarhsanon of infangible assets 11 4,560 4616
{Profits] /losses on disposal of langible fixed assels (81) 36
Profit on disposal of fixed asset nvesiments - {66)
Rental of property 1,268 1,584
Rental of plant and equipment 2,227 2,214

Auditors' remuneration

Group audit . %0 130
Tax comphance | 128 -
Other services 53 424
Orher operating charges 49,573 49,352
129,625 129,258
Onerating prehil before impairment and exceptional items 1,741 5,709
Impairment of intangtble assets 3,1 {4,815) -
Excepuonal items 3 (1,312) 13,095}
Operoting {loss)/ prokit {4,386} 2,704
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Notes 1o the financial statfements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

3, Exceptional items

; Note | Cash flow impact ; Proht and less aecount
Z 2012 2011 | 2012 2011
. £000 £000 £000 £000
Recognised in arrving at operating profit | ’:
Impanrerent of intangible ossels T - i {4,815] -
Restuchuring costs ; : {1,557) 12,603 ! 1978} (2,447}
Group legal restructunng ! {425) (216} | - (648}
Costs incurred in preparation for pensions cuta enrolment i {125} E (125) -
Claim from The Dublin Daily News bmited i i (174) i 224
Costs incurred on exceptonal tax matters ; ! {233) | (433) !
| ‘ i
; E {2,516) (2,819 | {6,127) {3,095)
Recognised below operahing profit | E ! '
Accrued inlerest on late payment of corperation tax : : ! {4,057) E
| i '
Total exceptional ttems ; E 12,516) (2,819} ; (10,184) ! (3,005

Restructuring costs
fhe resfructuning costs anse from redundoncies and related property exit and relocation costs resuling from a number of initiaives to improve the
productvty of the operating divisions

Group fegol restructuring
Dunng 2011, the Group undertock a legal restructuring to substantially reduce the number of aciive companies in the Group The simplified
stucture has greater flexibilty for changes in manogement responsibiliies and has reduced the costs of reguiatory complionce

Costs incurred in preparation for pensions auto enrolment
The govemment has iniroduced auto enrclment for pensions, which tokes effect for the Group from September 2013 These costs have been
incurred in preporation o ensure that the Group will comply with this rew legislanon by September 2013

Clam from The Dublin Dc11|y News Limited

in July 2003 The Dubiin Daily News Lmited {"DDN"), ¢ newspaper publishing company based in Bublin in which the Group had token o 20%
holding, ceosed frading

The Company received a statement of claim dated 8 February 2008 from the liquidator of DDN seeking udgement in the sum of approximately
€500,000 plus costs in relation to nontash considerahion for the issue to the Company of shares in DDN I November 2012, o final sefilement
of this claim was negotiated and agreed at an amount less than that provided n prior years” financial statements

Costs incurred on exceptional tax matters

The Groug has incurred costs related to o tax marter deting back as far as 2003, for which piowision for potential tox habiliies and 1nterest of
£3,695 000 and £4,057,000 respechvely has been made  This follows the result of ¢ test case taken by another company to @ Tax Tnbunal
whose decision was published lote 11 2012 Despite the Group's fects being substannally diffferent, this decision places uncertainty on the
sirength of the Group's case and the Beard has therefore concluded that 1t 15 now appropnate to make full accounting provision for these
amounts

All excepiional sems recognised in amving ot operating profit anse from the continuing operaticns of the Group
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

4, Staff costs

Group Company
Average monthly number of staff 2012 2011 2012 2011
i
; | |
Publishing and prining 1,797 [ 1898 - 1
Group head office 25 | 3t 25 | 3t
rm—————— - — I {
| |
1,822 ! 1,929 | 25 | 31
i
Fulltime equivalents 1702 | 1,777 23 | 28
Group j Company
2012 2013 2012 2011
Pay and benefits £000 £000 E £000 £000
s
Wages and salanes 46,569 47118 E 1,612 1,538
Scaial securty costs 4,554 4616 | 206 191
Other pension cosls 5,031 4,128 ! 348 260
b
56,154 55,862 | 2,166 1,089
i

The average monthly number of sicff shown above for the Group heed office includes six (2011 five] norexecutive directors of the Company
Directors’ emcluments and other benefits are disclosed in the Directors” remuneraiion report on page 42

Share-based payments

The Group operaies two longterm Incennive Plans and a Shore Incertive Plan all of which may result in eligible employees of the Group receving
part of their remuneration Ir the form of shares in the Company {"equitysetiled ransoctions”)

The expense recognised for sharebased payments in respect of employee services recewved durning the year ended 31 December 2012 1s £nil for
both the Group and the Company (2011 £ni for both the Group and the Company

2011 long-term incentive plan (2011 LTIP)
The 2011 LTIP was approved by shareholders of the AGM on 13 Apnl 2011

In any financial year, an employee may be gronted approved share options and nikcost options over shares in Archant Limited, the final vesting of
which 15 subject to continued employment within the Group ond satisfaction of the performance conditions

For the ophons granied, the proportion that vests will be determined by the Group's adjusted somings per share, aggregatad over a threeyear
period, measured against targets sef at the beginning of the plan cycle

Ne options were granted dunng 2012
The approved share options and mkcost options can be exercised between the third ond tenth anniversary of gront The Remuneration Commitiee

may award a paricipant a conditional discretionary bonus award, payable in cash, whose maximum gross cmount 15 equivalent to the value of
ihe approved share oplions subject to the bonus cward on the gront date
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

4. Staff costs {continued)

Share options issued under the 2011 LTIP Number of shares % Weighted overage
; exercise price
i

Outsianding at 31 Decermber 2011 159,000 | 400

tapsed dunng the year {2,000 | 400
|

Outstanding at 31 December 2012 150,000 | 400

It 15 not enticipated that the performance condinons will be met, and ne provision has been made for the cost of any options cutstanding ct the
year end which moy be exercised in fuiure yeors

2006 long-term incentive plan (2006 LTIP)

No owords have been made under the 2006 LTIP since the approval of the 2011 iTIP on 13 Aprl 2011 for owords made under the 2006 LTIP
the vesting of shares 1s subject to confinued employment within the Group and sahsfaction of the performance condiions s determined by the
Group’s adjusted earnings per share, oggregaled over a threeyear penod, measured against targets set at the beginning of the plan cycle

A 31 December 2012, there were 142,700 shares held by the {TIP Trustee which could potenticlly vest in 2013 It s not anticipated that these
shares will vest, and no provision has been made for the cost of any shares which may vest in 2013

Share incentive plan (SIP)

The SIP 15 on HMRC approved scheme Elgible employees moy be invited from time 10 ime to purchase sheres |'Partnership Shares'} in the
Company, and may be awarded further shares, etther conditional on the purchase of Portnership Shares {'Matching Shares’) and/or
uncondtionally {'Free Shares’] All SIP shares are held by the SIP Trusiee en behalf of the participating employees

The Compoany funds the SIP Trustee to purchase Maiching Shares and Free Shares on behalf of paricipants n accordance with the nles of the SIP
(the "Rules”) The shares so acquired ate valued by reference 1o the price at which shares 1n the Company have most recently fraded through the
molched borgain facility The value of Maiching and Free shares owarded 15 recognised 1n the profit and loss account in the year that the award 1s
mode The SIP Trustee also acquires, without cost, shares as o result of therr forfeiture by SIP participonts n accordance with the Rules

5. incame from investments

2012 2011
£000 £000
Interest and dividends receved
Listed investments 1% 1
Crher interest - 24
19 25
6. Interest payable
2012 2011
£000 £000
Bank overdrclis ond loans 1,000 1,266
Amortisation of loan 15sue costs 513 374
Irterest on late payment of comeration tax 4,058
Other interest - 8
5,571 1,648
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. Tax on {loss)/profit from ordinary activities

{a) Tax on (loss)/profit from ordinary activities:
The laxahon charge 1s made up as follows

1
2012 | 2011
Note £000 | £000
i
Current fox [
UK corporation tax &0 ! 11,472}
Tax overprovided i pror years {470} | {70}
Exceptional tax provided in respect of prior years 3,695 | .
i
Current tax on {loss)/profit om ordinary aclivies 7lb) 3,285 ; {1,540}
Deferred tax !
Cngiration and reversal of tming differences 188 3,499
Ongination and reversal of pension scheme hming differences 156 ¢ 354
Adjusiments in respect of prior years 287 | {207
Adustment ansing from change in rate of corporation tox 137 ¢ 4572
i
Total deferred tax 768 | 4,098
Tax cn {loss)/proflit flom ordinary cemvines 4,053 } 2,54¢

{b) Factors affecting tax charge

The 1ax assessed on the [loss)/profit from ordinary octivities for the year 1s higher (2011 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK of 24 5% 12011 26 5% The differences are reconciled below

2012 2011
Note £000 £000
{toss)/proht om ordinary ectivities before tox {10,721) 1,021
ftoss)/profit from ordinary activities muliphed by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2,627) | 271
Expenses not deduchible for tax purpases 274 19
inehgible amortisation of goodwill ond ntangible assets 1,330 56
Inelgible mpairment of ntangble assets 547
Decelerated /accelerated) capital allowances 1,179 |445]
Crher tirmng differences (162} 3221
Trading losses and loan relahionstip deherts not recognised 1,604
Unhsahon of tox losses {2,085) (2,558}
Tox overprovided in previous years {470) {70}
Excephonal tax provided in respect of nrevious yeors 3,695
Total current tax 7la} 3,285 {1,549)
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. Tax on profit from ordinary aclivities [coniinued)

{c) Factors that may affect future tax charges
The Finence Act 2012 enacted on 17 July 2012 reduced the main «aie of UK Corporation Tax to 24% from 1 Apnl 2012 and 1o 23% fom
I Apni 2013 Deferred tax has been resiored accordingly at 23% n these financial siciements

The UK govemment has proposed reducing the UK corporation tax rate by o further 1% per annum to 21% kom 1 Aprd 2014 This reducton had
noi been subsianively enacted ot ihe balance sheet do e and consequenty iis effect 1s not included in these finoncial siatemenss The effect of this
announced reduction would be o reduce the deferred tox osset by approxmetely £730,000

The above changes to the rates of corporation iox will Impact on the amount of future cash iax paymenis o be made by the Company

No prowsion has been made for deferred taxation where potentially taxable gains have been rolled over inio replocement assets Such gons
would become taxable only if the assets were sold without it being possible to daim rollover relief The amount not prowded 15 £332,000
(2011 £361.000) It1s nor emvsaged that any tax will become payable in this respedt in the foreseeable fukre

The Group has tax losses anising in the UK of opproximetely £8,100,000 (2011 £21,000,000) that are available indefinitely for offser against
future Iaxable profits of the company It which the losses arose A defered tox asset has been recogmsed i respect of these losses as on the basis
of all availcble evidence 1t 1s regorded s more hikely than not that there will be suilable loxable profis ogainst which these losses can be utihsed

In addition, the Group has furher tax losses enising 1n the UK of approximately £8,800,000 (2011 £8,900,000) that are available indefinitely
for offset agennst luture taxable profis of those newapaper and magozine porffciios in which the losses arose Deferred tox assets have not been
recogmised In respect of these losses as they may not be used to offset laxable profis elsewhere 1n the Group, and they have ansen in newspaper
and magazine portfolios that coninue lo incur losses

The Group clso has norrade loan relationship deficiis and management expenses camed forward of approxmately £5,300,000 {2011 Enil)
A defened tox asset has been recogmised on £2,000,000 of these deficis s on the basis of all avallable evdence 1t 1s regarded as mere hkely
than not that here wilt be suitable taxable nomiiade Income against which these deficis can be utlsed

The market value of the Groups bsted invesiments ard the direciors’ valuahon of the Group's unlisted investments ore 1n excess of iherr book values as
disclosed n Note 13 [Fthey were sold ot those values there would be o Tabilty to tox of @ maxmum of £233,000 (2011 £269,00C) on the
capilal gan ansing from the scle

{d) Deferred taxation asset
The deferred taxaton included i1n the balance sheet 15 as follows

Grouo Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Noles £000 £000 £000 £000
Included n debtors 15 1,544 2,156 7 7
Included 1n defined benefit pension hebility 29 6,828 j 7,568
i 8,372 Q724 7 7

The movemeris in the cmounts recogmised for deferred tox are es foliows

Gioun Company

£000 £000
Al 31 December 2011 including deferred tox on defined benefit pension lichiity 9.724 7
Defered tax charge in Group profit and loss account {768]
Amounis charged to siatement of ictal recogmised goins and losses | {584
At 31 December 2012 including deferred tax on defined beneht pension liabikity I 8,372 7
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. Tfax on profit from ordinary activities {continued)

(d) Deferred taxation asset [coninued)
Deferred toxaton recognised in the financial statements and the amounts not provided are as follows

Group Cormpany
Recognised Mot provided Recognised Nor provided

20012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
{Accelerated)/ decelerated
capiait allowances {827) (3,184) 2 2
Capial gans relled over, less
caprial kosses camed forward (262) {285)
Losses comed forword 1,765 5,246 2,014 2,221
Loan relationship deficits end
management expenses
carned forward 458 - 786 113 104 13
Pension costs 6,828 7,568 - - -
Other iming differences 148 94 - 5 5

8,372 9,724 2,538 2,049 7 7 104 113

8. {Loss}/profit attributable to members of the parent company

The profit dealt with in the financial statements of the parent company was £15,495,000 (2011 loss £4,797,000]

9, Dividends

2012 2011
£000 £000
Ceclered and paid during the year
Equity dividends on ordinary shares
Final dvidend for 2011 13 7p (fincl dvidend for 2010 13 7p) 1,877 1,902
ivenm dvidend for 2012 & dp {interrm dvdend for 2011 6 4p) 875 877
2,752 2,779
Proposed for approval of the Arnual General Mesting and not recogrised os o liobility of 3 T December
Equity dividends on oidinary shares
Final dividend for 2012 0 0p {2001 13 7p) 1,877

There are no dmidends occiued as liabiines ar erther year end
Under the rules of the 2006 LTIP no dividend shall be poyable on resincied shares held by participonts The trusiees of the Archant Employee

Benefit Trust have given a continuing wasver on the dvidends payable on shares that they hold i the Company From 1 Octcber 2011, the SiIP
Trustee hos also given a continuing waiver on the dividends payable on unallocated shares held by the SIP Trust
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Notes o the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

10, {Loss}/earnings per ordinary share

The calculaions of both bosic loss per ordinary shere and diluted cost per ordinary share cre based on losses of £14,569,000 2011 loss
£1,462,000) ord on 13,698,000 {2011 13,798,000 ordinary sheres, being the weighted averoge number of shares in ssue duning the
year, excluding the shares held by the Employee Trusts, and the restncted shores ssued under the 2006 LTIP

No resincted shares 1ssued under the 2006 LTIP or share options granted under the 2011 LTI have been included as diluive potential ordinary

shares 10 201 1 or 2012 as they do not increase loss per shore and ore so not dilutve

As In previous years, adjusled earnings per share have also been disclosed as the directors consider thai this aliernaiive meosure gives a more

comparable indication of the Group's underying trading performance

The adjusted ecrnings per share has been calculated by using the profits/(losses) atiributable to shareholders, adjusted os follows

; 2012 2012 | 2011 2011
: Pance : Pence
E £000 per share | £000 E per share
{ | '
loss attrbutable to sharehalders/loss per share : (14,569) (106 4) i (1,462) {10 6}
Excephonal ems { 1,312 96 l 3095 224
Amomsation of goodwill and other intangible assets ; 4,560 33, 4,616 1 334
Imparrment of intangible assets i 4815 352 11 " -
Tex impact of excephonal tems, imparment ond excephonal inferest E {1,298} 9 5) (750) ! 15 4)
Excephional interest aeerual on prior year corporation lox liabilihes E 4,057 296 | .
Exceptional corporation tax charge for prior yeers i 3,695 270 i | -
Deferred tax adjusiment ansing on change in rate of corparahon tax E 137 10 | 452 | 33
- E ; i
Adjusled earnings per share E 2,709 ! 198 ! 5,951 ; 431
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

11. Intangible fixed assets

E Films i Mewspaper ifles {Magozine tilles : Goodwil ; Totci
Group i £000 ' £000 £000 £000 £000
‘. - :
Cost ! | i |
&t 31 December 2011 ‘I 4100 112,489 59,515 | 6,749 182,853
Acguistions ' ; 491 | 491
! f !
At 31 December 2012 i 4100 1+ 112,489 59515 | 7240 | 183,344
| E | | |
Amortisahon i E i i
At 31 December 2011 3 2,487 E 0,587 30,703 I 4 481 ; 128,258
Provided during the year ! E 1586 2,605 ; 369 | 4,560
Impairment : - 3,276 1144 | 395 | 4,815
t ¥ 1 i
H i 1
At 31 December 2012 | 2,487 i 95,449 34,452 | 5,245 i 137,633
; I | i
Net book value E t ! :
At 31 December 2012 ! 1,613 | 17,040 25,063 1,995 ; 45,711
A
! a
A1 31 December 201 1 | 1,613 | 21,902 28,812 2,268 | 54,595
| ] i

Goodwill ansing on the acquisiion of subsidiary undertakings 15 being amortised evenly over the directors” estmate of its useful economic Iife,
subject fo a maximum of 20 years

Newspaper titles are amorhsed evenly over the direciors” estimates of their useful economic lives, subject 1o a maximum of 20 years
Mogozine tiles are amorised evenly over the directors” estimates of therr useful economic fives, subject 1o a maximum of 20 years

Tre Group owns the copynght and physical matenal of two films The films are camed ot estimated nef rechsable vaolue, caleulated as the minimum

value of future royalies recevable  The carrying volue 1s matched by inverest free loans, secured on the films and repayable out of film receipts up
lo 14 December 2013

The carrying values of all intongible assets are reviewed for impairment at the end of the hirst full year following acquisiton and in olher penods if
events or changes in circumstances iIndicate the carrying values may not be recoverable

impairment of intangible fixed assets

Newspaper tiles, megazine hiles and goodwll are allocated, at acquisition, 1o the Income Generating Units (KUs) that are expected to benefit from
that business combination The recoverable amounts of the IGUs are determined from valuenn-use caleulations The key assumptions for the valuetn
use calculations are these regording the growih rates, expected changes to revenues and direct costs during fhe pernod, and the discount rates
agplied These assumptions have been reviewed duning the year in light of the current economic environment The valuenuse calculation uses post
tox cash flow projections based on the financial budgets approved by the Board for 2013 The growih rates for cash flows beyond 2C13 assume
an annwal RP increase only and no underlying growth Changes in revenues and direct costs are based on past prachices and expeciations of
market development Management estimates discount rates using postiox rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money end
the nisks specific to the IGUs The cast of caprial and iherefore the discount rate applied fo future cash flows wes unchonged at 11 7%

Tre Groun prepares discounted cash flow forecasts derved from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the next year and

axrapolates cash flows for 20 years from the date of tesiing based on on esimated ennuel growth rate of 2 5% A discounted residucl value of one
imes the fincl year's cash flow 1s included n the forecast The present value of the cash flows 15 then compared fo the camying value of the asset
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Notes to the tinancial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

11, Intangible fizred assets (continued)

Impairment of intangible fixed assets {continued)

Gwven the cusrent diticult keding chmate, and the erucipaied timing end extent of the recovery, cenamn of the Group's newspaper tiles have been
mpaired The camying value for the newspaper tiles published by the london and Kent business units before any impairment charge were
£15,905,000 and £2,359,000 respecively The values inuse have been calculaied as £13,961,000 ond £1,026,000 respectively, resuling
i impanment chorges of £1,944,000 and £1,333,000 respectvely |n addition, certain of the Group’s magazine tiles have been impaired The
magazines concerned had aggregate canying values of £1,264,000, and valussinuse calculated at £120,000, resuling in impairment charges
of £1,144,000 Some of the Group's goodwill has also been imparred Goodwill with a carrying value of £395,000 has @ caleulated valuesin-
use of £nil, resuliing (n an impairment charge of £395,000 {2011 no imparment charge)

The Group has conducted o sensitvify anclysis on the impairment fest of each IGU's carrying value A decrease in the long term growth rate of O 5%

would result in @ further impairment for the Group of £811,000, and an increase in the discount rate of O 25% would result 1n @ further imgairment
of £589,000 A terminal value of five times the final yecr's cash flow would result in @ lower imparment charge by £737,000

t2. Tangible fixed assets

; Freehold land ; lecsehold | Plant, equipment Total
i and buldings ; buldings ¢ and vehicles L

Group | £000 ! £000 £000 | £000
! | i l

Cost or valuchon 3 ; i

At 31 December 2011 | 16,426 1,035 | 54,398 71,859

Additons ; | 12 | 1,380 | 1,394

Dispasals ! (75) (142) @n (258
T I

At 31 December 2012 ; 16,351 | 207 55,737 72,995
E | :

Depreciation . E !

A1 31 December 2011 ! 3950 ° 789 34,802 ! 39,541

Charge for year | 307 a5 4297 4,689

Disposcls : (161 (139) (401 | (195

E
|

At 31 December 2012 ! 4241 735 39,059 E 44,035
| | | i

Net bock vofue i i !

A1 31 December 2012 } 12110 | 172 16,678 ! 28,960
i : ) !

A 31 December 201 ) | 12,476 | 246 : 19596 | 32,318
i 1 1

lncluded in freehcld land and buidings 15 land valved ot £3,383,000 {2011 £3,408,000), which 1s net depreciated
Fellowing the closure of the Ipswich Pant Centre in early 2009, the Group entered into o joint venture armangement in Becember 2010 to develop

the freehold property of Lower Brook Street, fpswich Thie Group 1s progressing towards submiting an application for outline planning permission,
by development will only proceed when there :s o forword scle ogreement
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12, Tongible fixed assets (conhinued)

" T
| FPlont, equpmen Tolal
; ond vehicles i
Company I £000 i £C00
f
i |
Cost ! ;
At 31 December 2011 ; 10 10
Additons E [ i
At 31 December 2012 1 N
= i y
l i
Depreciation ! |
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 l 10 1 10
Nel book value : |
At 31 December 2012 | 1 1
i T
A 31 December 2011 i !
i
The cost or valuanen of land and bulldings ai 31 December 2012 compnses
I -
i Freehold i leasehold
f long i Short
Group £000 | £000 | £000
Al valuation — 1996 12,313 126
Al cost 4,038 781
|
E 16,351 126 ; 781

Alfter taking appropricte professional advice from Ernest Webster FRICS, chartered surveyor, the directors revalued the Group's freehold and long
leasehold properties at 31 December 1996 Certain Group properties identified as petential disposals were valued at open market value  The
remaining Group properiies were valued at open market value for exsting use  Subsequent additions are shown af cost

The historical cost of freehcld and leasehold land and buildings 1s as follows

| Freehold j leasehold
; 2012 | 2011 | 2012 2011
Group ; £000 | £000 | £000 } £000
1 ; t i
Cos! . 157177 1 15761 | 916 | 1,043
: i ! 1
Aggrega.e depreciction E 5,047 % 4831 | 738 | 741
1} L

Depreciction on freehold and leasehold properties for the year has been based on the 1996 revelued amounts Based on cost the consolidated
charge would have been lower by £8,000 {2011 £8,000)
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13, Inveshments

1 Listed i Unlisted Total
Group ; £000 £000 £000
|
E
Cost :
A1 31 December 2011 j 8 60 68
Additions during the year ; : 48 A8
- i
At 31 December 2012 ' 8 108 16
Provisions :
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 | 25 25
¥
1
Net bock value %
At 31 December 2012 ‘ 8 83 Q1
i
Al 31 December 2011 ‘ 8 35 43
: Subsidiary E Listed | Unlisted ; Total
undertokings | i
Company £000 ECQO | £000 ! £000
l !
Cost i ! ‘
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 | 177,321 8 ! 6 | 177,389
! ¥
Provisions \ i %
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 ; 10,501 j 25 . 10,526
| T
iNet book valve ' %
At 31 December 2012 ; 166,820 g8 i 35 166,863
i ]
Al 31 December 2011 166 820 g ! 35 166 863

The market value of the listed investments ot 31 December 2012 was £53,000 {2011 £37,000] for both the Group and the Company
Unlisted investments, which consist entirely of equity share capital, are valued by the directors at £1,052,000 (2011 £1,082,000) for the

Group and £1,004,000 {2011 £1,082,000) for the Company

In arrving at market or directors” valuations, no provision has been made for taxaton which would be chorgeable, amounting io @
moximum of £233,000 (2011 £269,000), n the event of disposals of these values
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

13, investments [conlinued)

The Company’s pnincipal roding subsidiary undertakings, all of which are unlisted componies, are set out below  Archont BHGC Linted 15 @
company hmited by guaraniee given by Archant Holdings Limited  The Group owns 90 0% of Musiard TV Limited and 66 6% of PlanningFinder
Limted Al other subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned With the excephien of The Brnsh Connection, Inc , which 15 incorporated in the
United States of America, all subsidiary undertokings are incorporated n England

Those companies in which the equity 1s held by a subsidiary undertaking are marked with an astensk

Subsidiary undertakings Company | Activity

registration i

number !

f
Archant BHGC Limited 7783475 | Hold:ing company
Aschant Community Media Holdings limited* 4243174 | Holding company
Archant Community Medic Limited * 19300 E Newspaper and magozine publishing, printing and contract publishing
The Brnsh Connection, Inc* Net applcable | Magaozine distribution
Archant Properties Limiied * 2562545 | Froperty
Aschant Holdings Limited 4040110 Helding company
tocal Vouchers Limied™ 7384584 Discount vouchers
Mustard TV Limited * 7982360 | Local television broadcaster
PlanningFinder Limited* 6171969 Online planning searches

Cn 1 June 2012, the Group acguired the remaining 50% of Local Vouchers Limited for a consideration of £266,000 satished in cash

On 5 November 2012, the Group also invested £150,000 to acquire Q0% of Mustard TV Limited, o new company set up fo launch a local TV
chennel 1 Norwich

Under ihe terms of the shareholders’ ogreement, the Group 15 committed to invest a further £300,000 in Mustard TV Lmited in 2013 The minonty
shareholders are olso committed 16 invest further sums and the Group's nvesiment will iemain at 90%

The Group clso has an option to acquire the shares in PlonningFinder Umited not already owned by the Group  The earliest date this option can
be exercised 15 1n Apnl 2014

For all UK subsidiary undertakings hsted above, other than Archani Community Medic limited, in cccordance with section 479C of

Tre Companias Act 2006 the Compoany has guaranteed all outstanding lrabilities to which those subsidiary undertakings are subject ot

31 December 2012 unil they are satshed in full Accordingly, each of those UK subsidianes 1s exempt under secticn 479A from the requirements
of the Componies Act 2006 reloting to the audit of accounts
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14, Stocks
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Raw matenals 1,247 1,341
Finished goods and goods for resale 20 i8
1,267 1,359
15. Debtors
Group Company
2002 2011 2012 2011
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Due within one year
Tiode deblors 13,194 14 Q34 -
Amounts awed by subsidiary undertakings - 37
Crher debtors 1,580 1,145 54 -
Prenayments and accrued income 2,979 3,133 85 421
Corporalion lax recovercble - - 1,326 785
17,753 19,212 1,502 1,206
Due cfter more than cne yecr
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - 84,297 84,279
Ceferred jox asset 7(d) 1,544 2,156 7 7
1,544 2,156 84,304 84,286
Totol debtors 19,297 21,368 85,806 85,492
16. Cash ot bank and in hand
Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash ai bark ond in hand 3,663 4,194 7 @

« prehent co uk
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17, Creditors: amounis falling due within one year

! Group Company
l; 2012 2011 2012 2013
Note | £000 £000 £000 £000
i
Bonk loans and overdrofts 19 E 855 1,957 2,317 5,024
Trade creditors i 5,406 5,557 -
Amounts owed to subsidiary underickings | . 128
Cormorahien iax : 7819 4 544
Tox ond scaial secunty ; 2,508 2,623
Film finance loans : 1,613
Other credttors ; 2,816 1,849 3 2
Accrucls ond deferred income : 10,281 7,278 697 1,686
Subscriptions in advance i 3,324 3,707 -
I
i 34,622 27815 3,017 6,840

The loans relating o film finance ore interest free and repayable out of film receipts prior to 14 December 2013, and so have been reclassified 1o
amounts falling due within ane year They are secured by charges on the copynght and physical matenal relating to two films ewned by the Group
and shown under thet heading in intangible fixed assets

18. Creditars: amounts falling due after more than one year

E Group Company
i 2012 2011 2012 2011
MNote E £000 £000 £000 €000
|
Bark loans and faciines 19 | 18,515 16,624 18,515 19,624
Fiim finance loans E - 1,613 -
Amounis owed o subsidiary underiakings ; 186,695 193,696
1
i 18,515 21,237 205,210 213,320

All iabitties falling due in more than one year malure between two and five years
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19, Bank loans, overdrafts und facilities

The bank loans, overdralis and faciliies comprse
p

Amounis faling due within one year

Group Company
2012 2011 20012 2011
£000 £000 €000 £000
Bank overdrafis 1,462 3,067
Emgployee Beneht Trust overdraft 855 1,957 855 1,957
£
; 855 1,957 2,317 5,024
Amounts faling due cher more than one year
|
! Group Company
§ 2012 2011 2012 2011
! £000 £000 £000 £000
Term revolving advances focility 19,000 20,000 19,000 20,000
Arrgngement fees (485) {376) {485) 1376)
18,515 19,624 18,515 19,624

Bunng 2012, the Group negohated a new bank term revolving advances facilily expinng on 31 March 2016, to replace the previous facibily
which had been due to expire in Aprii 2013 Al the same time, the Group olso agreed new bank overdrafi focilines

The Employee Benehit Trust has o bank overdraft foeliy of £ 1m and any overdraft under this focility 1s guaronteed by the Compeny The Group has
o bank overdralt foality of £3m and any overdrafts under this facility are secured by a floating charge over the undertcking, property, assets and
aghts of cenamn companies in the Group, tagether with cross guarantees from ceriain comparies in the Group

The Compeny has a term revolving advances facility expiing on 31 Masch 2016 for a maximum amount of £30m The maximum amount on this
fecility will be reduced to £28m on 30 June 2013, and wilt be further reduced to £24m by equal annval reductions on 30 June 1n each of years

2014 and 2015 The undrawn committed facilises available at 31 December 2012, n tespect of which all condwans precedent had been met

o thet date, were £14m (2011 £27m) Provided that the Company conltnues to comply wrth the conditions of the faciity, the Company has the

nght 1o draw down sums up to the amount of the facility for penods ending en or befere the expiry date

The bank loans ond overdralts are shown et of bank faclty arangemens fees of £485,000 (2011 £376,000)

Sums drawn down under the revolving cdvances fociliy cre secured by a foating charge over the undertaking, property, assels and aghis of
certon comoanies in the Group, together with cross guarontees from certain companies in the Group
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20, Provisions for liabilities

The movemenis in provisions are as iollows

j
Dilepdations Other ! Total

and onerous provisions |

leases !
Group £000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2011 1,132 824 ! 1,956
Ansing duning the year 84 | 84
Releosed {37 (262) | {209}
Utihsed {428} (462 | (890}
Transferred to accruals 1100} ; (100)
At 31 December 2012 751 % 751

11
Dilapdations Crher Toial

and onerous provisiens
teases

Company £000 £000 £C00
At 31 December 2011 500 500
Refeased (224} (224)
Unhsed {176} (176)
Transferred to accruals {100) {100}
At 31 December 2012 - - -

Provisions for dilopidations are made in accordance with independent professional advice If the leases run to expiry, without earlier break clauses
being exercised, or without the leases being renewed for a further term, these obligations will mostly be settled within five years, with the remaining

habilihes due in vanous years up to 2036

Provisions for onerous leases are made where the properfies concerned are vacant or subrlet ot less ihan ull rental, and are based on assumpions
about the Group's abibly to subrlet the properties through 1o lease expiry, or to exit the leases early The timing of the setilement of these obligations
s dependent on the termination of the various leases If the leases run 1o expiry, or the exercise of earker breck clauses, these obligations will be

settled within three years

21. Called-up share capitol

Alloted, calledup and hully poid

2012 2011

£000 £000
Ordinory shares of 20p each
14 366,822 1ssued (2011 — 14,361,822 ssued) 2,873 2,872
Movement in ordlnory shares | Number
Shares 1n 1ssue at 1 January 2012 . 14361822
Shares 1ssued for cash on 13 March 2012 at £2 00 1o o senior execulive pursuant o the auihanty given by shareholders on 13 Aonl 2011 5000
Shares in 1ssue ¢t 31 December 20172 14,366,822
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22, Movements on reserves

i Grous i Company
; £000 | £000
i[ ]
Share premium !
At 31 December 2011 i 2,616 2,616
Ansing on share 1ssue ; 9 ! Q
At 31 December 2012 E 2,625 | 2,625
Revaluation reserve {
At 31 December 2011 285 |
Transfer lo proht and loss ceeount (30] | -
I
At 31 December 2012 255 E .
Other reserves !
la) Special reserve ! i
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 i 2,350 . -
{
(b} Capital reserve |
Al 31 December 2011 and 2012 5369 | -
{c} Own shares held f
At 31 December 2011 E (5,065) 5,065)
Purchase of own shares ; 1) ; (7}
i
Al 31 December 2012 ! (5,072) 1. {5,072)
Total other reserves i
A1 31 December 2012 2,647 {3,072}
Al 31 December 2011 2,654 15,065)
| |
Profit and loss account " :
Ai 31 December 2011 31,747 1 31,281
(Loss)/profit from ordinary activines chier taxalion 114 569 ! 15,495
Equilty dividends paid (2,752) 1 [2,752)
Other net recognised gans and losses in the year i
Net movement in pension scheme defict 618 1
Transter kom revoluchon reserve : 30
At 31 December 2012 : 13,838 44,024
: |
Total reserves ;
At 31 December 2012 | 19,365 | 41,577
!
At 31 December 2011 | 37,302 28,832
i
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22, Movements on resarves [contined)

The special reserve was created in 2001 on the cancellatien of the preference shares in Eostern Counties Newspapers Group Limited [now
Archant Cemmunity Media Limited] ["ECNG") to protect the creditors of ECNG ot the date of cancellation The special reserve can be released to
distnbuiable reserves when all of the crediiors of ECNG ai the date of canceliahion have been sonshed

The capilal reserve compnses the balance of the share premium account in he former holding company on ¥ March 2002

Own shares held compnse shores held by the trustess of the EBT, the LTIP Trust and the SIP Trust other than shares being held as a bare tustes
Own shares held compnsed 669,216 shares with @ nominal value of 20p each, aequired ot an average cost of £7 57 each (2011 663,594
shores at £7 63) Purchases of shares in the Company by the EBT have been funded by a bank overdraft guaranteed by the Company and by ©
loan from the Company, ond purchases by the LTIP and SIP have been funded by cash contnbutions from the Company and its subsidianes The
frusts provide sources of shares for use in connection with the SIP and the 2006 LTIP

All expenses incurred by the trusts are setffed directly by the Company, and charged in the financial stotements as incurred

The cumulative amount of goodwall written off to the profit and loss account af 31 December 2012 in the consolidated financial statements 15

£8,032,000 (2011 £8,032,000)

23. Finandial risk management
The Group currently denves 1ts funcing from share capiial, relained profits and bark borowing

The Group's objectves when managing copital are fo safeguard the Group's ability to continue os a going concern To maintain or adjust the
capitel siructure, the Group may adust the dedends paid to shareholders, retun coprial to shareholders or 1ssue new shores

The Board retains responsibility for the agreement of the terms of any new or renewed borrowing faciliies Cash 1s managed centrally, and the
Group's frecsury objective 1s i minimise borrowing cosls and maximise retumns on funds, subject to shortterm hquidity requirements

Financial risk factors
The Group's principal financial nsks are hquidity nisk and interest rate nsk The Group has limited exposure 1o foreign exchange risk, credit nsk and
prce nsk The Group’s overalt nsk strategy seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's performence

Liquichty risk

Liquidity nisk results from having nsufficient financial resources to meet dayto-day fluctuations in working capital and cash flow Ulimate
responsibility for liquidity nsk management rests with the Board  The Group manages lquidity nsk by mantaining adequate reserves, by regularly
monitoring forecast and actual cash Hows and by maintaining @ mixture of longterm and shortterm commitied focilites that are designed 1o ensure
the Group has sufficient availoble funds for operations and planned expansions At 31 December 2012, the amount available under the ferm
focilty wos £30m reducing to £28m on 30 June 2013 The term facility expires on 31 March 2016 in oddiion, the Group has an overdroft
fecility of £3m and the EBT has a further overdraft facility of €1m  The overdraft faciliiies of the Croup and the EBT are repayable on demand
£14m of these facilites remained undrown ot the yeor end, and the Group considers hat 1t should be able to operate wihin the level of its current
facilites

Interest rate nsk
The Group's exposure fo e nsk of changes in market interest rates relates pimanly o the Group's longterm debt obligations with floating in erest rates,

which debts are managed centralty

The Group has adepted o policy to manage its interest cost using @ mix of fixed and vancble rate debts Since 15 December 2011 all of the Group's
longderm debt cbligaions have camed floatng interest rates

The Group’s bank tomrowing faciliies contain financicl covenants besed on cash flow cover, interest cover and the raho of debt io cdjusted EBITDA
Throughout the year the Group mantained cdequaie headroom against these covenants and 1s expected 1o do so nto the foreseeable future
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23. financial risk management (coninued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has a subsidicry undeneking in the United Staies of Amenca, which is miied in scale and largely selinancing  Therefore the Group
has no foraign currency borrowings to hedge the foreign currency invesiment The Group has imited exposure to foreign exchange nisks with
respect 1o ransochions in US dollars and the Euro Due to the low exposure to currency nisk, the Greup does not use forward exchange contracts

Credt risk

The Group has no significant concenirahions of credit nsk The Group has implemented policies that require, where appropniate, credit checks on
poteniial cuslomers before sales commence

Price nisk
The Group has an agreement fo source all newsprint from a single major supplier and negotales prices for newspnnt at least 12 months 1n

advance

24, Reconciliotion of operating profit to operating cash flows

i 2012 | 2011

! £000 | £000

1 T
Operating {loss)/profl ‘ {4,386} | 2,704
Cepreciction of fongible hixed ossets i 4,689 4,703
Amortischion of intangible fixed assets ; 4,560 E 4616
Impairment of ntangible fixed assels ! 4815 |
{Proht}/less on disposals of tangible fixed assets ! (81} ! 36
Profit on disposal of hixed osset investments . 66}
Decrease in stocks : 92 E 32
Decrease in deblors ! 1,459 | 374
|Decreasa)/ increase in credilors ! {962) E 2,532
Movements 1n prowsicos ! {1,205) ! @95
Payment against provisions ! (?4) | {1,595}
Adjustment for FRS 17 pension funding I {1,313) | {1,236}
Cash flow from operating activihies ; 7,572 l 13095
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25. Analysis of cash flows for headings nefted in the cash flow statement

E 2012 | 2011
Nete | £000 | £000
| ! i
Returns on investments and servicing of finance ! 3
Interest receved ] - 24
Dividends received ! 19 i ]
Interest paid (1074) 1 (1,380}
{1,055) {1,355}
i
Capltcﬂ expendlrure and financial investment
Purchase of tang:ble fixed assets j {1,394) (1,878)
Sale of tangible fixed ossets 144 21
Acquisiion of fixed asset investments {48} -
Proceeds on sale of fixed asset investments 1 - ; &6
i 1
‘ {1,298} | (1,789
i 1
Acquisihons and disposals ; :
Acguisitions of businesses 13 {266) [ (77
Bank and cash belances acquired with businesses - 5
! i
! (266) | (72)
| I
Financing ! |
Issue of ordinary share capital | 10 ;
Repayment of laan under bank revolving credit facility ; {1,000) ; {4,000
Issue costs of new banking facihines I, {622) i -
Purchase of own shares | 7 | [518)
] ]
a9t a518)
26. Analysis of net debt
] Attt Cosh flow ; Other At 31
b January | i non<ash December
E 2012 | changes 2012
L os000 | 2000 | £000 £000
| z ‘
Cash ot bank and in hand | 4194 | (531) 3,663
Aschant EBT bank bolances ; {1,957 1,102 ¢ (855)
!
Bank ond cosh balances : 2,237 ‘ 571 ! 2,808
Bank loans ' 20,000} 1 000 i {19,000)
Loan issue costs C oz | 622 | (513) 485
olol " 07387 . 2,193 | (513) (15,707)
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27, Commitments under operating leases

A+ 31 December annual commitments under noncarcelicble operoiing leases were as follows

Lland and buildings | Plont, equipment and vehicles

2012 2011 2012 201
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Operaning leoses which exprre
Within one year 145 386 42 QC
Within two to five years 964 854 1,933 1 629
Over five years 157 204 -

1,286 1,446 1,975 1,719

28. Contingent liabilities

The Company has @ pofenhial liability for rent and other outgoings on a small number of propertes cecupied by a former subsidiary, where the
Company provided a guarantee that they would ensure that the subsidiary met thewr obligations under the lease The leases on the properties

concemed expire in 2018 No claims have been received by the Company ot the date of this report

79. Pension schemes

The principal pension scheme operated by the Group duning 2011 and 2G12 was the Aschant Pension & bife Assurance Scheme {“lhe PLASY), a
hybnd scheme in the United Kingdem with a defined benelii sechon (“the DBS”), which includes a semior management section ("the SMS”), and @
defined contribution sechon (“the DCS") The DBS was closed to new enfrants in February 1998 from which ime membership of the DCS has

teen avaiioble

The pension scheme assefs are held in o separate tusieecdmimsiered fund to meet long ferm pension liobslites to past and present employees The
directors of the Trusiee Company fihe “Trustee Direciors”) of the fund ore required o act in the bes interest of ihe fund's beneficanes The Group
has a policy that ot least onethird of all Trustee Directors should be nominated by members of the fund, including at feast cne Trustee Director by

current pensioners

The Group also poys ex grana pensions on an unfunded basis to ceriain former employees and therr dependents ond, accardingly, provides for

itus habity, caleulated in accordance with actuanal advice, n the financial siatements

Defined contribution section

The Group provides refirement benehis to approximately 45% of current employees through the DCS

i .
. 2012 f 2011
5 £000 | £000
1 i

Centbuhions poyable for the yeor ! 2,932 | 2,643

In preparanon for cuto enrolment, inroduced by the government and which takes effect for the Group from 1 September 2013, the Group
closed the DCS 1o further contnbuiions af 31 December 2012 A new defined contribution pension scheme {the Archant Pensian Plan) hos
teen set up from 1 Janucry 2013 and contributions for the exisling members of the DCS will ke paid into the Archant Pension Plon Subject
0 agreement with the Trustee Directors, certain of the funds held by the DCS will be Iransferred to the Archant Pension Plan This transfer will

not take ploce before Aprd 2013

v v sarchant co uk
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

29, Pension schemes (continuad)

Defined benefit section

The Group provides refirement benefis 1o some of s former and approximately 9% of current employees through the DBS |n 2009 the Company
cmended the definion of Final Pensioncble Sclary such thas Pensicncble Eamnings used fo caleulate Final Sakary pension benefus became capped
at the employees’ Pensionatle Eamnings in the 12 months prior to 1 December 2009 Any pension benefits on Pensionable Eamings above the
capped level of Pensionable Eamings are provided through @ defined coninbuiion arrangement Members of the DBS continue fo accrue
addimonal pensionable years of service at their current accrua! rate for the purpose of calculating pension beneht The level of retirement benefit 15
based principally on years of pensionable service and final pensionable salary, subject to the 2009 Cap

The liabilities of the OBS cre measured by discounting the best esimate of future cash flows 1o be patd out by the scheme using the projected unit
method, an accrued benefits valuation method In which the scheme habilites make allowance for projected eamings The accumulaied benefii
cbligaton 15 an actuanal measure of the present value of benehis for service already rendered and includes no assumption for future solary iIncreases
Following the capping of pensionable salanes i1 2009, there 1s no difference between the calculations using the projected unit method and the
accumulated benelil abhganhon method The DBS cocumulated benefit abligation ndudad 1n the balonce sheet was £149 9m (2011 £140 2m)

An aliernative method of valuation to the projected unit method s o solvency basis, often estimaled using the cost of buying cut benefis al the
balance sheet date with o sutable insurer This amaunt represents the amount that would be required to settle the scheme habiliies at the balance
sheet date rather than the Group continuing 1o fund the ongoing liabilmes of the scheme The Group estimales the ameunt required 1o sefile the
scheme’s liabilihes of the bolance sheet dote 15 £89m (2011 £104m) in excess of the assets held by the scheme

The most recently completed nenniol aciuanal valuation waos carmied out as at 1 Jonuary 2011 {"the Valuction”) by en independert actuary The
fincneicl ossumphions adogted that have the most significant effect on the Valuaton were

|
Annual rate of mcrease in |
Prices J} 33%
Salarnies | 00%
Pensions in payment E 32%
lnvestment return — Pre-reirement ! 6 2%
- Post rehrement ! 50%
|
At the ime of the Valuction the assets of the scheme, which are held separately from those of the Group, were
Market value of the scheme’s assets £147 Im
Present value of the scheme’s Lhabilies £160 4m
Actuarial deficit £13 3m
Actuanal value os a proportion of accrued benefit Q1 7%

Contnbution rates fo the DBS are calculated as @ percentage of pensionable earmings determined on the basis of the mos recent Veluation ond
with the advice of independent acuanes, using the projected unit method

Fellowing the Valuahion, the Group has ogreed to pay a shorifall recovery payment of ot least £1 8m per annum for the years 2012 to 2020
inclusive The Group paid an edditional cash contibution of £1 8m into the PLAS i 2012 {2011 £1 45m) From 1 January 2012, the Group
clso agreed o separately sefile the adminisiration costs of the DBS and SMS, including nsurances and the Pension Protechion Fund levy These
costs were £771,000 for 2012 end cre eshmated at £660,000 for 2013

Followirg the Valuation the Group hos agreed with the Trustee Directors to return the ongoing funding level of the scheme to 100% of the projected
oast service liabililies within a penod of 10 years from the Valyalion end to mainiam funding af least of this level once the funding level of the
scheme 1s 10O% of the projected post service liabilities The next tnenmial valuaiion 15 due to be completed as oi 1 Januery 2014 The dehart and
regular connbutions will be recclculated os art of shis valuation
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Notes o the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

29, Pension schemaes [continued)

Defined benefit section (continued)

On 16 Jonuary 2009 the Company guaranieed the purciual performance of all obligations under the scheme of the Scheme's Participating
Employers The guarantee will remain in place uatl the scheme becemes fully funded on the scheme-specitc funding bosts, as advised by the
scheme acluary The Trustee Direciors ook the gucraniee into consideralion when seifing e penod of the scheme’s deficit recovery plan, following
he Voluaiicn, ond seting the scheme's mvestment strategy

The benefits payable by the scheme are expected 1o increase steadily over the next 30 years as active and deferred members reach refirement
Alter that the benehts payable should drop off merkedly as moridity rates increase

Pension disclosure under FRS 17
The following information shows the results for the PLAS meosured in cccordance with FRS 17

The Voluation has been updated to 31 December 2012 by an independent actuary

Assumptions
The major assumptions used by the acluary in updeting the Valuation were

2012 2000 | 2010
% % %
1

Rote of increase in sclanes 000 000 i ooC

Rate of increase in deferred pensions 215 230 | 285
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 285 300 ! 335 |
Discount rote 429 466 : 546 |
joletion 285 300 | 335 |
Expected longlerm rate of return i I

Equities 562 555 | 682

Bonds ond gil secunties 478 499 ! 54

Orher 050 050 g 050

An invesiigation of ihe scheme’s mertalily expenience over the pest three years was cornied out os part of he Voluaiion The current assumed life
expectalions on ferement of age &5 are

2012 | 2011
|
Retinng today !
Moles 223 i 223
Females 242 | 24 2
Retiring in 20 years
Males | 244 24 4
Females | 265 | 265
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

29, Pension schemes {coniinued)

Sensitivity analysis of the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities
The sensitivities regarding the principal assumplions used to measure the scheme habililes are set out below

Assumphon

Change 1n ossumotion Impcct on scheme liobilities

Discount rate
Rate of mflaticn
Life expectancy

Inciease by 0 25%
Increase by 0 25%
increase by 1 year

Decrecse by 3 6%
Increcse by 2 1%
Incrense by 1 8%

Employee benefit obligations
The amounis recogmised in the balance sheet are as follows

2012 2012 2011 2011

% £000 % £000
Global equities 49 6 74,299 49 68,683
Absolute return 233 35,872 237 33,159
Corporale and government bonds W77 27,155 179 25,064
High yield bonds 80 12,249 78 10,854
Bank and cash balences 14 2,193 15 2,050
Fair value of scheme assels 1000 153,768 1000 139,810
Present value of lunded obligations 182,803 169,359
Present volue of unfunded obhgations 650 728

|

Total scheme obligations 183,453 170,087
Pension scheme deficit 29,685 30,277
Related deferred tax asset at 23% {2011 25%) (6,828} {7.568)
Net habslity 22,857 22,709

The unfunded obligations are n respect of the ex gratio pensions paid by the Group

accordance with FRS 17 by an independent actuary
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The present value of these obligations has been coleulated in
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

29. Penston schemes [continued)

The amounts recogrised in the profit and loss account are as ollows

2012 | 201§

£000 £000
Curent service cast — DBS 1,471 ! 1297
Current service cost — DCS 2,932 2,643
Recognised in armving ot operching proht 4,403 3,940

1
[nterest on funded obligations 6,405 i 7,004
Interest on unfunded oblgations 34 i 38
Expecled retun on scheme assels {5,656) | [6,982)
Other finance expense 783 60
Total recogrised :n the pront and loss account 5,186 4000
Aciual return on scheme ossels 13,749 223
Changes 1n the present value of the scheme obligotion are as follows
H

2012 2011

£000 £000
Opening scheme obligation — D8S and DCS 169,359 ' 160,497
Opening scheme obligation — unfunded obligations at present value 728 823
Tetal opeming scheme obligation 170,087 16,320
Service cost 4,403 3,940
Interest cost 6,439 7,042
Actucricl losses ~ DBS and unfunded obligahons 8,147 2,029
Contabutons by employees 54 59
Change in CC fund values 3,096 {1,568)
Benefits paid (8,773} {9,735)
Closing scheme obliganen 183,453 170,087

4 v arcnont co uh
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

29. Pension schemes {coninued)

Changes in the farr value of scheme ossets cre as follows

2012 | 2011
£000 | £000
i
Opening farr value of scheme assets 139,810 ! 145,544
Expecied retum 5,656 | 6,982
Actyanial gains/|losses) 8,113 i {6,761}
Contnbuhans by employer 5.812 g 5,289
Contributions by employees 54 § 59
Change in DC fund values 3,096 i [1,568)
Benelits paid (8,773 l (9 735)
i
Closing forr volue of scheme assets 153,768 i 139.810
1
The Group expects to contibute between £3,500,000 and £4,000,000 io the DBS scheme n 2013
Cumulative actuanal gains ond losses recogmised in the Group statement of total recognised gains and losses (STRGL)
2012 i 2011
£000 | £000
i
!
Aclual return less expected return on assels 8,113 i 16,761)
Changes in assumphons {8,147} 1 (2,029}
MNet actuanal lesses recogrised in STRGL (34} ; {15,790)
Al the beginming of the year (40,756} l 124,968)
At the end of the yeor (40,790) I (40,756}
Analysis of the movement 1n the balance sheet hiability
2012 i 20N
£000 | £000
Shertall in scheme at beginning of year (30,277 (15,776}
Movements |
Total recognised in the profit and loss cccount {5,186)! {4,000)
Employer contnbutions 5,812 3 5,289
Actuanal losses {34y ¢ {15 790)
Shortfall 1n scheme ¢t end of year {29,685) E {30,277}
84
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Notes to the tinancial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

29, Pension schemes [continued)

Amounts for the currert and pravious four years are es follows

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
€000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of funded obligations 182,803 169,359 160,467 150,506 146,478
Present value of unfunded obligatiors 650 728 823 02 955
Total scheme obligations 183,453 170,087 161,320 151,408 147 433
Fair value of scheme assets 153,768 139810 145,544 130,933 111,519
Pension scheme deficit [29,685) 130,277) 15,776} (20,47 5) {35,214}
Expenence adjusiments on pension scherre licbilities 109 2,603 31 5,055
Expenence adjustments on pension scheme ossets 8,113 [6,761) 7,393 i2,643) 27,097}
Changes in assumptions
Morlalisy . (10,820]
Demographics . 1667)
Discount rate [?.687) {17,221) {4,£606) {1,300} 9S00}
Inflation 1,431 6,256 879 {5,490) 3,290
Salary increase - 2833
Actuaral losses)/gons recogrised n equity {34) {15,790) 3,800 5,822 127,729
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Five-year financial summary

2012 2001 2010 2009 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Turnover 131,364 135,057 139,253 141,973 175115
Operating profit before exceptional items 6,301 10,415 14,752 15,116 22,162
Return on sales 4 8% 7 7% 10 6% 10 6% 127%
Share of cperating results of associate - . (202) {196} {158)
Amoriisahon and imperment of intangible fixed ossets {4,560} {4,616} [4,617) (5,009) (7.067)
Exceptional income . - 10,000 .
Excephional costs {10,184) 13,0951 [1,263) (16,927} (38,087}
Income from investments, interest poyable and FRS 17 financing costs {2,278) 11,683 2,244} {2,310 {2.065})
(Loss)/proht before 1ox {10,721} 1,021 5,726 674 {25,215}
Tox {4,053} {2,549 {1.271) {3,848) 1,117
Fffective rale of taxation 137 8% 249 7% 222% 570 9% 44%
[Loss)/profit after tax {14,774} 1,528} 4,455 13,174) 124 098]}
Minority interests 205 66 -
Diwidends paid duning the year 2,752 2,779 2766 2,802 5,608
{Loss)/proki alter tax and equity diwidends paid (17,321) {4,241} 1,689 {5,976} (2¢ 706}
Basic earrungs per share {106 4p) i 110 6p} 320p (22 8p 1172 5p)
Diluted earnings per share (106 4p) {10 6p) I p {22 8p) {172 5p)
Adjusted earnings per share 19 8p 43 1p 64 Op 64 7p 105 1g
Dwidends declared per share' 6 dp 20 1p 20 ip 20 1p 26 4p
Dividend cover {bosed on dwvidends declored and adjusted EPS) 31 21 32 32 40
Nel assels 22,244 40,160 57,060 53,127 55,043
Net debt {15,707) {17,387] [23,257) (27,517} (34 621)
Excephondl tems
Reduction in defined benefit pension habilihes 10,000
Total exceptional income 10,000
Impairment of intangivle fixed assets (4,815} 1500) (12,363) (33615
Imogument of geodwill in assacicle . - 1500}
Impeirment of tangible fixed assets - [£77]
Reorganisanon and reskiuciuting costs (978) {3,095] 13,484) 13,991 (3,495]
Costs incurred 1o reduce defined beneft pension labiliies - 21 {3301
Costs incurred 1n preparchon for pensions auto enroiment {125) -
Claim from The Dublin Daily News limied 224
Tox complience hugation {433) -
Refinancing costs . [243)
interest on lare poyment of corporalion lax {4,057}
Totcl exceplional costs (10,184) {3,095] [1,963) {16,927) (38,087

' 2009 includes the 2010 first intenm dividend m plece of he fing! dwdend fer 2000
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that en Annual General Meeting of he
Company will be held ot The Conference Centre at the John Innes
Cerire on Tuesdoy 23 Aprl 2013 at noon, to consider and, 1f thought
fil, poss the followang resolutions

Ordinary resolutions

1

THAT Ine reports of the directors and auditors and the audited
financial statements of the Company for the yeor ended 31
December 2012 be and ore hereby receved

THAT M R fewson retining as o director af this meeting be
reelecied os a director of the Company

THAE Mr § Husiler relinng s a director of this meefing be
reelected as @ director of the Company

THAT Mr R Watt retinng as a director ai this meefing be
reelected as o directar of the Company

THAT Emst & Young LLP be reappointed os oudiiors for the
Company at a fee to be hixed by the directors

Special resolutions

o)

THAT, subject to the passing of resoluion 7, the directers be
generally empowered pursuant 1o section 569 of the Companies
Act 2006 [ihe "Adt”) to aliot equity secunties {within the meaning of
section 560 of the Act) pursuant to authonty conferred by
Resolution 7 os f section 561 of the Act and the preemption
provisions of the Company's Articles of Association did not cpply
to such afloment

THAT for the purposes only of the allotment of ordinary shares in
the capital of the Company pursuoni to an election made by the
holders of such ordinary shares to receive addiional ordinary
shares in accordance with Article 132 of the Company's Asticles
of Association, the directors of the Company cre generally end
cendtionally authonised in accordance with section 551 of the
Componies Act 2006 (the "Act’} and 1n substitulion for any exsting
auhonty conferred on them o allot ordinory shares in the
Compeny up fo an oggregote nominal amount of £750,000,
such authonty 1o continue for o penod of five years from the date
on which this resolution 15 passed, and further that, pursuant lo and
i accordance with section 570 of the Adl, section 561 of the Act
sholt not apoly to ony cliotment pursuent to thot cuthonily

e atchant co ok

BY ORDER CF THE BOARD
JO Ellison

Secretary

28 Febary 2013

Archant imited
Prospect House
Rouen Roed
Norwich NR1 1RE

Telephone 01603 772772
Facsmile 01603 613276
Registered number 4126997

Notes

]

2

Members ore entilled to appoint a proxy to exercise alt or any of
therr nghts to attend ond to speck and vote on their behalf of the
Annual General Meeting ["AGM”} A shareholder may appoin
more then one proxy 1n relation to the AGM provided that each
oroxy 1s appotnted 1o exercise Ine nghts atiached to a different
share or shares held by that shareholder A proxy need nol be a
sharenolder of the Company A proxy form which may be used to
make such appointment and give proxy instruchons accompanies
this nonce I you do not have a proxy form and believe that you
should have one, or If you require additional forms, please contact
the Company Secretary on 01603 772810

To be vahd any proxy form or other instrument cppointing o proxy
must be receved by post or [dunng normal business houts only) by
hand of Equinit Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Rood, tancing,
West Sussex BNGQ 6DA no later than noon on Sunday 21 April
2013

The reiumn of a completed proxy form will not prevent o
shareholder citending the AGM end voling in person should they
wish to do so

To be entifled 1o attend and vote at the AGM (end for the purpose
of the determination by the Company of the votes they may cast),
shareholders must be regstered 0 the register of members of the
Compary at dpm on Sunday 21 Apal 2013 {or, 1n the event of
any adjournment, ot &pm on the date which 1s two days befcre
Ine hme of the edjourned meeting) Changes fo the reguster of
members afier the relevant deadline shall be disregarded in
defermuning the nights of any person I citend and vote ar the
AGM
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Calendar

for year to 31 December 2013

23 Aol Anral Generel Meeting
29 June Halyeor end

2 August Infenm slalement

REGISIRARS
Shareholders with questions regarding their shareholding should contact the Company's regusirars

Equiniti Limited
Aspect House
Spencer Rood
tancing

BNQQ 6DA

0871 384 2641

Shareholders moy access details of therr shareholdings via the intermet To reguster for the senvce go to www shareview co vk
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